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January:
"with both a benevolent mind and heart, contributions

Innovation and development in accordance with
to the world” - the award ceremony of “Innovation and
Development Award of CR Phoenix” of 2016 was held

successfully.

January: CR Phoenix won the “Award of China financing
listed company in 2016 — the most investment value award”
sponsored by “China Financing” magazine and listed
company committee of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises

Association.

February: The
2017" was successfully held in Beijing.

“CR Phoenix Annual Academic Symposium

April:
demonstration base for ophthalmology was established at
Beijing Shunyi District Konggang Hospital.

The first national big data joint laboratory

April: Beijing Jian Gong Hospital was award the “Award for
Outstanding Contributions to Healthcare in Xicheng District,
Beijing’, which was the only award-winning non-public
medical institution.

June: The rehabilitation department, vasculocardiology
department, department of hemopathology and urinary
surgery department of China Resources Wugang General
Hospital won key clinical specialties of Wuhan City.

December: Phoenix Institute (Bl/E\ZFT) was inaugurated
under China Resources University (Z£HAE).
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Distinguished Shareholders,

The year 2017 was a year of significance, during which
CR Phoenix imbued the spirit of the National Hygiene
and Health Conference and implemented the 13th Five-
Year Plan for Deepening the Medical and Health System
Reform. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
proactively adopted new medical reform policies such as
“zero mark-up” policy on drugs, two-invoice policy and
multi-level diagnosis and treatment, and realized business
growth through structural adjustment, system optimization,
development of community level services at our Urgent
Care Clinics (UCC) and physician company and expansion in
coverage of “hospital group +" etc.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from the medical
business of our in-network hospital continued to maintain
growth, amounting to RMB6.26 billion, representing an
increase of 71% compared to that of 2016. Meanwhile,
benefiting from our expanded healthcare network following
the restructuring as well as the enhanced operation and
management standards of our in-network hospitals, the
Group’s net profit attributable to equity holders (excluding
non-recurring profit or loss items) for 2017 increased by
51% from 2016 to RMB380 million.

The policy orientation and development trend of the
healthcare services industry in the recent years have
created a favorable environment for the private-capital-
run hospitals business. The Group will firmly seize such
historic development opportunity by upholding lean and
efficient hospital operation, external investment and merger
and acquisition (M&A) as well as industrial extension and
innovation as its “Troika” of development drivers. Firstly, we
will continue focusing on lean management and discipline
development to further enhance the operation efficiency of
our hospital groups. Secondly, we will speed up the M&A
and integration, leveraging our strong capability in post-
investment management and the Group’s management
system. Thirdly, we will explore the development of
innovative formats for the healthcare industry such as
physicians’ association, community Urgent Care Clinics
(UCC) and integrated medical and wellness services, with
an aim of creating a greater derivative value of our hospital

group.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

EHH SR

2017 F RERREREREEERAESR
BEASBEEMERIt =0 KB
EEERINERINEZ —F - £
TR AKREBRHEETNK MR
W DML EFEBGTR - BB AR
®- BETH  MRUCCEEDE &
AEE- ERIBEREE+] AREFSRA
BERTEEER -

WEBRAN AEBKEBREREKE
WABBERIFIER  HFTEHR62.6ET
AR B2016FMLIERT.1% o FFF
XEREHBEASERERKNEX -
AREETKEBRELEEKFEHIR
o AEB2017FHRIEL B MHIBERE
BENERFEE AT ER20165F 1
R51%E38ETARKE o

MFRBERGEROBRERMER
BERHEEAREAERIFNERR
B AKBREENEE - ELMERR
e ABRIFHES  HWINREHNE
MEXRCHAFERBESHRN=8
FHE] ——REESIRDEEMSERZ
& E—TRABEREENFRE 2K
¥ oREKAERNRREEELENINE
BEZEER  NRHBEES ZfKR
HRELEEE  HRZBKEUCC BEE
EERFEERAFER  AEFANE
Bt EOTAEBE -



In addition to actively pursuing performance targets,
we will continue to explore and optimise our business
model, strengthen risk prevention, defuse potential
risks, standardize corporate governance and enhance
the effectiveness of our internal control policies so as
to effectively safeguard the interests of the Group's
shareholders.

As the sole listing platform for CR Holdings' healthcare
services business, the Group will fully integrate and
synergize with CR Holdings' top-notch internal resources
to jointly develop the greater healthcare industry, and to
further consolidate the Group's position in the healthcare
services industry of mainland China through external
expansion.

Last but not least, |, on behalf of the board of directors of
the Company, would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to the Shareholders for their support and attention to CR
Phoenix, and also for the contribution and hard work of our
management team and fellow colleagues. We will adhere
to the philosophy of “benefit all with benevolence and
competence” (“{Z/OMfiT - BEART"), providing the public
with high-quality, safe and accessible medical services
at reasonable prices and making due contributions to the
"Healthy China strategy”.

Wang Yin
Chairman
China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited
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Benefiting from the enhancement of integrated supply
chain management business and the increase in hospital
management/service fees arising from the Acquisition at
the end of October 2016, the consolidated revenue of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 amounted
to RMB1.88 billion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 22.5%; after deducting related net gain from UMP
Healthcare, core attributable profit increased by 51.3%
against last year to RMB379 million. Earnings per share of
the Group amounted to RMBO0.33, of which core profit per
share attributable to Shareholders was RMBO0.30, a 71%
increase compared to 2016.

During the Reporting Period, the PRC economy sustained
steady growth. Driven by the increasing aging population,
growing resident disposable income, medical technology
advancement and enhanced social security level, demand
for healthcare services in China continued to maintain rapid
growth. From January to October 2017 the total number of
visits to medical institutions nationwide and the number of
discharged patients increased 3.0% and 7.3% respectively
to 6.61 billion times and 190 million times. Meanwhile,
new medical reform policies such as “zero mark-up"” policy
on drugs, multi-tiered diagnosis and treatment system,
and two-invoice policy have been rolled out in 2017 With
the continuing vertical development of national medical
reform policies, China’s medical system is experiencing
unprecedented changes, which will have a profound impact
on the structure and development direction of healthcare
service market.

As of December 31, 2017, the Group managed and operated
a total of 106 medical institutions in six provinces and
cities in the PRC. Despite the impacts of medical reform
policies, the number of outpatient and inpatient visits of
our in-network hospitals still increased by 3.2% to 7,784,570
times and 4.1% to 243,285 times, respectively. Under the
combined effect of increase in average spending, the total
revenue from medical business of our in-network hospitals
grew by 7.1% to RMB6.26 billion.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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List of Medical Institutions under the Group's ZANEBEEHELEZEHKESI AR
management and operation

Beijing b= 2 5 12 37 56
Hebei il 0 1 0 0 1
Jiangsu p3 0 1 0 0 1
Anhui 7 1 6 13 5 25
Hubei ible 2 0 15 21
Guangdong B3R 1 0 0 1 2
Total =1l 6 13 29 58 106
Operating data for 2017 2017 FEL I

For-profit hospitals BRI ER 393 880,485 12,248 408,040 227630 15,064 650,735
Sponsored hospitals B ERR 6,280 2,615,002 162,192 744,496 1,838,648 37626 2,620,770
0T hospitals I0TER 3,718 4,289,083 68,845 1,753,641 1177947 52586 2,984,173
Subtotal gt 10,391 7784570 243,285 2906177 3,244,225 105,276 6,255,678
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Operating data for 2016

2016 FEE B IE

Forprofit hospitals 2Bl 396 846,161 11,943 379,131 214,599 12,655 606,385
Sponsored hospitals BERR 5,891 2,399,970 157329 687884 1,732,281 40,104 2,460,269
|0T hospitals I0TEb 3,597 4,294,198 64,372 1,669,884 1,058,323 46,187 2,774,394
Subtotal et 9,884 7540,329 233,644 2,736,899 3,005,203 98,946 5,841,048

Notes: G

1) Forprofit hospitals include: Jian Gong Hospital and 999 Clinic; 1) #EFHBREE: E28k - =AM2E

2)  Sponsored hospitals include: 999 Brain Hospital, Huaikuang Hospital 2) BRWEBREE: ZAKBBR - EERREE -

Group, Xukuang Hospital and Wugang Hospital Group; HRERk - RRRER
3) 10T hospitals include: Yan Hua Hospital Group, Jing Mei Hospital Group, 3) IOTERBHE: HtBRERE - REEREE -

Mentougou Hospital, Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital,
Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children, Shunyi District Konggang
Hospital, the Second Hospital of Shunyi District and Baoding Third Center
Hospital.

SEERER MEEETEERER  PIEERDHRE
br - IEREZE AR - JEREE B - REMWE
=BT o
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The Group’s profit contribution was mainly derived from
hospital operating profit, hospital management fees from
in-network hospitals, third-party supply chain management
fees from the provision of supply chain management for
hospitals and Group Purchasing Organization ("GPO")
gross profit from the procurement of pharmaceutica
consumables. During the Reporting Period,
continued to optimize its core operation capabilities as well
as push forward the integrated supply chain management
and integration, thereby increasing the profit contribution
from in-network hospitals. In 2017, third-party supply
chain service fees and GPO gross profit in aggregate
increased by RMB94.45 million from 2016, driving the profit
contribution of hospital to grow to approximately RMB609
million and the consolidated profit contribution rate to rise
by 1.3 percentage points to 9.7%. Among this, forprofit
hospitals, sponsored hospitals and IOT hospitals accounted
for 18.3%, 23.4% and 58.3% of the profit contribution
respectively. Profit contribution rate of these three types
of hospitals was 17.1%, 5.4% and 11.9%, respectively. The
relatively low profit contribution rate of sponsored hospitals
was due to the fact that Wugang Hospital only contributed
a small amount of profit to the Group in 2017.

the Group
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial data for 2017 2017 B 5 &8

Forprofit hospitals yiliia- 1 650,735 47308 - 18,397 45,407 111,112 17.1%
Sponsored hospitals ~ ZiEER 2,620,770 - 104,118 36,445 1,935 142,498 5.4%
|OT hospitals 0Tz 2,984,173 - 95,015 71,956 187,955 354,926 11.9%
Total =l 6,255,678 47308 199,133 126,798 235,297 608,536 9.7%

14 China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2017
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Financial data for 2016

EEENWESN

2016 F B I &

For-profit hospitals LR 606,385 39,241 - 7271 46,698 93,210 15.4%
Sponsored hospitals ~ BHHEER 2,460,269 - 88,948 - - 88,948 3.6%
0T hospitals 0Tz 2,774,394 - 94,817 43,128 170,548 308,493 11.1%
Total At 5,841,048 39,241 183,765 50,399 217246 490,651 8.4%

Note: In the above tables, figures of Ample Mighty hospitals in 2016 are for the
full year (including all sponsored hospitals and 999 Clinic included in for-
profit hospitals). The total profit contribution of Ample Mighty hospitals
for November to December 2016 included in the Group's consolidated
statements of year 2016 was RMB20.57 million.

Future Outlook

Looking forward, we will proactively respond to the
"Healthy China" strategy by fully integrating with the top-
notch internal resources of CR Holdings in a bid to actively
practice the three core strategies of the Group. Firstly,
the “priority of scale”: the Group will capture the reform
opportunities and expedite external expansion to scale up
our operations, while actively investing in for-profit medical
institutions. Secondly, the “core competence strategy”: the
Group will continue to enhance medical technology level
and the efficiency of hospital operation and management,
and focus on developing our flagship hospitals and
disciplines. Thirdly, the "industry innovation strategy”:
we will actively expand the derived businesses such as
physicians’ association, community Urgent Care Clinics,
integrated medical and wellness services and management
solution services to develop a great healthcare industry
with concerted efforts, thereby providing the public with
high-quality, safe and accessible healthcare services at
reasonable prices.
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Termination of Acquisition of Huizhou
Hospital and Hangzhou Hospitals

The Group and CITIC Medical entered into a binding term
sheet on May 3, 2016, and entered into an official sales and
purchase contract on October 28, 2016, pursuant to which
the Group proposed to issue 130,571,837 consideration
shares to CITIC Medical at the price of HK$9.50 per
consideration share for the acquisition of 60% equity
interest of Huizhou Hospital (owned as to 60% by CITIC
Medical) and 70% equity interest of Hangzhou Hospitals
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC Medical). By the
acquisition, the Group acquired the main assets, equity
and operation rights of Huizhou Hospital and Hangzhou
Hospitals at a consideration of HK$1,240,432,453. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated May 3,
2016 and October 28, 2016 for details.

Due to the objective condition changes in relation to the
acquisitions, the Company and the Seller have agreed to
terminate the acquisition documents and entered into a
termination agreement on May 4, 2017 Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated May 5, 2017 for
details.

Investment in UMP Beijing

On July 13, 2015, True Point Holdings Limited (”“True
Point”), UMP Healthcare Holdings (stock code: 722), UMP
Healthcare China Limited ("UMP China”), UMP
Beijing and the Company entered into a shareholders’
agreement, pursuant to which each of the Group and
UMP Healthcare Holdings paid in advance an interest-free
shareholder’s loan of RMB24.25 million to UMP Beijing as
of December 31, 2016. According to the announcement of
UMP Healthcare Holdings dated September 27 2016, such
shareholders’ loans have been capitalised and converted
into new shares allotted and issued to each of the Group
and UMP Healthcare Holdings on a pro rata basis. UMP
Beijing was held as to 50% by Pinyu and 50% by UMP
China.

Pinyu,

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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According to the announcement of UMP Healthcare
Holdings dated December 15, 2016, UMP Healthcare
Holdings will subscribe for 6,668 shares in UMP Beijing,
at a consideration of RMB32.33 million, through UMP
China. UMP Beijing shall be renamed as UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) Group Limited. Immediately after the completion
of the subscription, UMP Beijing will be owned 70% by
UMP China and 30% by the Group and will become a
partially owned subsidiary of UMP Healthcare Holdings. On
February 27 2017 the transaction had been approved by the
extraordinary general meeting of UMP Healthcare Holdings.
On March 23, 2017, UMP Healthcare Holdings announced
that all the conditions relating to the transaction were
satisfied and the transaction was completed.

As the Group's shareholding in UMP Beijing decreased to
30%, the Group managed UMP Beijing as an associate.
As of December 31, 2017, the Group’'s investment in
UMP Beijing was measured in equity method and the
book balance as at the end of the period amounted to

approximately RMB22.58 million.

Investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings

On July 13, 2015, Pinyu entered into an agreement
with True Point to acquire 20% shares of the then total
issued shares of UMP Healthcare Holdings for a total
consideration of HK$180,000,000. The consideration for the
share acquisition was determined based on arm's length
negotiations with regard to the UMP Healthcare Holdings’
financial conditions and operating performance.

On November 27, 2015, UMP Healthcare Holdings
completed its global offering. After which, the percentage
of equity interest held by Pinyu in UMP Healthcare
Holdings decreased to 15%. On May 8, 2017 the directors
and employees of UMP Healthcare Holdings exercised a
total of 1,492,000 share options under the pre-IPO share
option scheme of UMP Healthcare Holdings. Accordingly,
the Group’s shareholding in UMP Healthcare Holdings was
diluted to 14.97%.
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Our Directors are of the view that the Group has been
able to participate in the financial and operational decisions
making of UMP Healthcare Holdings by exercising the
Group's voting right and through a board representative
nominated by the Group, during July 13, 2015 to June 15,
2017. Accordingly, the Group accounted for the investment
as an associate and measured under the equity method. As
of June 15, 2017 the book value of the Group's investment
in UMP Healthcare Holdings amounted to approximately
RMB164 million.

As the Group no longer holds any directorship in UMP
Healthcare Holdings after June 15, 2017, taking into account
other factors, the Group has lost its significant influence
over UMP Healthcare Holdings. Accordingly, under the
requirements of IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures, all of the approximately 109 million shares held
by the Group in UMP Healthcare Holdings were reclassified
from investment in an associate to available-for-sale
financial assets and a gain of approximately RMB115 million
was recognized from such reclassification.

As of December 31, 2017 the available-for-sale financial
assets were evaluated at fair value under the requirements
of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The book value of equity
interests held in UMP Healthcare Holdings as at the end of
the Reporting Period amounted to approximately RMB137
million, and the impairment losses from such change in fair
value of RMB93.25 million was included in other gains and
losses.

Future Plans For Material Investment Or
Capital Assets

The Directors confirmed that, as at the date of this annual
report, there are currently no concrete plans to acquire
any material investment or capital assets other than in the
Group'’s ordinary course of business.
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Liquidity and Financing

As at December 31, 2017 the Group’s consolidated cash
and bank balance, certificate of deposit and short-term
investments (bank wealth management product) amounted
to approximately RMB1.6 billion totally.

On March 27, 2017 the Group obtained banking facilities
(revolving term loans) with a credit line of HK$800 million
(or its U.S. dollar or RMB equivalents) (December 31, 2016:
nil) from a bank in Hong Kong. As at December 31, 2017,
the Group had interest-bearing bank liabilities of HK$205
million (equivalent to approximately RMB171 million)
(December 31, 2016: nil), and unutilised bank facilities with
a credit line of HK$595 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB500 million). As at December 31, 2017 the Group’s
amount of payables to the sponsored hospitals of the
Group amounted to RMB268 million (December 31, 2016:
RMB369 million).

As at December 31, 2017 on the basis of interest-bearing
liabilities (excluding payables to hospitals sponsored by the
Group) divided by total assets, the Group’s gearing ratio
was 2.5% (FY2016: nil).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in
foreign currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk, mainly pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in
the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against RMB.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management
manages the currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considers
hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2017, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities or guarantees that would have a
material impact on the financial position or operations of
the Group.
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Pledge of Assets

As of December 31, 2017 the Group did not have any
material pledge of assets.

Subsequent Event

On January 25, 2018, Yan Hua Hospital, a hospital managed
by the Group, convened a council meeting and changed
its council members. As of the date of announcement
March 22, 2018, the Group has no representative holding
the position of council member in Yan Hua Hospital. The
Group was notified by Yan Hua Hospital on February 26,
2018 that Yan Hua Hospital has decided to terminate the
Supply Chain Joint Development Agreement and proceed
a bidding process for the procurement of pharmaceutical,
medical device and medical consumables from March 1,
2018. As of the Date of the Report, the Group has not
received any tender notice from Yan Hua Hospital, whereas
the Company'’s supply chain subsidiaries have continued to
provide pharmaceutical and medical consumables to Yan
Hua Hospital as usual. Since there has been no material
progress on the above matter as of the Date of the Report,
the Company is temporarily unable to estimate the potential
effects of the above matter on the Company’s business
results for 2018.

In 2017 the third party supply chain service fee earned from
the above Supply Chain Joint Development Agreement
was RMB32,065,000; the sales revenue of pharmaceutical,
medical device and medical consumables from Yan Hua
Hospital was RMB256,063,000 whereas the related
cost of sales and gross profit was RMB195,840,000 and
RMB60,223,000, respectively; the management fee from
Yan Hua Hospital was RMB36,324,000.
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As of December 31, 2017 the Group had a total of
1,036 full-time employees (December 31, 2016: 1,010
employees). For FY2017, the staff cost (including Directors’
remuneration in the form of salaries and other benefits)
was approximately RMB282 million (FY2016: RMB240
million).

The Group ensured that the remuneration packages of
employees remain competitive and the remuneration
level of its employees was determined on the basis of
performance with reference to the profitability of the Group,
industry remuneration standards and market conditions
within the general framework of the Group’s remuneration
system.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme
(pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders on
September 30, 2013) and the Share Award Scheme so as
to provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of HK$11 cents
(equivalent to RMB8.9 cents) per Share for FY2017 (FY2016:
final dividend: HK$6.3 cents (equivalent to RMB5.6 cents)
per Share). The proposed final dividend will be paid to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, June 19, 2018.
Based on the number of issued shares of the Company
as of December 31, 2017 the total amount of dividends
is approximately HK$143 million. Subject to the approval
by Shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held
on Thursday, May 31, 2018, it is expected that the final
dividend will be distributed on or before July 20, 2018.
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is mainly engaged in the provision of general healthcare
services, hospital management and consulting services as
well as derived business from hospital group in Mainland
China. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties being faced by
the Group, as well as the business outlook of the Group
(including key performance indicators of future development
of the Group) are provided in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 10 to 21 of this annual report.
Relevant discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance for
the year ended December 31, 2017 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the paragraph headed “Financial Review"” under the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
19 to 21 of this annual report.
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Significant events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report, if any, are set out in the paragraph
headed "“Events Subsequent to December 31, 2017" on
page 57 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes
the importance of good environmental stewardship.
In this connection, the Group has strictly adopted
and implemented policies and procedures to conduct
environmental protection work on a standard which is
not less stringent than the prevailing environmental laws
and regulations of the PRC. We believe that we were in
compliance with all relevant PRC laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection in all material respects
during the year ended December 31, 2017 and as at the
date of this Directors’ Report. No environmental claims,
lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions were
reported to our management.

The Group formulated the “Hazardous Substances Safety
Management Plan” ({KEEMEZ 2 B IE s &])) and the
“Medical Waste Management System” ({EEEYEIE |
JE)) for all hospitals according to the relevant requirements
of the "Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China” ((FEARXLMEIRIFIREE)). The
above systems focus on the management of hazardous
substances (containing hazardous chemicals and medical
waste), including storage location, container labelling,
protection, leakage handling and disposal in use. Hospitals
conduct supervisions and inspections mainly on storage and
labelling on hazardous chemicals and conclude the analysis
results on a quarterly basis. As required by the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation”
((FREAREMBEILERE)), the Group formulated the
"Optimization System of Resource Decision” ({EJRREKE
®H|EZ)), which focuses on the management of resource
decision-making process and specifies the requirements
on the quality, reasonable allocation and use of newly
procured resources. The Group monitors the outcome of
such decision upon its implementation, and assesses the
effectiveness and safety by using relevant information
and makes further decision so as to ensure the effective
implementation of the above policies.
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Meanwhile, the Group formulated the "Utilities Safety
Management Plan” ((RA&XRBELEE L El)), “Safety
and Protection Management Plan” ((Z&[H#EEETE]))
and “Medical Technology Safety Management Plan” ({%
BRITZ2E5T28l)), and passed the “Facility Safety
Management Plan” ({(&E% 2 EHEETE)) to ensure the
effective implementation of the above plans. The Group
formulated the “Radiation Safety Management Plan” ( {5t
Z2%E1E51#])) and “Radiation Emergency Plan” ((#g57 &=
F82€)) for all hospitals, which focuses on the management
of radiation safety and specifies the requirements on all
radiation equipment, protection and radiation-related waste
treatment. Every year, qualified testing and rating agencies
are engaged to monitor the radiation level of all radiological
equipment and workplaces in the hospitals. Moreover, the
hospitals carry out drills against radiation accidents and
evaluate and conclude the responsiveness.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief as at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable
manner while balancing the interests of our various
stakeholders including our Substantial Shareholders,
employees, patients, customers, suppliers, business
partners and the community.

An account of the Group's relationship with its Substantial
Shareholders is included in the “Interests of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares” set out on pages 42 to 44 of this annual report.
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The Group considers its employees as the key to
sustainable business growth. We are committed to
providing all employees a safe and harassment-free
working environment with equal opportunities in relation
to employment, remuneration management, training and
career development. This commitment is incorporated in
our Corporate Responsibility Policy and Employment Policy.
Workplace safety is a priority of the Group that, with due
awareness of all employees throughout the year, the Group
was able to maintain a high standard of health and safety
measures in all company activities. We have in place a fair
and effective performance appraisal system and incentive
bonus schemes that designed to motivate and reward
employees at all levels, which helps to deliver their best
performance and achieve business performance targets.
For talent acquisition and continuous development, the
Group offers training programs as well as leadership and
talent development programs for talents with different
academic backgrounds. The Group believes that direct and
effective communication is essential for good partnership
built-up between management and employees. The Group
holds regular meetings and forums to brief employees on
company developments and obtain their feedbacks and
suggestions.

As a patient-oriented healthcare services provider,
we consider patients as one of the most important
stakeholders. We are committed to serving our patients to
the best of our ability and continually enhancing the level
of service excellence. The Group has embraced new media
platforms as an effective communication channel with our
patients to collect feedbacks and help us identify areas for
further improvement.

The Group is committed to upholding the highest ethical
and professional standards when dealing with suppliers
and contractors. To integrate CSR principles throughout
our GPO business, the Group has implemented the Group
Purchasing Policy and Principles, and a Supplier Code of
Conduct to facilitate a common means whereby we can
better communicate with our business partners regarding
their compliance with local regulations governing labor,
health and safety, and the environment. In order to have a
better and close monitoring of supplier performance, our
procurement department conduct supplier performance
review annually targeting our major suppliers and
contractors, and will communicate with the suppliers that
have unsatisfactory rating for rectification or improvements.
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For details and cases mentioned above, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 91
to 146 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 153 to 154
of this annual report.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of HK$11 cents
(equivalent to RMB8.9 cents) per Share for FY2017 (FY2016:
final dividend: HK$6.3 cents (equivalent to RMB5.6 cents).
The proposed final dividend will be payable to Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Tuesday, June 19, 2018. Based on the number
of Shares in issue of the Company as of December 31,
2017, the total amount of final dividends is approximately
HK$143 million. Subject to the approval by Shareholders
at the annual general meeting to be held on Thursday,
May 31, 2018, it is expected that the final dividend will be
distributed on or before July 20, 2018.

The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
2017 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 157 of

for the year ended December 31,

this annual report.
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As at December 31, 2017 the Group had no distributable
reserve that was available for distribution to the

Shareholders.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, and
subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the
share premium account is distributable to the Shareholders,
provided that immediately following the proposed date of
dividend distribution, the Company shall be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year ended December 31, 2017 are
set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 300 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Please refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Details of the borrowings of the Group for the vyear
ended December 31, 2017 are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

As at December 31, 2017, the Group had no material pledge
of assets.
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Save for the sales and purchase agreement with CITIC
Medical as set out in the paragraph headed "Significant
Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals, Investments in
and Receivables from JV Company and Subsequent Plans
for Material Capital Investments” under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and the Share
Option Scheme as set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Scheme” under the section headed “Directors’
Report’] no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended December 31,
2017.

During the year ended December 31, 2017 sales to the
Group's five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 53.3% (2016: 59.2%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 19.2% (2016: 22.8%) of the total sales.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 50.7% (2016:
59.5%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier accounted for approximately
35.1% (2016: 46.3%) of the total purchases.

The sponsor for Yan Hua Hospital is Yan Hua Phoenix,
which is controlled by Ms. Xu Jie, he former director who
resigned on November 25, 2016. Speed Key Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company during the financial
year ended December 31, 2017, was then controlled by Mr.
Xu Baorui, the father of Ms. Xu Jie. Thus, Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital Group were connected persons of
the Company during the financial year ended December
31, 2017 Yan Hua Hospital was also one of the Group's five
largest customers for the year ended December 31, 2017

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, neither the Directors nor any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), had
any direct or indirect interest in the five largest customers
or the five largest suppliers of the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2017

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, each Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in the execution of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Group has
taken out insurance policies against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceeding.

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2017
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report are as follows:

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Yin (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yan
Mr. He Xuan
(Resigned on October 12, 2017)
Mr. Liang Hongze
(Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Libing (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Han Yuewei (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on October 12, 2017)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on October 12, 2017)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy General Manager)
(Appointed on October 12, 2017)

Mr. Wu Potao (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Mr. Xu Zechang (Executive General Manager)
(Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Appointed on March 23, 2018)
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
Ms. Cheng Hong
(Resigned on March 23, 2018)
Mr. Sun Jianhua
(Resigned on March 23, 2018)

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with one another.
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The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 83
to 90 of this annual report.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
October 12, 2017, Mr. He Xuan and Mr. Liang Hongze
resigned as non-executive Directors, Mr. Wu Potao and Mr.
Xu Zechang resigned as executive Directors on October
12, 2017. Mr. Han Yuewei, Ms. Ren Yuan and Ms. Fu Yanjun
entered into a new service agreement with the Company
on October 12, 2017 for a term of two years respectively.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
March 22, 2018, Ms. Cheng Hong and Mr. Sun Jianhua
resigned as independent non-executive Directors on March
23, 2018. Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company on March 23, 2018
for a term from March 23, 2018 to December 31, 2020.
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong has been appointed as a member
of Nomination Committee. Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix has
been re-designated as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Save as disclosed above, there are no other
changes to the Directors’ information as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Each of Mr. Wang Yin, Mr. Wang Yan, has entered into a
service agreement with the Group for a term of two years
commencing from November 25, 2016, respectively. Mr.
Cheng Libing has entered into a service agreement with
the Group for a term from February 1, 2018 to December
31, 2020. Each of Mr. Han Yuewei, Ms. Ren Yuan and Ms.
Fu Yanjun, has entered into a service agreement with the
Group for a term of two years commencing from October
12, 2017, respectively. However, all of the abovementioned
agreements can be terminated by either party giving to the
other party not less than one month notice in writing.
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Each of Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong and Mr. Lee Kar Chung
Felix, who are the independent non-executive Directors,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
on January 1, 2018 for a term of three years. Ms. Chiu
Kam Hing Kathy, who is an independent non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company on March 23, 2018 for a term from March 23,
2018 to December 31, 2020. Each letter of appointment
shall be terminable by giving the other party not less than
three months prior notice in writing. Pursuant to the letters
of appointment, each of Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, Mr. Lee
Kar Chung Felix and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy is entitled to
an annual Director's fee of HK$500,000, RMB240,000 and
HK$300,000 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has entered into or intends to enter into a service contract
with any member of our Group which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than the statutory compensation).

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and remuneration
payable to members of senior management by band are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report.

The remuneration of the Directors is subject to review of
the Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board,
such remuneration is determined by taking into account
of the relevant Director’'s experience, responsibilities,
workload and time commitment to the Group and the
operating results of the Group and comparable market
statistics.
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As of December 31, 2017 the Group had a total of
1,036 full-time employees (December 31, 2016: 1,010
employees). For FY2017, the staff cost (including Directors’
remuneration in the form of salaries and other benefits)
was approximately RMB282 million (FY2016: RMB240
million).

The Group ensures that the remuneration packages of its
employees remain competitive and the remuneration level
of its employees is determined on the basis of performance
with reference to the profitability of the Group, prevailing
remuneration standards in the industry and market
conditions within the general framework of the Group’s
remuneration system.

The Group has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme so as to provide incentives
or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company believes that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Yan Hua Phoenix, as the
sponsor (£8#% A) of Yan Hua Hospital Group, is entitled to
nominate members to the executive committee of the Yan
Hua Hospital Group. Our then Controlling Shareholders,
Beijing Wantong and Yan Hua Phoenix have provided a
non-voting undertaking in favor of the Group in the event
there is any conflict or competition or potential conflict
or potential competition between Yan Hua Hospital Group
and the Group, our then Controlling Shareholders, Beijing
Wantong and Yan Hua Phoenix shall procure the members
of the executive committee nominated by Yan Hua Phoenix
to abstain from voting.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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As of December 31, 2017 none of the Directors or their
respective close associates had engaged in or had any
interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

As of December 31, 2017 the interests/short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:
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ETERS

Long Positions in Shares of the Company

RAERXFRGBOEFR

Cheng Libing Beneficial owner
PX 3L EnBEA
Han Yuewei Beneficial owner
FERRE EREEA
Fu Yanjun Beneficial owner
(D32 E=RBEEA

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2017 none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

1,262,123 0.10
156,000 0.01
295,218 0.02
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The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option
Scheme as of September 30, 2013.

1.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
incentivize or reward the Eligible Participants (defined
below) for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Eligible Participants

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules,
the Board may grant options to any full-time or part-
time employees, consultants or potential employees,
consultants, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries at its sole discretion and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in
the absolute discretion of the Board, has contributed
or will contribute to our Group (collectively “Eligible
Participants”).

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from September 30, 2013, after
which time no further option will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force, and effective in all other respects to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of
any options granted prior thereto and other rights as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme and options granted prior
thereto but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.
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Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 129,667,651 Shares, being 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date (assuming that the overallotment option is
not exercised).

As at the date of this annual report, the total number
of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 129,667,651 Shares, representing 10% of
the issued Shares as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for
options

An offer of a grant shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant for a period of 14 days
from the date of offer, provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the expiry of the
effective period of the Share Option Scheme. An option
shall be deemed as has been granted to (subject to
certain restrictions in the Share Option Scheme), and
accepted by, the Eligible Participant (the “Grantee")
and taken effect upon the issuance of an exercise
notice, if the Company receives a copy of the offer
document (including the document for the acceptance
of share option) duly signed by the grantee (the “Offer
Document”), together with a remittance in favor of our
Company in the amount of HK$1.00 in consideration
for the granting of the option on or before the last date
for acceptance. The remittance is not refundable under
any circumstances and shall be deemed as payment of
part of the exercise price. Once accepted, the option is
taken as granted from the date of offer to the relevant
Grantee.
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Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

There is no general requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised. The period during which an option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (the "Option Period”) shall be the
period of time to be notified by our Board to each
Grantee as determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that such period shall not exceed 10
years from the commencement date of the vesting
period as stated in the respective Grantee's Offer
Document.

Basis of determining the subscription
price

The price per share for subscription by a Grantee
pursuant to the exercise of share options (the “Exercise
Price"”) shall be determined by the Board, but in any
event shall not be lower than the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets on
the date an option is offered (the “Offer Date”);

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

During the year ended December 31, 2017 no share
option had been granted, exercised, expired, cancelled
or lapsed and there is no outstanding share option
under the Share Option Scheme.
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The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme as
a means to recognise the contribution of and provide
incentives for the key management personnel including
Directors and senior management, employed experts and
core employees of the Group. The Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from July 7 2014 (the "Adoption Date”) on
which the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme and is
administrated by the Board and the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme.

In order to provide more flexibility in the administration and
implementation of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
resolved on May 25, 2015 to make amendments to the
terms of the Share Award Scheme and the Scheme Rules,
having retrospective effect from the Adoption Date, to the
effect that the Board may, from time to time, in its absolute
discretion, determine if the Award Shares shall be granted
to a Selected Participant with or without payment of a price
per Award Share payable by the Selected Participant (the
“Grant Price”) which shall be notified by the Board to each
Selected Participant. In determining whether the Selected
Participant shall pay a Grant Price for the Award Shares
and the amount of the Grant Price, as the case may be,
the Board shall take into consideration matters, including
but not limited to the Selected Participant’s position,
experience, years of service, performance and contribution
to the Company, its subsidiaries and/or associated entities.

The Board will implement the Share Award Scheme in
accordance with the Scheme Rules including but not limited
to providing necessary funds to the trustee for purchase of
no more than 10% of the total number of issued Shares of
the Company as at the Adoption Date with each Selected
Participant receiving not more than 1% of the total number
of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date. The Company
shall comply with the relevant Listing Rules when granting
the Award Shares. If the Award Shares are granted to the
Directors, such award shall constitute connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the Company
shall comply with the relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Since the Adoption Date of Share Award Scheme and up
to December 31, 2017 an aggregate of 12,205,216 Award
Shares were granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
subject to certain vesting criteria and conditions. As of
December 31, 2017 2,903,345 Award Shares which were
granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme remained
unvested. The following table discloses the movement
of Award Shares granted to the Selected Participants for
the year ended December 31, 2017 and outstanding as at
December 31, 2017

Number of Award Shares

Directors’ Report

EETERS

B h BT EIMRM B ER - HE2017
F12A318 - BIBRHD REN TS & £
112,205,216 @ A% fH - MEEAX AT
5RBITE RIGMHFTR - #22017F12A
318 - RIER M0 ZEYFT B H 2,903,345
KEBRODAEB - TREZREHZ
2017F12A3B IEFEEREREES HE
EREBRMDAOES - LA RPR2017F12
A31B M EARITE B, ©

RBEHEE

Directors: EE 9.42 20/07/2017
Cheng Libing R E - 84,480 (84,480 - - 9.42 - 20/07/2017
Fu Yanjun BE37 - 13,000 (13,000) - - 9.42 - 20/07/2017
Liang Hongze 232 - 76,788 (76,788) - - 9.42 - 20/07/2017
XuZechang 22 - 84,480 (84,480) - - 9.42 - 200712017
Sub-total et - 258,748 (258,748) - - -

Employees i3] 2,407,336 - (1,325,330 - 1,082,006 14.92 12.68  25/05/2015
Employees &8 2,506,003 - (1,252,997) (171,667) 1,081,339 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Employess  [BS 712,000 - (297333 - 414667 8.98 921 22/12/2015
Employees E8 548,000 - (182,667) (40,000) 325,333 8.98 - 2201212015
Employees E8 - 871,268 (871,268) - - 9.42 - 20/07/2017
Sub-total et 6,173,339 871,268  (3,929,595) (211,667) 2,903,345

Total st 6,173,339 1,130,016 (4,188,343) (211,667) 2,903,345
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The trustee for the Share Award Scheme was instructed to
purchase an aggregate of 8,000,000 Shares at the average
price of HK$10.4245 per Share on April 10, 2017 and an
aggregate of 3,000,000 Shares at the average price of
HK$10.3894 per Share on April 11, 2017 from the market.
The balance of the Shares not yet granted and held by
the trustee for the Share Award Scheme was 16,983,284
Shares as of December 31, 2017 (2016: 7,113,300).

As of December 31, 2017 the following persons (other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company)
had or were deemed or taken to have an interest and/or
short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held shareholding
AR &8 ELVE: i RAERNEE FERR LAY
%
B
China Resources Interest of a controlled 466,824,016(L)" 36.00
Company Limited corporation
(formerly known as SyEAE
China Resources
National Corporation)
hEEREBRA A
(AR BEERRARR])
Speed Key Limited Beneﬂoial owner 181,401,360(L)? 13.99
EnEBA
Xu Baorui Interest in Controlled Corporation 181,401 ,360(L)? 13.99
REn R AE RS
Commonwealth Bank of Interest of a controlled 80,863,500(L)® 6.24

Commonwealth Bank of

Australia corporation
RyEABEER

Australia

L: Long position

Note:

1.

(1) 462,913,516 of these shares are directly held by CRH (Phoenix
Healthcare) Limited. CRH (Phoenix Healthcare) Limited is wholly owned by
China Resources Healthcare Group Limited. China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited is wholly owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited. CRH
(Healthcare) Limited is wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited is wholly
owned by CRC Bluesky Limited. CRC Bluesky Limited is wholly owned
by China Resources Co., Limited. China Resources Co., Limited is wholly
owned by China Resources Company Limited; (2) 3,910,500 of these
shares are directly held by Commotra Company Limited which is wholly
owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.

These shares are held by Speed Key Limited of which 95% interests are
held by Mr. Xu Baorui as at December 31, 2017 However, Speed Key
Limited had disposed all the shares of the Company and ceased to be a
substantial shareholder of the Company and ceased to hold any shares in
the Company on January 25, 2018.

(1) These shares are directly held by First State Investments (Hong
Kong) Ltd, which is wholly owned by First State Investment Managers
(Asia) Limited. First State Investment Managers (Asia) Limited is wholly
owned by Colonial First State Group Ltd, which is wholly owned by
Commonwealth Insurance Holdings Limited. Commonwealth Insurance
Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Colonial Holding Company Limited,
which is wholly owned by Commonwealth Bank of Australia. (2) 5,516,500
of these shares are directly held by First State Investment Management
(UK) Limited, which is wholly owned by SI Holdings Limited. SI Holdings
Limited is wholly owned by First State Investment (UK Holdings) Limited.
First State Investment (UK Holdings) Limited is wholly owned by Colonial
First State Group Ltd.

(E 3% 5462,913,516fR IR R EH KB (BlLE
BE) ARAREEFE - EHEE (AEBRE)
BERARBEHEREEBRABIZEESR - E
HBEREEEARARNBEBSEE (BE) BRARA
2EMA - FHEE (BE ARAHEND (L
E) BRARZEAHR - EH (£E) ARAAHA
CRC Bluesky Limited® & # & ° CRC Bluesky
LimitedBEBRHARARZEHES - EHERNE
RARATHRAEBRERARZEREE  QHPZS
3,910,600 RN BEEERAREERE  r MAaE
BRARHER (£E) BRARZEHRSE -

ZEW ) HRSpeed Key Limitedi A - MH20174
12A31H » Speed Key Limitedd %GB EAHH
95% 1%  SATM + Speed Key Limited 272201841
RA25BEEMBARRRIRO R TBEARATNEE
IRE - BETEIFAERARDRRG -

(1):Z % P& {7 B First State Investments (Hong Kong)
LtdE ## 8 + MFirst State Investments (Hong
Kong) LtdEFirst State Investment Managers
(Asia) Limited® & # A - First State Investment
Managers (Asia) LimitedfColonial First State
Group Ltd2&# % - ifiColonial First State Group
Ltdfg Commonwealth Insurance Holdings Limited
% & # A - Commonwealth Insurance Holdings
Limitedfd Colonial Holding Company Limited%
&7 » MColonial Holding Company Limitedf
Commonwealth Bank of AustraliaZ2&#E ° (2)E
AR 2% %£5,516,5000% f% 1 FFirst State Investment
Management (UK) Limited®& # # & - MFirst
State Investment Management (UK) LimitedfSI
Holdings LimitedZ2&# %A ° S| Holdings Limited
FHFirst State Investment (UK Holdings) Limited
2 & ¥ - First State Investment (UK Holdings)
Limitedf Colonial First State Group LtdZ &% A °
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2017 the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Save as the details as set out in the paragraphs headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or its Associated Corporations’, “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, at no time during the year ended December
31, 2017 any right to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate has been granted to Directors or
their respective spouse or children under the age of 18,
and none of any such right has been exercised by them;
and none of the Company and any of its subsidiaries has
been a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or
their respective spouse or children under the age of 18, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Yan Hua IOT Agreement

Beijing Phoenix, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the hospital management right and
investment framework agreement dated February 1, 2008
and the hospital investment management agreement dated
February 4, 2008, both of which were supplemented in April
2008, December 2010, June 2011, June 2013, July 2013,
September 2013 and October 2013, with Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital Group (collectively, the “Yan Hua IOT
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Yan Hua IOT Agreement,
Beijing Phoenix has agreed to (i) pay Yan Hua Phoenix an
amount of RMB72 million; and (ii) invest a total of RMB150
million by tranches into Yan Hua Hospital Group prior to
2015, in exchange for the right to manage Yan Hua Hospital,
to receive the management fees from Yan Hua Hospital
Group until July 17 2055, and to support the long-term
development of Yan Hua Hospital Group. The term of the
Yan Hua IOT Agreement is from February 1, 2008 to July
17, 2055, which is subject to approval by the independent
Shareholders of the Group every three years.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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The annual caps of the Yan Hua |OT Agreement for the
three financial years ending December 31, 2018 were
renewed and approved at the extraordinary general meeting
on October 31, 2016. The renewed annual caps for the
management fees and the investment repayment under
the Yan Hua 10T Agreement for the financial year ended
December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Directors’ Report

EETERS

HALIOTH 2 & £2018%F 128318 1IF =
ERFEERNFE LREMR20165F10H
STHBITHRRFRIAS &S &Kt
o FALIOTH & 1B T Bl E£2017F12A
MBI HREEEEE MIRERENK
EHFEELEROT

Annual cap on the management fees EEBFE LR RMB47.3 million
ARMATIZEETT
Annual cap on the investment repayment WEREFE LR RMB3.6 million
AREE36BEET
Total et RMB50.9 million

ARBEB09EHE T

During the year ended December 31, 2017 the amounts
of the management fees and the investment repayment
under the Yan Hua IOT Agreement paid/payable by Yan Hua
Hospital Group were RMB36.3 million and RMB3.6 million,
respectively.

The sponsor for Yan Hua Hospital is Yan Hua Phoenix,
which is controlled by Ms. Xu Jie, the former director who
resigned on November 25, 2016. Speed Key Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company during the financial
year ended December 31, 2017, was then controlled by Mr.
Xu Baorui, the father of Ms. Xu Jie. Thus, Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital Group were connected persons of
the Company during the financial year ended December 31,
2017

HZE2017F12A31HILFE - (LR
SEBRERLIOTHHAEN ENERES
ARFREREND AARKIIEET
MAREIEEBTT °
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Pt EAKRAREE2017F12A318 1
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Yan Hua PMM Framework Agreement

Beijing Wanrong, Beijing Jiayi, Beijing Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital Group entered into the pharmaceutical,
medical device and medical consumables sales framework
agreement (the “Original Yan Hua PMM Framework
Agreement”) on November 6, 2013. Beijing Wanrong
and Beijing Jiayi are both wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company. On November 5, 2016, Beijing Wanrong,
Beijing Jiayi, Beijing Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital Group
entered into the supplemental agreement in relation to
the extension of the term of the Original Yan Hua PMM
Framework Agreement (the “Supplemental Yan Hua PMM
Framework Agreement’ together with the Original Yan
Hua PMM Framework Agreement, the “Yan Hua PMM
Framework Agreement”) on July 8, 2016 to extend the
term of the Original Yan Hua PMM Framework Agreement
until December 31, 2018. The annual caps of the Yan Hua
PMM Framework Agreement for the three financial years
ending December 31, 2018 were renewed and approved
at the extraordinary general meeting on October 31, 2016.
The renewed annual cap for the Yan Hua PMM Framework
Agreement for the financial year ended December 31, 2017
is RMB570.7 million.

Pursuant to the Yan Hua PMM Framework Agreement,
Beijing Wanrong and Beijing Jiayi have agreed to supply,
and Yan Hua Hospital Group has agreed to purchase,
pharmaceutical, medical device and medical consumables
(the "PMM Items”) on a recurring basis. Under such sales
arrangement, Yan Hua Hospital Group places purchase
orders for PMM Items to Beijing Wanrong and Beijing
Jiayi from time to time and Beijing Wanrong and Beijing
Jiayi fulfill the orders by selling the products to Yan Hua
Hospital Group at a price equal to the "bidding price” of
the products fixed by the PRC regulators or the prevailing
market price.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the amount of
the purchase orders under the Yan Hua PMM Framework
Agreement paid/payable by Yan Hua Hospital Group was
RMB256.1 million.

The sponsor for Yan Hua Hospital is Yan Hua Phoenix,
which is controlled by Ms. Xu Jie, the former Director who
resigned on November 25, 2016. Speed Key Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company during the financial
year ended December 31, 2017 was controlled by Mr. Xu
Baorui, the father of Ms. Xu Jie. Thus, Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital Group are connected persons of the
Company during the financial year ended December 31,
2017

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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New CR PMM Framework Agreement

The Company and China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited ("CRH") entered into the pharmaceuticals, medical
device and medical consumables supply framework
agreement on October 5, 2016 (the “Original CR PMM
Framework Agreement”). As the annual caps under the
Original CR PMM Framework Agreement were not sufficient
for the expected transaction amounts for the purchase of
PMM Items from CRH for the years ending December 31,
2017 and December 31, 2018, the Company proposed to
increase the annual caps for the purchase of PMM ltems by
setting new annual caps for the three financial years ended
December 31, 2019 under a new framework agreement
dated July 21, 2017 (the "New CR PMM Framework
Agreement”). The New CR PMM Framework Agreement
and the proposed annual caps for New CR PMM Framework
Agreement were approved at the extraordinary general
meeting on September 4, 2017 The renewed annual caps
for the purchase of PMM ltems under the New CR PMM
Framework Agreement for the three financial years ended
December 31, 2019 are as follows:
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Annual cap

RMB970 million  RMB1,500 million  RMB1,710 million
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Pursuant to the New CR PMM Framework Agreement,
CRH may, through its subsidiaries, supply PMM Items to
the Group and its sponsored hospitals from time to time.
The Group and its sponsored hospitals may place purchase
orders for PMM Items with CRH or its subsidiaries from
time to time and CRH or its subsidiaries may sell the
products to the Group and its sponsored hospitals at a price
in accordance with the agreed pricing policy. The details
of each purchase order, including price, payment terms
and delivery arrangement, are to be separately agreed in
accordance with the principles laid down in the New CR
PMM Framework Agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the amount of
the purchase orders under the Original CR PMM Framework
Agreement and the New CR PMM Framework Agreement
paid/payable by the Group was RMB566.1 million.

CRH is a controlling shareholder and a connected person of
the Company.

CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement

The Company and China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co.,
Ltd ("CR Bank"”) entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement (the “"CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement”) on July 21, 2017 Pursuant to the CR Bank
Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Group and its
sponsored hospitals may place deposits with CR Bank
and use other financial services and products of CR Bank,
including (but not limited to) the provision of letters of
credit, guarantee, loans with collaterals, bill of exchange
and discount services, assignment of receivables, RMB
and foreign exchange settlement, entrusted loans and
collaterals, financial and cash management services,
financial advisory services and other financial services and
products as agreed by the parties. The term of the CR Bank
Strategic Cooperation Agreement is from July 21, 2017 to
December 31, 2019.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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The annual caps for the principal amount and interest in
relation to financial products provided by CR Bank and the
service fees and commissions payable by the Group and
its sponsored hospitals for other financial products and
services to be provided by CR Bank during the term of the
CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement for the three
financial years ended December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Directors’ Report
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2019F 12 A3MH I = AV BRFEEBE
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Maximum daily deposit amount FRNERRTHNEERS RMB300 million  RMB300 million  RMB300 million
placed with CR Bank (inclusive of FRER (BREUNE) " ARK300HET ARKI00EET ARKI00EET
interest receivable)”

Maximum daily principal amount and 74 B3 E R 1T TR LAY RMB200 million ~ RMB200 million ~ RMB200 million
interest in relation to financial PREMNEARRASE ARB00BET ARB200EET AR®2005ET
products to be provided by CR Bank!! &% & F| 81

Maximum service fees and ERRITETRED RMB3 million RMB3 million RMB3 million
commissions for other financial Hiv 2 BERRREH AR®IEET  ARB3IBEET  ARKIBER
products and services to be BehEghEs
provided by CR Bank

Note: BiEE

(1) The above maximum daily deposit amount or daily principal amount
and interest is applicable for each day during the relevant period, and is
calculated on an individual basis remaining as of the end of each day,
without aggregating the amount incurred on the days before.

In 2017 the actual highest amount of the Group and the
Sponsored Hospitals' daily deposit balance (inclusive of
interest receivable) and daily principal amount and interest
in relation to financial products to be provided by CR Bank
amounted to RMB100.5 million and RMB183.1 million,
respectively. In 2017, the service fees and commissions for
other financial products and services provided by CR Bank
were nil.

CR Bank is an associate of a controlling shareholder of
the Company and therefore a connected person of the
Company.
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CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement

The Company and China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd.
("CRTrust"”) entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
(the “CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement”) on July
21, 2017. Pursuant to the CR Trust Strategic Cooperation
Agreement, the Group and its sponsored hospitals may use
the services and products provided by CR Trust, including
(but not limited to) cash management, asset management,
custodian trust loan services, assignment of receivables,
advisory services in relation to redemptory monetary capital
for sale, and other financial or trust services and products
as agreed by the parties. The term of the CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement is from July 21, 2017 to December
31, 2019.

The annual caps for the principal amount and interest in
relation to financial products provided by CR Trust and the
service fees and commissions payable by the Group and
its sponsored hospitals for other financial products and
services to be provided by CR Trust during the term of the
CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement are as follows:

ERETESEGE
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HERBHRofAERETRENRS
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EERE TEETERRS  #EREWK
KB HEARECHEERBNZLA
RS EEBRETHN T HENEMmE R ET
R NEMR- - EHETHBEIERED
HAMR A20179F7H218 £2019412 A31
E| °

REBEAEBAFHEDRRA > BH
EHEARENESRERNASETERK
MERAEENERRERLAERE
AR TIRENE M S BEMRRBEN
MR E LB FRE LRAT

Maximum daily principal amount and % B{E3E# PRI
interest in relation to financial PREMNEARS
products to be provided by CR Trust A& %8 R F| 80

Financial Financial Financial

year ended year ending year ending
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2017 2018 2019
Hz2017F HZz2018%F #z2019F
12A31H 1k 12A318 1k 12A31H 1
HRER BRERE MREFE
RMB100 million ~ RMB100 million ~ RMB100 million

ARBI00EET ARKI00BET ARBI00BET

Maximum service fees and EBEIRMEN RMB3 million RMB3 million RMB3 million
commissions for other financial EMeRERRRE ARBIFET ARBIBET AREBIFET
products and services provided NE=sREELAS
by CR Trust

Note: B3 -
(1) The above maximum daily principal amount and interest is applicable for (1) LiiBA&EsAecBELMSBAREERRNS

each day during the relevant period, and is calculated on an individual
basis remaining as of the end of each day, without aggregating the amount

incurred on the days before.
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In 2017 the Group and the Sponsored Hospitals did not
have any balance of financial products provided by CR
Trust. In 2017 the service fees and commissions for other
financial products and services provided by CR Trust were
nil.

CR Trust is an associate of a controlling shareholder of
the Company and therefore a connected person of the
Company.

Annual review of continuing connected
transactions

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 44
to 51 of the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that for the year ended December 31, 2017:

(i) these transactions were entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) these transactions were entered into either on normal
commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

(iii) these transactions were entered into according to the
agreements governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related-party transactions
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report fall within the scope
of discloseable connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The
connected and continuing connected transactions
of the Group are in compliance with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

No Director nor any connected entity of a Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the holding company
of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year
ended December 31, 2017

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” above, the Company entered into the
CR PMM Framework Agreement with CR Holdings, a
controlling shareholder of the Company, on October 5,
2016 and the New CR PMM Framework Agreement on
July 21, 2017 Save for the aforementioned, no controlling
shareholders or its subsidiary had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance,
whether for the provision of services or otherwise, to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended December
31, 2017

Other than the service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Directors, the Company has not entered into any
contract with any individuals, firms or corporate entities to
manage or regulate the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company during the year ended December
31, 2017
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
({2 £ & 3 £ /8 8)) of the Company in accordance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on
November 4, 2013. Its primary responsibilities include
serving as a focal point for communication among other
Directors, the external auditor and the internal auditor
(where an internal audit function exists) as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting,
risk management and internal controls, external and
internal audits and such other financial and accounting
matters as the Board determines from time to time,
assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the
Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated
by the Board.

As at December 31, 2017 and up to the publication date
of this annual report, the Audit Committee currently
comprises one non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Yan and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Kwong Kwok Kong (Chairman) and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing
Kathy (appointed on March 23, 2018); and Ms. Cheng Hong
(resigned on March 23, 2018) and Mr. Sun Jianhua (resigned
on March 23, 2018). The Audit Committee, together with
the management of the Company, has reviewed the
accounting principles, accounting standards and methods
adopted by the Company, discussed the matters concerning
risk management and internal control, auditing and financial
reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2017
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
and formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings ((& = # F M 8))) of the Company in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG
Code on November 4, 2013. The Remuneration Committee
is mainly responsible for: (i) making recommendations to
the Board on the policy and structure for Directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (ii) making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration package of Directors and
senior management; and (iii) reviewing and evaluating
the performance-based remuneration and ensure that no
Directors or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

As at December 31, 2017 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Remuneration Committee currently
consisted of one executive Director, Mr. Han Yuewei, and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chiu
Kam Hing Kathy (Chairman) (appointed on March 23, 2018)
and Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix; and Mr. Sun Jianhua (resigned
on March 23, 2018), and Mr. Wu Potao (resigned on October
12, 2017).

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
November 4, 2013. The Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible for: (i) identifying individuals suitably qualified
as potential Board members and selecting or making
recommendation to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (ii) reviewing the structure, size
and diversity of the Board and the required skill mix as well
as making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to ensure the implementation of the Company’s
strategic goal; (iii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
qualification of senior management nominated by the Chief
Executive Officer, reported to the Board for consideration
and adoption.
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As at December 31, 2017 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Nomination Committee consisted
of one Executive Director, Mr. Cheng Libing, and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar
Chung Felix (Chairman) (redesignated on March 23, 2018)
and Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (appointed on March 23, 2018);
and Ms. Cheng Hong (resigned on March 23, 2018), and Mr.
Liang Hongze (resigned on October 12, 2017).

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as rules governing dealings
by Directors in the listed securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed
that all members of the Board complied with the Model
Code during the year ended December 31, 2017. As senior
managers, executives and officers who, because of their
offices in the Company, may possess inside information
of the Company, they shall comply with the provision of
the Model Code. To the best knowledge of the Company,
no incident of non-compliance to the Model Code has
been committed by such employees during the year ended
December 31, 2017
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For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, May 31,
2018, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, May 28, 2018 to Thursday, May 31,
2018, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify as members
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting,
investors should lodge all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Friday, May 25, 2018.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, June 14, 2018 to Tuesday, June 19,
2018, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday, June
13, 2018.

The full text of the Corporate Governance Report is set out
on pages 58 to 82 of this annual report.

During the year ended December 31, 2017 neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Based on the information publicly available and to the
best of the Board's knowledge, information and belief, the
Company has always maintained sufficient public float as at
the date of this annual report.

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Subsequent Event”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 20 of this annual report.

The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditor of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2017. A resolution will be proposed for approval by
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 22, 2018
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The Board is dedicated to establishing a sound corporate
governance system for ensuring the formality and
transparency of the procedures while safeguarding the
interests of the Shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in
the CG Code as its own code of corporate governance
and confirms that it has complied with all material code
provisions, save for certain deviations as described below
and most of the recommended best practices under the CG
Code during the year ended December 31, 2017

The Company will review and commit in making necessary
arrangement to comply with all the code provisions under
the CG Code and the rising expectations of Shareholders
and investors.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors complied with the
Model Code during the year ended December 31, 2017
Senior management, executives and staff who, because of
their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provision of the Model Code and the Company confirmed
that there was no incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by such employees during the year ended December
31, 2017
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The Directors are accountable to all Shareholders for their
leadership and supervision over the Group’s operation,
and are committed to achieving the goal of increasing
Shareholders’ value.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, and changes to the Board members during the
year ended December 31, 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Yan

Mr. He Xuan (Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Mr. Liang Hongze (Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Libing (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Han Yuewei (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on October 12, 2017)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on October 12, 2017)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy General Manager)
(Appointed on October 12, 2017)

Mr. Wu Potao (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Mr. Xu Zechang (Executive General Manager)
(Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy (Appointed on March 23, 2018)
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

Ms. Cheng Hong (Resigned on March 23, 2018)

Mr. Sun Jianhua (Resigned on March 23, 2018)
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None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
83 to 90 of this annual report. The list of the Directors
(by category) is also disclosed in all of the corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Board
complied at all times with the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board), of which at least one Director has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

During the year ended December 31, 2017 the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and judgment to the Board. Through
active participation at Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all the non-executive
Directors have made various contributions to the effective
development of the Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover

to protect Directors from possible legal action against
them.
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The Board is responsible for the performance of the
functions of corporate governance. For the year ended
December 31, 2017, the Board has performed the functions
set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Wang Yin while the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Han Yuewei. The
Company has complied with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code which stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should not be performed by the same individual.

Under the leadership of the Chairman and the vice
Chairman, the Board is responsible for the approval and
supervision of the Group's general development strategy,
the review and approval of the annual budget and business
plans, the consent of material investment projects related
to the Group’'s business development, the review on the
Group’s performance and the supervision of the work
of the management, and ensures that the Board acts in
the best interests of the Group, operates effectively and
performs the necessary duties, as well as discusses all the
significant and appropriate issues of the Group's business
in a timely manner. All the Directors are entitled to propose
the inclusion of any item in the agenda of the Board
meetings for appropriate discussion. The Chairman, and the
Vice Chairman, have appointed the secretary of the meeting
to draft the Board meetings’ agendas. Under the assistance
of the executive Directors and the secretary of the Board,
the Chairman will ensure that all the Directors are provided
with sufficient and reliable information in a timely manner
required for necessary analysis based on their expertise.

The Chief Executive Officer, has delegated sufficient
authority for the operation and management of the
Group’s business to the executive Directors and other
senior management members, who are in-charge of the
daily management of the Group in every aspect, including
implementation of the Board’s resolutions unanimously,
and be accountable to the Chief Executive Officer for the
operations of various aspects of the Group’s business,
while the Chief Executive Officer shall be accountable to
the Board for the Group’s operations as a whole.
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The responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In order to enhance its corporate governance structure,
the Company has formulated the “Rules and Procedures
for Board Meetings" The “Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings” specifies that the Operation and Development
Committee (& =HERZEZES) is composed of executive
Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Deputy General
Managers, all being called together by the Chief Executive
Officer. As the approval organization for the Company's daily
operational management, the committee is responsible for
organizing and managing the Company’s daily operations
and accountable to the Board.

According to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, regular
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year ended
December 31, 2017, there were only two regular Board
meetings held to review and consider the interim results
and the annual results, respectively, as the Company is not
required to announce its quarterly results under the Listing
Rules. Eight other Board meetings were held during the
year ended December 31, 2017

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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The Chairman also held a meeting with the non-executive FRN - EBEFENMEFEHNTESE (BEB
Directors (including independent non-executive Director) FEHITES) BT T RN WEHITESY
without presence of the executive Directors during the BHE% o

year.

For the year ended December 31, 2017 the Board has #EZE2017F12A31HIEEE2E &%
convened and held ten Board meetings. Attendance records CEARTERTIONESTE SR - EF
of the Directors at the Board meetings are set out as NESeoxxtEaoagsEy T
follows:

Non-executive Directors: FHITES

Mr. Wang Yin (Chairman) TEEE (BEFR) 10/10

Mr. Wang Yan TERE 10/10

Mr. He Xuan (Resigned on October 12, 2017) BhedAE (R2017F108 12 F(E) 9/9

Mr. Liang Hongze (Resigned on October 12, 2017) RHUR LA (R2017F 10512 H#E(T) 8/9

Executive Directors: BITES:

Mr. Cheng Libing (Vice Chairman) R REE (BEER) 10/10

Mr. Han Yuewei (Chief Executive Officer) BRELE (THAEE) 0/0
(Appointed on October 12, 2017) (B2017F10812HEEZT)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) E2ut (BEAKE) 0/0
(Appointed on October 12, 2017) (B2017F 10812 HEEZF)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy General Manager) NEBRL (F/#EAEHE) 0/0
(Appointed on October 12, 2017) (B2017F107 12 HEEZE)

Mr. Wu Potao (Chief Executive Officer) RMELE (7THAEH) 9/9
(Resigned on October 12, 2017) (R2017F108 12 HEFHT)

Mr. Xu Zechang (Executive General Manager) BB RE (B77445HE) 8/9
(Resigned on October 12, 2017) (R2017%F 108120 (E)

Independent Non-executive Directors: BUYFHTES :

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB e S A 10/10

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy (Appointed on March 23, 2018) & Bl &+ (B201843 523 A#EHEZF) 0/0

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRBEAE 10/10

Ms. Cheng Hong (Resigned on March 23, 2018) Rt (R201843 23 HEEEHT) 9/10

Mr. Sun Jianhua (Resigned on March 23, 2018) BEELE (R2018F3H23HEFT) 9/10
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Notice of regular Board meetings had been served to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend.

For regular Board and committee meetings, all agendas,
meeting papers, together with all applicable, complete
and reliable statistics will be sent to all the Directors or
committees at least three days before a meeting is held. All
Directors may propose any business to be included in the
agenda of the Board or committee meetings and contact
the company secretary to ensure full compliance with all of
the Board's procedures and applicable regulations.

In general, the senior management members shall attend
all the regular Board meetings and, if necessary, other
Board and committee meetings to advise on the Group’s
business development, financial and accounting matters,
statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate governance
and risk management as well as other significant issues.
The Board may, if appropriate, authorize the Directors to
seek independent and professional advice at the expense
of the Group. Matters discussed and resolved at Board
meetings will be recorded in detail by the Board secretary
who shall prepare and file the minutes or resolutions.
Generally, draft minutes of Board meeting shall be issued
to the Directors within reasonable time for their comments
after such meeting is held, and the final version will be
open for inspections by the Directors.

The Articles of Association contains provision requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or their associates have a material interest
and this provision has always been complied with.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but no less than one-third) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill casual vacancy shall
hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company and for any Director appointed as an addition to
the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election.

Any other appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Directors will be timely disclosed to the
Shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his
resignation.

Each of the non-executive Directors was engaged on a
service contract or letter of appointment for a fixed term
and shall be subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years.

The Group has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended December 31, 2017 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management
of the Company, comprising all Directors and the Chief
Financial Officer, by band for the year ended December 31,
2017 are set out below:
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General Meetings

During the year ended December 31, 2017 the Company
has convened and held one annual general meeting
("AGM") and one extraordinary general meetings (“EGM").
Attendance records of the Directors at the general

meetings are set out as follows:

BRERE

BRETINT

HE2017F12A31HIEFE - AARE
BRAMBIT-ARRAFRE ([REA
FRE]) UER—RABERERFRRE ([IRE
FRAE) BEENRERSZHFER

Non-executive Directors: FHTES:

Mr. Wang Yin (Chairman) THEE (EFR) 71 0/1

Mr. Wang Yan TERE Al 11

Mr. He Xuan (Resigned on October 12, 2017) BheskE (R2017F10712 HEHF) 171 0/1

Mr. Liang Hongze (Resigned on October 12, 2017) RABT A (R2017F 10512 HEHT) 171 0/1

Executive Directors: BHiTEE:

Mr. Cheng Libing (Vice Chairman) KILEEE (FIEFR) 71 il

Mr. Han Yuewei (Chief Executive Officer) BRELE (TTHAEE) 0/0 0/0
(Appointed on October 12, 2017) (R2017F 105 12HEZ(E)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) TELt (BEAFE) 0/0 0/0
(Appointed on October 12, 2017) (R2017F10512HEZ(T)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy General Manager) NRBL (F/4E4EE) 0/0 0/0
(Appointed on October 12, 2017) (R2017F105 12 HEZ(E)

Mr. Wu Potao (Chief Executive Officer) RINELRAE (7B 4EF) 11 171
(Resigned on October 12, 2017) (R2017%F 10412 AFHT)

Mr. Xu Zechang (Executive General Manager) RBE L (H7TAEAEHE) 171 11
(Resigned on October 12, 2017) (R2017F108 12 HEHT)

Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEHTES:

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BRI A& 71 0N

Mr. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy Helat 0/0 0/0
(Appointed on March 23, 2018) (R2018%3 23 HEZ(T)

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRBEE 171 Al

Ms. Cheng Hong (Resigned on March 23, 2018)
Mr. Sun Jianhua (Resigned on March 23, 2018)

BA L+ (R201843 523 HEHT)
BREELE (R201843H23A5F)

A
A

171
171

RAF2018F R A F K HR20185F
5A31H (EHM) 817 - RRBAFKRE
BEBRABRRBAFAGH &R E20EE
EAFETRE -

The 2018 annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on Thursday, May 31, 2018. The notice of the annual
general meeting will be sent to the Shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the annual general meeting.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2017



On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the business and operations
of the Group and is fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations as being a Director as well as the compliance
practice under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are kept updated on the
statutory and regulatory development and changes in the
business and the market so as to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a director of a listed company or further enhanced their
professional development by the way of attending training
courses or reading relevant materials for the year ended
December 31, 2017
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A summary of the training received by the Directors for the
year ended December 31, 2017 according to the records

provided by the Directors is as follows:

T -

REBEEEMEENE  BE20175F12
ABIBLEFE  EFMEXBIZHME

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Yan

Mr. He Xuan (Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Mr. Liang Hongze (Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Libing (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Han Yuewei (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on October 12, 2017)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on October 12, 2017)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy General Manager)
(Appointed on October 12, 2017)

Mr. Wu Potao (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Mr. Xu Zechang (Executive General Manager)
(Resigned on October 12, 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy (Appointed on March 23, 2018)

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
Ms. Cheng Hong (Resigned on March 23, 2018)
Mr. Sun Jianhua (Resigned on March 23, 2018)

FPTES !

TEEE (BEER)

TEEAE

BIeRE (R2017F105 128 #EEF)
RACRT A (R2017F 10512 H#EEE)

HITES:

KILELE (FIEFR)

WREB LA (7THAEH)
(B2017F10/12H#EEZ(TE)

TRzt (BEHHE)
(2017108 12HEEZT)

B L (G/4E4EHE)
(B2017E10/12H#HEZ(TE)

RIVBEYE (TTHAER)
(R20174105 12 HEFHE)

WEE KA (H7THAHE)
(R20174108 12 HEEE)

BUFHTES:
BEYLE
WeWZt (8201843523 EZE(F)

FREELE
A+ (KR20184E3 523 HEFE)
BREELE (R201843 523 AEEF)
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The Board has established the Nomination Committee
on November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one
Executive Director, Mr. Cheng Libing, and two independent
non-executvie Driectors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
(Chairman) (redesignated on March 23, 2018) and Mr.
Kwong Kwok Kong (appointed on March 23, 2018); and Ms.
Cheng Hong (resigned in March 23, 2018) and Mr. Liang
Hongze (resigned on October 12, 2017). Majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, identifying appropriate and qualified individuals
to become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

To comply with the provisions in the CG Code on board
diversity which became effective on September 1, 2013,
the Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of
Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out a
number of factors which the Nomination Committee would
consider in reviewing and assessing the Board composition.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition
and makes recommendations of changes to the
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
would consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity set
out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
communication styles, interpersonal skills, functional
expertise, problem solving skills, professional qualifications,
knowledge and industry and regional experience and other
qualities in reviewing and assessing the composition of the
Board and all appointments to the Board will be based on
merits and will take into account of factors based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs from time
to time.
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The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis (which will include a review on the
effectiveness of the policy), discuss any required changes
with the Board and make recommendation of revision to
the Board Diversity Policy for consideration and approval.
The Nomination Committee has been provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duty. When necessary,
the Nomination Committee will seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform
its responsibilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Nomination
Committee has convened two meetings to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the
committees and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, considering the qualifications of
the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the annual
general meeting and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors. The particulars of the
attendance of the Nomination Committee are set forth as
follows:

REZEEHEHNRTEZTEZ TR
R(EPEBERIZBEORR) &
EXEmIMNMTEONEY REFE
EeZEBRRAESTSRERZE - AU
HEEBLHALE REZEGCERHER
WMERANBITERE MBEFE - 1BA
ZEERSRBAVEXERNETER
% BRBARARE -

HZE2017F12A31BEFE - IREZ 8
CEAAMASEUARTESERES
SRR BAEREKKE N RBILIE
WITEE 2B ERERITESHAR
RAFASERET AR EERES
SLRESE - REZECHFEFBHT
I

Chairman: FE:

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix (Redesignated on March 23, 2018) ZFRIEEH (R201843 523 H 1) 2/2
Ms. Cheng Hong (Resigned on March 23, 2018) RAI L+ (KR201843 H23 H#EEHE) 2/2
Members: RE :

Mr. Cheng Libing (Appointed on October 12, 2017) R E (B2017F 10512 HEEZT) 0/0
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (Appointed on March 23, 2018) BB E (B2018F3F23HHEEZ(T) 0/0
Mr. Liang Hongze (Resigned on October 12, 2017) BASR G A (R2017F108 12 HEFHT) 11

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2017



Remuneration Committee

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee
on November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one
executive Director, Mr. Han Yuewei, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Chairman) (appointed on March 23, 2018) and Mr. Lee Kar
Chung Felix; and Mr. Sun Jianhua (resigned on March 23,
2018) and Mr. Wu Potao (resigned on October 12, 2017).
Majority of the members are independent non-executive
Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing and formulating policies in respect
of remuneration structure for all Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board
for its consideration.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Remuneration Committee has convened four meetings to
review the remuneration policy for all Directors and senior
management and service contracts of newly appointed
Directors. The particulars of the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee are set forth as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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FMEE®
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Chairman: FE:

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy (Appointed on March 23, 2018)  #& W%+ (B201843 /523 A EZF) 0/0
Mr. Sun Jianhua (Resigned on March 23, 2018) BEELE (R2018F3H23H EFT) 4/4
Members: BB :

Mr. Han Yuewei (Appointed on October 12, 2017) BRERE (B2017F10712 HHEEZ(T) 0/0
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TREEAE 4/4
Mr. Wu Potao (Resigned on October 12, 2017) RIBERAE (R2017F108 12 HEFHT) 3/3
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On November 4, 2013, the Board has established the
Audit Committee currently consisted of one non-executive
Director, Mr. Wang Yan and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (Chairman); and
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy (appointed on March 23, 2018);
and Ms. Cheng Hong (resigned on March 23, 2018) and
Mr. Sun Jianhua (resigned on March 23, 2018). Majority
of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
The Board considered that the members of the Audit
Committee possess sufficient professional knowledge and
experience of accounting and financial management for the
performance of their responsibilities.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out
in its terms of reference. In view of the amendments to
the CG Code effective for the accounting period beginning
on January 1, 2016, the Group adopted a revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee on January 18, 2016 in
order to comply with certain changes relating to the risk
management and internal control section of the CG Code.
Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal point
for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time
to time, assisting the Board in providing an independent
review on the effectiveness of the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing
the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices
and performing other duties and responsibilities as
designated by the Board.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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During the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Audit Committee held four meetings to discharge its
responsibilities and review the Group’s annual and interim
results, continuing connected transactions, reporting and
compliance procedures, reports from the management on
the Group's risk management and internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control function
and procedures and also the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The particulars of the attendance of the Audit
Committee are set forth as follows:
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B E2017F12A31BLtEE Bk %
BEgERTHAEENBTERELSE
MASEFERPHES BFEAHL
% BEREGREF BEEEEHEAS
EEREERADELFNE AEBRA
RSP B R A2 2 B R 2 R LA KB
EINEZEA BREESLRABH
AT

Chairman: EE

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB o 4/4
Members: RE :

Mr. Wang Yan TERE 3/4
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy (Appointed on March 23, 2018)  #& B4+ (5201843523 A#EEZF) 0/0
Ms. Cheng Hong (Resigned on March 23, 2018) RA L+t (R2018%F3 523 H#FT) 4/4
Mr. Sun Jianhua (Resigned on March 23, 2018) BEFERAE (R2018F3 F23HEFT) 4/4

Appointment and Remuneration of
External Auditor

During the year ended December 31, 2017 the total fee
paid/payable to the external auditors of the Group in respect
of audit and non-audit services is RMB3,510,000, including
the annual audit service fee payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu amounted to RMB2,950,000.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor. Such
appointment, re-appointment and removal are subject to
the approval by the Board and the general meetings of the

Company by the Shareholders.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Group
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the
independent auditor’s report from pages 147 to 152 of this
annual report.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2017 which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as well as the results and

cash flow during that year.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements are
met and applies appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and makes judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept so that the Group could
prepare financial statements in accordance with statutory
requirements and the Group’s accounting policies. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The risk management and internal control systems have
been designed to safeguard the assets of the Group, to
assure proper maintenance of accounting records, and
to ensure the compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

The Board's annual review has ensured the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,

internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems throughout the Group which includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and is
designed to ensure the proper application of accounting
standard and the provision of reliable financial data for
internal use and for publication, as well as to secure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
system is developed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
omission and to manage, but not fully eliminate, the risks
of operational systems failure and the risks of the Group'’s
failure in meeting the standards. The Board will review the
risk management and internal control systems on an on-
going basis.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and oversight of the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The management has reported and confirmed to
the Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control.
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The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems have been developed with the following content,
features and processes:

Content

Risk management of the Company mainly includes control
of environment, risk assessments, control of activities,
information and communication, and supervision.

Control of environment establishes the Company's
risk management philosophy and overall attitude in
risk management, influencing staff's risk awareness. It
serves as the basis of other elements and safeguards the
effectiveness of risk management. Control of environment
includes control of professional ethics, staff competence,
management philosophy and business style, organizational
structure, distribution of authority and responsibilities,
human resources policies, the Board and the Audit
Committee as well as anti-fraud.

Risk assessments refer to the process of identifying and
analyzing risks that may affect the achievement of goals,
including four basic processes namely goal development,
risk identification, risk analysis and risk response.

Control of activities represents the necessary measures
to enable consistent execution of the directives of the
Company’s management in order to prevent and circumvent
risks, including approval, authorization, investigation,
verification, evaluation of operating results, asset
preservation measures and division of responsibilities.

Information and communication refers to internal and
external information required for risk management which
shall be identified, obtained and conveyed timely in a
certain form such that staff can perform their duties.

Supervision is the process of ongoing inspection and
evaluation on the effectiveness of risk management.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Features

The Company established a sound system for reporting
risk management defects, which specifies the
department responsibilities, contents, processes and
follow-up measures regarding defect reporting. For the
risk management defects identified, the Company’'s
internal audit
department, supervision department and risk management
department at all levels shall report and give advices or
recommendations to the relevant department according
to the prescribed procedures, and the relevant unit shall
take measures in a timely manner to ensure the risk

management defects are promptly addressed.

business management department,

Processes

Risk assessments mainly covers four basic processes,
namely goal development, risk identification, risk analysis
and risk response. Goal development is the prerequisite
for risk identification and risk analysis. The Company first
determines the strategic goals as they represent the
Company’s overall goal and embody the direction of its
long-term development. On this basis, the Company then
determines the underlying goals for the strategic goals,
being business goals, compliance goals and financial
reporting goals.

The Group identifies risks through three levels, being risk
identification at company level, business level and financial
reporting.
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After risk identification and analysis, the Company will
classify the importance level of risks into low, medium and
high with reference to the underlying goals, the reason
for occurrence of risks and the importance level of risks.
Coupling with the actual situation, the Company will make
proper risk response and adopt different risk response
plans:

1) Risk aversion: to withdraw from all activities posing
risks, including the disposal of subsidiaries, not to
take part in the implementation of new initiatives or
activities that would lead to underlying risks.

2) Risk mitigation: to take actions to lower the likelihood
of occurrence of risks or mitigate the extent of risk
impact or both, including developing or improving
business procedure and enhancing related control
measures.

3) Risk sharing: to mitigate the likelihood and impact of
risks by transferring risks or sharing part of the risks,
including insurance for accidental damage, outsourcing
business and hedging.

4) Risk acceptance: not to take any actions to influence
the likelihood or impact of the risks, including not to
take actions but to accept risks in line with the risk
tolerance level.

For company level risks and business level risks so
identified, the Company’s internal control management
department documents in a uniform format and forms
the "Guide Sheet of Company Level Risk Database and
Countermeasure” ({2 7)€ E R b2 &5 E R H K ESIR))
and the “Business Level Risk Database” ((¥ 7% & &) B
M & B # B E)), providing organizational guarantee and
institutional constraints for the Company’s risk management
and creating satisfactory internal environment for risk
management.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Board,
as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings,
has performed an annual review on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems in different aspects of the Group such
as financial, operation, compliance and risk management,
and has also assessed the accounting and financial
reporting functions of the Group, estimated the resources
and budgets for training programmes and appraised the
staff members' qualifications and experience. In respect
of continuing connected transactions, the Group has
implemented a series of general management policies
controlled by multiple departments to improve corporate
governance structure and monitor the implementation of
internal control policies, including financial control system,
anti-fraud and legal monitoring system, operations and
compliance management system,
assessment policies and internal audit rules.

risk management and

The Board considered that the abovementioned systems
are effective and adequate.

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
comprehensive audits of each department, subsidiary and
member of the Group to facilitate the management'’s control
on the assets of the Group. In addition, it offers consulting
services in respect of internal control to each department
of the Group to assist them in optimizing and enhancing
the risk management and internal control systems and the
operating processes. As authorized by the management,
the internal audit department conducts an investigation
on internal corruption. For the year ended December 31,
2017, the internal audit department did not discover any
circumstances involving fraud, non-compliance or violation
against laws, regulations and rules or any material incidents
due to lack of internal control.

The Board considers that the current risk management and
internal control systems cover the existing businesses of
the Group, and will continue to be optimized in line with
the business development of the Group.

In particular, the Board will devote efforts to complying with
the Listing Rules, ensuring compliance with the relevant
laws and regulation and safeguarding the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company's Directors,
officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure
that unauthorized access and use of inside information are
strictly prohibited.

The Board of the Company assesses the likely impact of
any unexpected significant event that may impact the price
of the Shares or their trading volume and decides whether
the relevant information is considered as inside information
and needs to be disclosed as soon as practicable pursuant
to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the
Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO.
Executive Directors and the company secretary are also
responsible for approving certain announcements and/
or circulars to be issued by the Company under powers
delegated by the Board from time to time.

Mr. Shiu Wing Yan of Global Incorporation (HK) Limited,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the
Company as the company secretary and an authorized
representative with effect from June 8, 2017.

His primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Huang
Shan, deputy in charge of the office of the board of the
Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2017 Mr. Shiu has
complied with taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group has not
made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles of
Association.
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To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the re-election of retiring
individual Directors. Except where the chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely
to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on
by a show of hands, all resolutions tabled at the general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

The annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company are primary forums for communication
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information
on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a
timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
information provided shall be reasonably necessary to
enable Shareholders to make an informed decision on the
proposed resolution(s).

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to propose a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with
the procedures set out in the paragraph below.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any
one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition.
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board believes that effective communication with
investors is essential for establishing investors’ confidence
and attracting new investors. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables investors to make the
best investment decision.

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. Updated
and key information of the Company is also available on the
Company’s website at www.crphoenix.hk. The Company
also replied the enquiries from Shareholders timely, if any.
The general meetings of the Company provide an important
channel for communications between the Board and the
Shareholders. The Chairman, as well as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committee and where appropriate, the chairman
of the independent Board Committee, will be available to
answer questions at the general meetings.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: E-825, No. 6 Taiping Street, Xicheng District,

Beijing 100050, PRC

Email: ir@crphoenix.hk

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Wang Yin, aged 62, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director and the Chairman from November 25,
2016. He joined CR Holdings in 1984. Mr. Wang had been
an executive director and served in various positions of
China Resources Land Limited (stock code: 1109) (“China
Resources Land"”) including general manager and chairman
of the board from August 2001 to June 2013. He was
responsible for the overall business development and
strategic planning while working in China Resources Land.
He previously served as the vice chairman of CR Holdings.
Mr. Wang had also previously served as a director of China
Resources National Corporation (a controlling shareholder
of the Company, now known as China Resources Company
Limited). Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
economics from Shandong University in China in July 1983
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the
University of San Francisco in the United States in June
1993.

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 46, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director from November 25, 2016 and a member
of the Audit Committee from December 28, 2016. He
joined China Resources National Corporation in July 1994.
From February 2016, Mr. Wang has been appointed as
the chief internal auditor of internal audit & supervision
department of CR Holdings. Since August 2014, Mr. Wang
has been appointed as the non-executive director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (stock code: 1313),
China Resources Gas Group Limited (stock code: 1193),
China Resources Land Limited (stock code: 1109) and China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
836). From August 2014 to April 2016, Mr. Wang was a
non-executive director of China Resources Beer (Holdings)
Company Limited (stock code: 291). He was a deputy chief
internal auditor of Internal Audit & Supervision Department
of CR Holdings between April 2012 and January 2016. Mr.
Wang was a deputy general manager of China Resources
Gas (Holdings) Limited from September 2007 to April 2012.
Mr. Wang was appointed as a director of China Resources
Gas Limited in November 2005. He worked for China
Resources Petrochems (Group) Company Limited (currently
known as Sinopec (Hong Kong) Petroleum Holding
Company Limited) from 2000 to 2006. Mr. Wang obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in economics from the Finance and
Accounting Department, Capital University of Economics
and Business and obtained a master’'s degree in Business
Administration from the University of South Australia. Mr.
Wang is a qualified PRC Certified Accountant.
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Mr. Cheng Libing, aged 53, is an executive Director
and the vice Chairman. Mr. Cheng joined the Group in
September 2010 and is primarily responsible for daily
operations of the Group. He has been appointed as an
executive Director and the vice Chairman since February
2016. Mr. Cheng served as the deputy general manager
of Beijing Huaren Intech Hospital Management Consulting
Co., Ltd. UtRELCHBBELREREZEABRAF) from 2006
to 2008 and the deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren
Intech Hospital Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Beijing
Intech Eye Hospital Co., Ltd. (At REERFERERAE)
and Intech Medical Chain (&% BB :EHEE) from 2008 to
2010. From 1999 to 2002, Mr. Cheng has served various
positions at Beijing Kangchen Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (it
FREREEZERE AR AR, including assistant to the general
manager. Mr. Cheng also served in various positions such
as an attending doctor at Dongzhimen Hospital Affiliated
to Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (JbRFhE&&E A&
MEBEEFIERR) from 1988 to 1998. Mr. Cheng received a
bachelor's degree in Clinical Traditional Chinese Medicine
from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (1t 182 % K
E) in Beijing in July 1988.

Mr. Han Yuewei, aged 50, joined the Group in October
2017 as an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Han worked for China Resources Land Limited
(FEBEMWAMRAA) (“CR Land”) (stock code: 1109) from
October 2010 until before joining the Group, during which
he served as deputy general manager of Shenyang Region,
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Region, director of
engineering and vice president. Prior to joining CR Land,
Mr. Han worked as the deputy director and director of the
Bureau of Public Works of Shenzhen Municipality (# 3l
MEET%E) from April 2002 to October 2010. Mr. Han
obtained a master’'s degree in construction economics
and management from Tsinghua University (5% A2 and
a bachelor’'s degree in construction management from
Tsinghua University in July 1993 and July 1991 respectively.
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Ms. Ren Yuan, aged 44, joined the Group in October
2017 as an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer.
Ms. Ren worked as the deputy manager of the finance
department of China Resources Microelectronics (Holdings)
Limited (EEMEF (3FR) AR A7) from June 2002 to
June 2006. From February 2004 to February 2010, Ms. Ren
served as the finance director of Wuxi CR Micro-Assembly
Tech., Ltd. (EHEBLEBHEEARAFR]). Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Ren worked as the consultancy general director
and deputy general director of the information management
department of China Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (¥
(@) AR AF)) since February 2010. Ms. Ren obtained
her master’s degree in accounting from Chinese University
of Hong Kong (& % F X K £) in December 2007. Ms.
Ren obtained the qualifications of China Certified Public
Accountant (4 B 5l & 5T Bf) and China Certified Public
Valuer (F B 3 ft & E &F {4 Af) in December 1998 and
September 1999 respectively.

Ms. Fu Yanjun, aged 38, has been appointed as an
executive Director on October 12, 2017. Ms. Fu joined
the Group in December 2014 and has been appointed
as the deputy general manager of the Company since
December 2016. Ms. Fu also previously served as the
managing director of strategic investment department of
the Company, the chairman of the board and the general
manager of Beijing Wanrong Yikang Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (It RELEREEZAFRAFR]) and Beijing
Phoenix Jiayi Medical Equipment Company Limited (it
R EfEREEREM AR L A), which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and the executive chairman
and the chairman of the youth committee of the Group. Ms.
Fu has been appointed as a supervisor of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (stock code: 814) since May 2017 Ms. Fu
also worked for Ernst & Young Hua Ming from September
2002 to October 2010 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA
Ltd. from October 2010 to December 2014. Ms. Fu obtained
a bachelor's degree in accounting from Renmin University
of China (FE AR X&) in July 2002 and obtained the
qualification of China Certified Public Accountant (/1 Bzt
&5H60) in May 2008.
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Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, aged 70, is an independent non-
executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and has been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee on March 23, 2018. He currently
serves as the chief executive officer of Pok Oi Hospital, a
well-known non-profit hospital in Hong Kong. As the chief
executive officer, Mr. Kwong has been providing corporate
governance and management support to the board of
directors for development, management and supervision
of these units for the past 10 years. He initially joined Pok
Oi Hospital as an internal audit manager in 2003. Before
joining Pok Oi Hospital, Mr. Kwong served as the principal
auditor of the Audit Commission of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Kwong
served in the Audit Commission of the Government of
Hong Kong since 1980. Mr. Kwong has been a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 1982.

Ms. Cheng Hong, aged 48, is an independent non-
executive Director and also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee. Ms.
Cheng has been the marketing director and the general
manager of the market management department of CITIC
Trust Co., Ltd. (F{51EsEERE LA F)) since May 2010.
Prior to joining CITIC Trust Co., Ltd., she had held various
positions, including chairman of the board of supervisors
and general manager of Orient Fund Management Co.,
Ltd. (RS EESEEEREMTAF) from June 2004 to May
2010. From October 2000 to June 2004, Ms. Cheng worked
in Northeast Securities Co., Ltd. (RitFEHFBEREE A A))
as the general manager of its Beijing branch and as an
assistant to the chief executive officer. Between December
1999 and October 2000, Ms. Cheng was the deputy general
manager of Changchun Jiefang Road Branch of Northeast
Securities Co., Ltd. (Rt FEHFBEREFT R AIRFHE MR AK
#%) (the former Changchun Jiefang Road Branch of Jilin
Province Trust Co., Ltd. (EMEEFEIRE R G REBRBAR) ).
Ms. Cheng served as a credit staff at the real estate credit
department of Jilin Branch of China Construction Bank (i
RIRTTEME D77) between July 1999 and December 1999,
and a credit staff at the real estate credit department of
Hebei Branch of China Construction Bank (iZ:&EEfT/Mdb4E
277) from July 1992 to July 1999.
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Ms. Cheng had been a visiting scholar at the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania in the United
States from March 2009 to June 2009. She received
an MBA degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in Beijing in March 2006, a master’'s degree in
accounting from the Research Institute for Fiscal Science
of the Ministry of Finance in Beijing in October 2003, and a
bachelor degree in Engineering from Agricultural University
of Hebei's OF[dL B2 K ) in Baoding in July 1992.

Mr. Sun Jianhua, aged 42, is an independent non-executive
Director and also a member of the Audit Committee and
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Sun has
joined Guosen Securities Co., Ltd. (B {E&Z5BRMDAER D
A]) since August 2005 and is currently a managing director
of the investment banking division of Guosen Securities
Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining Guosen Securities Co., Ltd., Mr.
Sun had served in various investment banks and securities
companies, including Daton Securities Co., Ltd. (X i &
EBH AR AR from April 2003 to July 2005, Industrial
Securities Co., Ltd. (EEFEHRHERAF) from January
2001 to March 2003, and CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. ({3
BHID AR AT from March 1999 to December 2000.
Mr. Sun received a master's degree in International Finance
from the Graduate School of PBOC in Beijing in April 1999
and a bachelor’'s degree in Transportation Economics from
Beijing Jiaotong University (1t 3 % i K £) (the former
Northern Jiaotong University (1675723 A2) in Beijing in
July 1996.
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Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix, aged 36, is an independent non-
executive Director and also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and has been redesignated as chairman of
the Nomination Committee on March 23, 2018. Mr. Lee
is currently a senior vice president of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited (“Chow Tai Fook Enterprises”),
responsible for making investments in the healthcare sector
in Asia and globally. He is also a director of Healthcare
Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises and a substantial shareholder
of UMP Healthcare Holdings. Mr. Lee is also an executive
director of UMP Healthcare Holdings (Stock Code: 722),
a leading corporate healthcare solutions provider in Hong
Kong, where he is responsible for corporate development,
international operations and merger and acquisitions. The
Group, through Pinyu, owns 12.92% of UMP Healthcare
Holdings as at the date of this annual report. Mr. Lee has
over ten years of experience in law and finance. He was an
associate with the law firm Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
before he left in February 2008 to join UBS AG, Hong Kong
branch as an analyst in the investment banking department
until January 2009. He then joined the investment banking
department of Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong branch and
last held the position of Director in the Corporate Advisory
Group, where he worked from January 2009 to August
2014.

Mr. Lee obtained his bachelor's degree in laws from the
London School of Economics and Political Sciences and
his Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of
Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004, respectively. He is
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since September
2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts of
England and Wales since February 20183.
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Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy, aged 68, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director from March 23,
2018. Ms. Chiu has over 29 years of banking experience
in Canada and the Asia Pacific Region. Ms. Chiu was a
senior vice president at the Republic National Bank of
New York and was responsible for the management and
investment of third party client’s funds. Ms. Chiu has been
an associate and a fellow of the Institute of Canadian
Bankers since July 1975 and August 1976 respectively.
Ms. Chiu was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the
Hong Kong government in July 1992 and as a Cavaliere
by the ltalian Government in December 1998. Ms. Chiu is
the chairman of Prime Investments Group Limited and is
currently an independent non-executive director of National
Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code: 01236), Sau San
Tong Holdings Limited (stock code: 08200) and CPM Group
Limited (stock code: 01932), whose shares are all listed on
the Stock Exchange. Ms. Chiu is licenced to carry out asset
management business under Type 9 regulated activity under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO").

Mr. Xu Zechang, aged 55, is the Executive General
Manager of our Company. Mr. Xu joined Phoenix Hospital
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (currently known as Beijing
Phoenix Wantong Investment Management Co., Ltd.) in
March 2004 and has served as the executive administrator
of Mentougou Hospital (PF] 58 )& [& % Ft) since October
2011. Mr. Xu also served as an executive Director from
September 2013 to November 2016 and was re-appointed
as an executive Director on December 28, 2016. He also
served as the executive administrator of Yan Hua Hospital
(At = #E L EFT) from May 2007 to December 2010, the vice
administrator of Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd. (it
R =ERARART) from May 2005 to May 2007 and
the executive administrator of Wuxi New District Hospital
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(7R EFT) from May 2004 to May 2005. Mr. Xu has
experience as an attending doctor, vice director doctor,
vice director of the cardiology department and an acting
director of the cardiology department at the General
Hospital of China PLA Beijing Military Region (B A K&k
FARERAERT), a Grade Il general hospital, from 1991
to 2003, and a resident doctor at the General Hospital of
the People’s Liberation Army of China (FREI A RN E 4288
B7), the largest Grade Ill general hospital affiliated to the
People's Liberation Army of China, from 1984 to 1991.

Mr. Xu attended the Military Medical School of People’s
Liberation Army of China (FEBIARBMEZTEEZZEL) in
Beijing in July 2006 and July 1991 respectively to study
medicine. He obtained his bachelor's degree in military
surgeon from Southern Medical University (7 77 & & X
B) (formerly known as First Military Medical University of
People’s Liberation Army of China (FTEIARMBMEF —FE
KE) in Guangzhou in July 1984.

Ms. Luo Jie, aged 33, is the Deputy General Manager of
our Company. Ms. Luo joined the Group in November 2012
and has been appointed as a Deputy General Manager
from October 2016. She has also previously served as
the financial director, the administrative director of the
operations department, the general manager of Mentougou
Region, and the general manager of the Group's supply
chain company. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Luo worked
in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
LLP (= %) # 5k & &t B = 75 F) and Deloitte Enterprise
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (BEEEEXHAERAD
Al). Ms. Luo holds a CIA qualification (BFR:EM A S ETED
& 1&) and obtained a bachelor’s degree of economics from
University of International Business and Economics (¥/4M&
EE 5 RKE). She is currently studying for a MBA degree in
Tsinghua University (5 KE).
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Purpose of the Report

This report is the second environmental, social and
governance (“"ESG") report (the "Report”) of China
Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company’, together with its subsidiaries, collectively
“CR Phoenix’ the "Group” or “we"). This Report aims at
reporting our strategies, approaches and performance in
sustainable development.

Reporting Period and Scope

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2017 (“Reporting Period”). Unless otherwise
specified, the Report only covers Beijing Phoenix Jiayi
Medical Devices Company Limited (3t R Bl EEH EE 22 A
R 2 7)) and Beijing Wanrong Yikang Medical Pharmaceutical
Company Limited JtRELERELZAGR A, which are
engaged in GPO (Group Purchasing Organization) business,
and the following 14 healthcare institutions under the

Group’s management and operation:

(i) Beijing Jian Gong Hospital (£ = 2 F7) (“Jian Gong
Hospital”);

(i) 999 Clinic (=/LP92#F) ("999 Clinic”);

(iii) Xuzhou Mining Hospital (&M &L EET) (“Xukuang
Hospital”);

(iv) Huaibei Miner General Hospital* (ff it #& T 42 & Bx)
(“Huaikuang Hospital”);

(v) Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital (B B = 71 I &} 28 B7)
(“Brain Hospital");

(vi) China Resources Wugang General Hospital (B2 %
B7) (“Wugang Hospital”);

(vii) Beijing Jing Mei Hospital Group (1t R R EEEERR)
("Jing Mei Hospital");
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(viii) Beijing Yan Hua Hospital (it R #&{L EF%) (“Yan Hua
Hospital”);

(ix) Beijing Mentougou District Hospital (1t =R PI58E & 5
%) (“Mentougou Hospital”);

(x) Beijing Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine
Hospital (At RMFIsEEREFEEFT) (“Mentougou TCM
Hospital");

(xi) Beijing Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children
(LR MPIsEE R 2R EFT) (“Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children”);

(xii) Airport Hospital of Shunyi District (3t R IEZ & 2078 58
B%) (“Airport Hospital");

(xiii) Shunyi District No.2 Hospital (3t =B 25 — 2&Fr)
(the “No.2 Hospital”); and

(xiv) Third Center Hospital of Baoding City ((REME =1
EFt) (“Third Center Hospital”').

Reporting Standard

This Report is prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements under the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

Your Opinions

We highly value opinions from our stakeholders. You are
encouraged to give suggestions regarding this Report or the
Group’s overall performance in sustainable development.
Please contact us at email: gehs@crphoenix.hk.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT CR PHOENIX

Established in 1988, CR Phoenix has served the community
for nearly 30 years with extensive experience in hospital
investment and management. As the largest general
hospital group in China, the responsibility of providing the
general public with quality and safe healthcare services
is always at the forefront of our mind. CR Phoenix has a
mature healthcare services platform, with 106 medical
institutions distributed across Beijing, Hebei, Wuhan,
Shenzhen, Guangdong, Anhui, Jiangsu and other regions,
providing the public with a full range of healthcare services.
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We provide patients with comprehensive and multi-
level healthcare services such as clinical diagnosis and
treatment, health management and public hygiene; whereas
our hospital network possesses abundant physician and
expert resources, enabling us to provide specialised
medical technology support to every in-network hospitals
such that our patients are guaranteed to receive the most
professional and complete healthcare services. Meanwhile,
we take part in the investment and management of new
and modernized chain clinics (UCC) to provide urban
citizens with multi-tiered diagnosis and treatment at the
service price offered by public social healthcare institutions
to the extent that urban residents’ medical insurance could
cover, thereby realizing effective allocation of precious
healthcare resources to safeguard the health of the public.
We also fully leverage the scale advantage of the hospital
group and adopt the internationally mature GPO model for
the centralised procurement of medical and non-medical
supplies for all in-network hospitals, which significantly
reduce the procurement cost of hospitals and in turn
contribute to more cost-effective healthcare services.

CR Phoenix is committed to providing high-quality and
safe healthcare services to the public. By applying
the philosophy of environmental protection, energy
conservation, employee care and public health services into
our operations and development, we strive to create values
for and fulfil our responsibility to all stakeholders.

Bearing patient safety and health in our mind, we endeavor
to ensure quality and safety by performing effective
management and precise control throughout the whole
process and developing a stringent traceability mechanism
to facilitate all-party engagement to promote quality
improvement and ensure the safety of every medical
procedure continuously, thereby effectively delivering the
continuous improvement in the quality and safety of our
hospitals.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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In response to the country’s initiatives in energy-saving and
low-carbon operation. Without prejudice to medical quality,
we take various measures to save energy and reduce
emission. For non-clinical wastes that are safe to use, we
recycle as much as possible and send them to recyclers for
reuse. Clinical wastes are disposed of in strict compliance
with national and local requirements, and are transported
and handled by qualified professional agencies.

We value the expectations and requirements of
stakeholders in a bid to balance the needs of all parties
and develop a harmonious relationship with stakeholders
including the government, customers, shareholders,
business partners and staff. In preparing the Report, we
actively listen to the opinions from all parties and hope
to make use of the Report as the platform to constantly
improve the communication means and channels with
stakeholders, thus partnering with them to embrace the
challenges ahead and sharing our corporate value:

ESG Structure

The board of directors is the highest decision-making
organisation for ESG works. The specific tasks are carried
out by the Group's Operation and Development Committee
and various functional departments. The Group has
established a three-tier ESG system in the headquarter,
subsidiaries, in-network hospitals and related departments,
ensuring the implementation of ESG works.

The Group's functional departments conduct regular
research and analysis on the ESG works of each in-network
hospitals and report to the Operation and Development
Committee, which directly reports to the board of directors
in respect of the meetings. Our subsidiaries and in-
network hospitals are the executors of ESG work with
specific departments docking with the Group for each ESG
work. The Group's functional departments and in-network
hospitals perform the Group's general obligations for ESG
to ensure our daily operations are in compliance with ESG-
related requirements.
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KEY ENVIRONMENTAL DATA! TEBEHE

Greenhouse gas (GHG)?

BERER?
Total emissions 57269.75 tonnes CO2 equivalent
HegaE MR i E 2
Direct emission (Scope 1) 17.743.06 tonnes CO:2 equivalent
BHiEHER (8BE) WE— S LIRE S
Indirect emission (Scope 2) 39,526.69 tonnes CO:2 equivalent
P ($5E2) WE—SE(LIRE S
GHG Emission Reduction (Scope 1) 9.48 tonnes CO2 equivalent
RERBREE (BE1) WE—SE(LIRE S
Total GHG emissions per square metre of floor area 96.85 kg CO:2 equivalent
(Scope 1 and 2) (per s.g.m)
BYOREEEBEMNAERBINEE (HBE1K%2) ATZS/LIREE
(F7H5XK)
Exhaust gas?
BE5R2
NOx 661.53 kg
AEEPI(NOX) N
SOx 38.79 kg
Ha(E¥(SOx) YN
PM 103.69 kg
#OZFHRIPM) AR
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Hazardous waste

BEEREY

Total emissions

1N

Total hazardous waste per square metre of floor area

BYIAEEEEEEERNEE

Non-hazardous waste

BEBREY

Total non-hazardous waste

BEREVES
Total non-hazardous waste per square metre of floor area
BYRREHREREEEMES
Waste disposed to landfill
EENHEERBREY
Domestic waste
HIERED
Paper
AR

Food waste

BT &k
Waste collected for recycling
(0] Uy s KL 1R 2R A 5

Paper

AR

Glass

W

Plastic

BB

864.92

1.46

7.343.27

12.42

7,207.30

11.89

66.18

8.27

3.48

46.15

tonnes

Mg

kg (per s.g.m)
AFF (BFHH)

tonnes

7]

kg (per s.q.m)
N (FFIK)

tonnes
7
tonnes
7
tonnes
7

tonnes
07
tonnes
07
tonnes
07

EHREBRZERARAT T 50

97



China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

Indicator Value Unit
Bz HE By
Energy
BEIR
Total consumption 80,768,332.38 kWh
BFEA=E T FLEF
Electricity 51,938,917.80 kWh
= 5 T R B
Diesel 970,017.43 kWh
S FELBS
Gasoline 854,251.78 kWh
i T R B
Natural gas 26,750,603.98 kWh
RAR, T ELBF
LPG 254,541.39 kWh
BACER R R
Total energy consumption per square metre of floor area 136.58 kWh (per s.q.m)
BYrAAREEERREREE FEE (§F7K)
Water
¥
Total consumption 1,870,293.00 m3
BEA= SR
Total water consumption per square metre of floor area 3.16 m?3 (per s.q.m)
B A REEEERKESE SHAK (BFHK)
Packaging material®
BEEE
Total consumption 53.64 tonnes
BEAE L]
Plastic 3.24 tonnes
] W
Paper 50.40 tonnes
i 98
Packaging material used per square metre of floor area 90.71 g (per s.g.m.)
BYFREEEEEEDAE 7= (BFK)

Remarks: BT

1. The Key Environmental Data covers only 14 healthcare institutes as the two 1. WERRBELISFT14EEEERE - ARIERER
GPOs, Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical Devices Co. Ltd. and Beijing Wanrong EEBREMARA RIMBLEREXEGRAFN
Yikang Medical Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. operated in leased office premises HERAM T EE  MEREERRAREREP
of which the respective building management considered the provision REERREIEL AT AL S D IR EEUR
of environmental data for individual occupant not feasible. Therefore, the FrETREEMEEEREAL -
environmental data of this section did not include these two groups of
procurement organisations.

2. Huaikuang Hospital’s mobile vehicle is excluded in both greenhouse gas 2. REHE - AEBREIREBNERERNER
and exhaust gas emission calculation and total energy consumption as no FREIE - FTLURE RS E REFRE B gERE
relevant fuel consumption and mileage statistics is available during the HETEELER -

Reporting Period.

3. Plastic packaging material refers to disposable containers used in canteen. 3. DREEVAREAMN—RUSEN - HBEERRE
This figure represents only the usage of Jian Gong hospital. For other R ERBEROREHRA AT EEE AN
healthcare institutes, reusable containers are used. m e
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BENEVOLENCE AND COMPETENCE

"Life is priceless’ is of great significance to us. The focus
and direction of our strategy and action as well as our
attitude and behaviour are oriented with patients’ lives
and health. This belief drives us to exercise sensitivity and
place additional emphasis on every one of our patients. We
believe that everyone deserves a healthy life and that we
are obliged to devote all our efforts to protect this right.

We believe “prevention is better than cure”, but we
will do our best to provide treatments on unavoidable
circumstances, and we do not give up easily. Every day,
we devote ourselves to giving the best general healthcare
and the most advanced medical solutions to our patients.
We are obliged to offer the best treatment to our patients
because this is what they deserve.
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Caring for Patients

We always hope to see a smile on the face of our patients.
For patients currently combating illness, support is
priceless. We are not merely devoted all our endeavours to
curing them, but we stand by them and provide them with
support, care and encouragement. It is how we do our job,
with no shortcut or compromise.

Every patient visiting our hospitals for healthcare services
represents a trust to our healthcare network. For this
reason, we must merit their trust by providing patients with
the best care possible. We pay close attention to all stages
of healthcare, regardless of whether it is diagnosis, clinical
treatment, nursing, medicines, surgeries, procedures
or infrastructures. We respond to the public demand for
healthcare services with our unparalleled passion. As for
all our in-network healthcare personnel and experts, a
bold commitment to patients’ health and well-being is the
exemplification of professionalism.

BEERA
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Patients inevitably feel difficult and hesitant when facing
illness. Thus we hope to offer help as much as possible.
Starting from the admission of the patient, our healthcare
professionals accompany the patients and explain to
them every process in detail with the aim of relieving
their tension. Our physicians endeavour to provide a wide
range of information to the patients and their families such
as their conditions, treatment options, pharmaceutica
selection, underlying effect and risks, allowing them to
understand their illness better.
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Food healthiness and hygiene

lliness finds its way in by the mouth. We place a heavy
emphasis on the healthiness and hygiene of our patients’
diet. Some of our healthcare institutions have nutritionists.
By conducting diet risk assessment for patients, we can
identify patients with special dietary and nutritional needs
and design an appropriate eating plan in accordance with
the recommendations of physicians and nutritionists. We
attach patients’ name and identifier on the container after
verifying the meal inside and ask nurses to reconfirm
before dispatch to ensure that patients eat according to
their medical needs.
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“We attach much to the hygiene
of kitchens. Kitchens handling
patient’'s diets must remain hygienic
and clean at all time. Cooked and
uncooked food and tools must be
separated. Ingredients must be
kept fresh. Meanwhile, we make
our food traceable and our staff
personally accountable. To achieve
a high standard of food hygiene, we
must focus on detail with care and
be picky”

LU Jun,
Dietary Department of
Jian Gong Hospital
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Healthcare Quality

Our Yan Hua Hospital and Jian Gong Hospital have successfully
passed the JCI review. The JCI certification is a rigorous and
internationally recognised healthcare service standard, which
highlights that our hospital services and hospital management
has achieved world-class level.

“A - comprehensive healthcare
quality management is reinforcing
the internal quality control and
reflecting the enhanced healthcare
quality in every case.”

WANG Xirui, Supervisor of
Endocrinology of Airport Hospital

“Persistence to inspection
quality is the fundamental of
work. We continuously optimize
testing process, strictly follow
the standardized operation for
biosecurity in clinical laboratories
and improve the testing
environment to ensure timely and
accurate testing results.”

GUAN Li, Supervisor of Clinical
Laboratory of Mentougou
Hospital for Women and Children
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“"We attach particular attention to
the team building of various medical
departments. We have developed
rigorous three-level physician ward
rounds system (= #4& % Bl & 5 |
/€), resident physician rotation
training system ({ Bt 2 A & 31 51
/) and attending physician ward
EIRBEEE

management system (

EEHE)

LIU Daixiang, Supervisor of —N

Macro Surgery, Supervisor of A -
General Surgery and Academic
Leader of Mentougou Hospital

Privacy of Patients

We strive to protect our patients’ privacy and ensure that all
of the information relating to our patients (including medical
records, investigation and diagnostic summaries) are
stored on secured platform in order to ensure information
privacy and confidentiality. Medical records are securely
stored in the medical record system by the medical records
department and only authorized medical staff can access
the system. Moreover, the system is password protected
and patients’ names are covered with asterisk on screen to
strengthen privacy protection. During the Reporting Period,
we strictly complied with all laws and regulations relating
to personal privacy and did not receive any complaints or
penalties in relation to any breach of privacy related laws
and regulations.
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Medical Incident and Complaint
Management

In strict compliance with the Regulations on the Urgent
Handling of Public Health Emergencies ({328 % & &4
=1 EZEH)), Regulations on the Handling of Medical
Incidents (& & =& E & f)) and Plan for Handling
Public Health Emergencies in the PRC ({(B &R %€ 3
BEEMHEZTEZE)), we have formulated a number of
contingency plans including the Contingency Plan for Public
Health Emergencies ((EZEAHRFESHESTER)) and
Contingency Plan for Information System Emergencies
(B L BEEZTEZE)) on the hospital basis so as to
address incidents such as public health emergencies and
information system breakdown. We have formulated the
Safety Management Plan for Emergencies ((B&EH#%
2EIEEHE])) in order to ensure effective implementation
of each contingency plan. Meanwhile, in accordance with
the Standards of Assessment on Hospitals ({Z&BT P12
#)) and the JCI Management Standards introduced by
the U.S.A., most of our healthcare institutions conduct
a Hazard Vulnerability Assessment (HVA) on possible
emergencies and rank the related risks, prioritize cases
with higher risks as well as organize emergency drills and
training so as to continuously optimize the solutions. In
addition, we have established the Risk Management Policy
(KRBEREEHE)
medical quality and patient safety, and proactively imposed
definite prospective management plan to prevent various
types of medical incidents. During the Reporting Period,
there are 944 complaints received from patients. We value
patients’ opinions, and all service staff are requested to
respect patients and listen carefully to their demands when
handling and responding to complaints. Moreover, hospitals
have set up doctor-patient offices dedicated to handling,
verifying and investigating patients’ complaints, providing
solutions and reporting monthly to the director.

to manage risk on issues relating to

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Supply Chain Management

We centralize the procurement functions of all the Group'’s
hospitals and clinics, and focus on coordinating and
managing the procurement and logistics procedures of
pharmaceuticals, medical devices, medical consumables
and equipment. We adopt standardized procurement
procedures to strictly control procurement quality, whereas
professional procurement staff and professionals will
manage each stage of the procurement process, including
contracting, purchasing, distribution and inventory
management. This makes the procurement process more
efficient,

cost-effective and simple, thereby reducing

unnecessary resource wastes.

We procure pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables that will be used by the Group's network
of hospitals and clinics. Our pharmaceuticals, medical
devices and medical consumables are mainly sourced from
China, and our medical equipment is primarily sourced
from Germany, the United States, Japan, the Netherlands
and other foreign countries through their distributors in
China. In the course of selecting the suppliers of medical
products, pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables, we assess factors such as the reputation,
product/service quality and pricing of suppliers. Without
affecting healthcare quality, we also prefer to cooperate
with environmental-friendly and responsible suppliers. Only
those which have passed the assessment can be included
in our supplier list, which shall be reviewed and assessed
based on the performance of the suppliers in the past year
at the beginning of each year. We re-check the qualifications
of the suppliers to ensure the legality and quality of
supplied items.
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Employment

We cherish the value that our employees create for the
Group, and understand their sense of mission for joining
the healthcare industry. As a result, we offer our employees
not merely a job, but also an opportunity to improve their
own skills, serve the society, and work under stimulating
and fulfilling environment. CR Phoenix complies with the
relevant national laws and regulations. In order to specify
the basic rights of employees and regulate employment,
we have formulated and strictly implemented the relevant
management policies and procedures, including the "“CR
Phoenix Staff Handbook (Revised)” ((ZHBEEE T Ft (&
51))), “Basic System for Human Resources Management”
(AN EREBEAXNGE)) and “Regulations on Labor
Contracts” ((BB)ERIEE)).

As at December 31, 2017 we had 12,662" employees in
total, including 3,702" male employees and 8,960'" female
employees. There are 12,493" full-time staff and 169" part-
time or contract staff among all employees. Our employees
are mainly divided into four categories, namely “Healthcare
staff, nursing staff, technicians and back office staff” (& -
& B 1T).
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Employees’ Structure By Age'

BETIFRER

1553 39870

|

2,969

3,634
<age of 20 aged 20-30
<2073% 20-307%

N aged 40-50 n aged 50-60

40-50%% 50-607%

! The above data includes 14 healthcare institutions under the Group's
management and operation and two companies engaged in GPO Business.
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4,228

aged 30-40
30-407%,

>age of 60
W60

! A EEEE S NEEERSENARERERE 2R
GPOZETS A
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Healthcare staff — who possess qualified physician license 3,625

BE-RBEAERBMAERRNERAR

E’ Nursing staff — who possess qualified practice license 4,5912

(g) & - FEREBIRERNEEAR

Technicians — who hold professional qualifications, including pharmacy, 1,9752

> Back office staff — supporting staff and executives

T - RRITHRAR

To lower staff turnover rate, whenever there is employee
resignation, we will arrange an exit meeting with the
employee to understand his/her reason of leaving and seek
his/her feedback on the management, with the aim of
identifying, understanding and improving our deficiencies
in corporate management. During the Reporting Period, our
staff turnover rate was 6.12%.

2 The above data includes 14 healthcare institutions under the Group's
management and operation

) imaging and laboratory staff
B—HAEEXERNEMAR  BFEE  THERMREREAES -

2,5712

BERLATRE BEBEIHBE -
BRAEEFEZE THITEKNTHHE
BRERARSKEHEEFANRE
HERELER THRARSESLEER
TR - RREEHE - BHMHOABER
KEH6.17% o
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As for the employment of three types of front-line
healthcare staff, nursing staff and
it is the Group's policy to perform multiple

employees (i.e.
technicians),
verifications on the education and qualification certificates
of candidates to ensure the authenticity of qualifications
and thus maintain our high quality service. CR Phoenix has
formulated its employment policy in accordance with the
“Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China” ({FZFE AR
HME L E)EL)) and “Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China” ((FEAREXMELE & RE)). Al
employees are required to sign legal labour contracts. As
for remuneration and benefits, we strictly comply with
the minimum salary standards and the requirements in
relation to rest days and statutory holidays as stipulated
in the local employment regulations. In addition, we offer
subsidies to our employees, including holiday and birthday
subsidies, solatium for illness and death, travelling and
telecommunication allowance etc. We promote equal
opportunity and oppose any discriminatory acts. As for
recruitment, promotion, remuneration and benefits, working
hours and other employment practice, we do our best
to ensure that our employees can enjoy their legal rights
regardless of their ethnicity, gender, age, health and family.

Moreover, we fully understand the material adverse effect
brought by the exploitation of child and forced labour on
the society and individuals. Therefore, in strict compliance
with laws and regulations including the “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ((FFEAREXFHL %)),
“Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China”
(KPEARLMBE LS E FE)), “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors” ({/ %
AR FHAME KK F AREE)) and “Prohibition of Using
Child Labor” ((ZEILEAZETHE)), the Group specifically
prohibits the employment of child and forced labour in its
recruitment policies.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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CR Phoenix organizes various types of recreational EHEReTHAE TR TRERE/N
and cultural activities and competitions regularly for NRELEFHRLE  WET - 25
employees, such as hiking, football, badminton, calligraphy, PER -EEZ By B=ELEIHZ-
photography, painting and sports day, which allow them  EE TH ITHEESUREZRLE R
to recharge after work, facilitate the interactions between RIEEORT  BYUMBRANEBKE
colleagues and create harmony and team spirit. The Group  #% o 2B & K Z{H BB e S
and most of the healthcare institutions also organize 2T8 MEAE®RE - EHESe R4
corporate events such as annual dinner, Chinese New Year L BINETHERBR -

Party and birthday party in order to promote employees’

sense of affiliation.
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CR Phoenix’s 1st “Health Cup” Badminton Competition 2017 CR Phoenix Painting, Calligraphy and Photography Competition
EHEREE—E @] PDERLE 2017 EHEEEERT L BEER

“New Start with Staff for a Brilliant Future” Outward Bound
[HEAFTERS - BFHBEIE | RRIIR

(I By effectively utilizing social media, we created a WeChat group for our
employees. Staff are encouraged to share working ideas and lives via the
group so as to facilitate the interaction and communication among staff. In the
meantime, it can enhance employees’ sense of affiliation as well as enable us
to listen to the employees’ comments more effectively.
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Occupational Health and Safety

We understand that employees of healthcare industry are
required to work at healthcare institutions for a long period
of time. As a result, we regard employees’ physical and
mental health and safety as the fundamental basis of the
management of the Group. In strict compliance with the
relevant national laws and regulations, we perform and fulfil
the social responsibility of protecting employees’ health
and safety, including the arrangement of shift working
hours in line with relevant regulations. We always remind
our employees to pay attention to personal health and work
safety through notices, emails, WeChat and videos in order
to raise their awareness of workplace safety. Meanwhile,
health and work safety standards are included in the scope
of staff performance appraisal and regular inspections are
conducted to ensure all occupational health and safety
measures are being implemented fully. Adhering to the
principle of prevention first and combining prevention with
control, we have formulated a series of occupational health
and safety policies and measures in different areas.
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Policies and Measures

Area #is BUR R IEHE
Fire Safety N=1iEeea e Check fire-fighting equipment on a regular basis

EHmER ARE

e Organize fire drills on a regular basis

EHAEANERE

e Employees are not allowed to smoke in the hospital under
the Employee Code of Conduct ((B T{TAEERE)) so as
to protect the health of employees and patients and prevent
them from suffering the harm of second-hand smoke
UCEITAEERE) BIETHREBREBARE  REEETI R
MARR  2RX_FENBE -

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Policies and Measures

Area &l NG YSEi=iic)
Disease R B e e  Formulate the “Individual Protection Procedures for
Prevention Employees” (& T{EAP7#E#F2)) and contingency plans

based on the features of risk sites and provide qualifying
protection equipment such as masks and gloves
BERRISFIERGIE T (BETEAERE) RFER - WRHEHF
BRBHOERm WOSE - FE

e Conduct inspections on protection and emergency equipment
regularly to ensure the effectiveness and availability

RS RN ESREREETRE - BEREGRIEMAT AT

e Promote "“hand hygiene” (Ff4) to reduce the chance of
contagious disease infection
HE[F&E]  RERAEBTRRNOKS

e Formulate the “Employee Health Check Program” ({ & T##kE
BT 2])) and “Employee Immunization Program” (& T &&
=T21)) according to various risk grades in different workplaces
in order to provide body checks and blood tests for employees
BEBEETIITESMOERRIEESIE T (EIRERBRGE) k(8
THRZE:1ED)  REIRESERSE MMt

Emergency B2 R IE Place first aid kits in each healthcare institution
Response NE B EME SR ER
e  Organize drills for contingency and outbreak of infectious
diseases for hospital on a regular basis

BlreE MARES MERRRBEIEFIRR

Food Hygiene BYEE e  Most of our food processing site has been rated by the local
governments

R EMD B R W) h0 L% U EAS & 3 U AT AR

o

Hazardous or fEEo E&EEY) e  Formulate the “Policy for Managing Hazardous Substances
Clinical Waste Safety” ((BEEWMHELZ2EIEETE])) and the “Clinical Waste
Management Policy” ((EEEMEIRHIE))
FIETKEEMELEEIEE) (BEEMEEHE)
e Provide more protective equipment for employees handling
hazardous waste

REEEEE TIRHEZHER M
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Through the aforesaid policies and measures, we did not
have any serious incident involving employee fatality during
the Reporting Period.

Development and Training

The knowledge and skills of our healthcare staff directly
affect the quality of our services and the experiences
of patients. Therefore, we pay plenty of attention to
improve the professional skills of employees and nurture
their growth. Leveraging our advantages as a large-scale
healthcare group, we have established an information
sharing platform to integrate our training resources. In
order to foster continuous learning atmosphere, we arrange
a number of development and training programs for all
employees to participate. We expect that employees can
make good use of the sharing platform to improve their
professional and management skills through learning and
sharing the training results and build on their strengths.

We implement comprehensive development in three
aspects, i.e. medical expertise, teaching and research.
Strictly implementing the standardized training system of
resident physicians, we encourage qualified employees to
participate in the training. This could guarantee excellent
service by front-line healthcare staff under the principle of
“matching positions with virtuous and competent talents”
(7= r4 T B2« B2 M UC B2) with our credit system. Clinical
departments are required to conduct professional training
and organize training for JCI certification every month.

For different types of employees, we provide, in addition
to general pre-employment trainings, on-job trainings and
education that align with the professional skills required
for their specific positions, including provincial, municipal
or national level continuous learning classes (& ™ A% =X

R P E B 2 F ), academic seminars, distance
educa‘uon and paper presentations. Based on the actual
performance and emergent requirements, we also arrange
non-regular training to improve the medical skills, personal
development, leadership and management skills of our
employees.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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The Group has established a comprehensive performance
appraisal system. For front-line medical practitioners,
they are required to undergo quarterly assessments by
medical and nursing departments and annual assessments
held by the human resources department during the first
year. Moreover, we have gradually developed a sound
promotion mechanism which is benchmarked to the
results of performance appraisal, thereby creating broader
development room for employees, attracting and retaining
talents.
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We cooperated with China Resources Healthcare to organize a prestigious annual event, the
award ceremony of “China Resources Phoenix Innovation and Development Award” (“Innovation
and Development Award"”). The Innovation and Development Award was established with an aim
to recognize and encourage each healthcare institution to bring about innovative ideas for the
Group with their delicacy management, professional skills and clinical studies; share the excellent
project achievements thereof; implement intra-group resource sharing; and uphold our core value
of innovation, perseverance and sharing. Starting from the application stage, the Innovation and
Development Award of the current year received enthusiastic responses from each healthcare
institution. The number of applications amounted to 246, representing a remarkable growth as
compared with the previous year. After fierce competition and strict appraisal of the Group’s
Organizing Committee, a total of 93 awards were granted finally.
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Health

According to the “Administrative Measures for
Doctors’ Routine Assessment” (BHiEHZXEEMH
7£) promulgated by the Ministry of Health of the
People’s Republic of China, we conduct regular
assessments on registered medical practitioners.
The assessment committee of the hospital will
appraise them based on three aspects, namely
working performance, professional ethics and
professional standard, and report the results of
assessment to the municipal ministry of health.

We have co-organized road-shows with various medical
alliances to share the efficacies of the large-scale
clinical studies, thereby introducing new concepts to
our medical staff.

We encouraged the physicians to publish theses on the
websites or journals domestically or overseas covering
the professions such as medical health, medical
technology, healthcare and management.

We invited local and foreign experts and professors
to attend academic exchange seminars and forums at
hospitals to share clinical cases, innovative treatments
and personal experiences, and make an exchange on
the working modes of various laboratories and industry
prospect so as to promote the development of medical
technologies and management of various laboratories.
Apart from the domestic technological exchange, we
also introduced appropriate medical technologies from
overseas in line with international standards.

Beijing Jing Mei Hospital invited
Prof. James Christopher of Forth
Valley Royal Hospital(fg 81 & 2 K
#B7)for an academic exchange on

cardiovascular surgery in Beijing

The Supervisor of Ophthalmology
Department at Jian Gong Hospital
was invited to attend the 11th
APVRS Congress (5§ 11/& 5 KX 3K
BEIRMAE &%) which was hosted by
top-notch academic organizations
from 19 countries or regions

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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CARE

The professional
management from Weigao
Management Institution (B = £
Bz) and the Supervisor of Nursing
Department of Beijing Tsinghua
Chang Gung Hospital Jt RFER
BT B

professional training by Jian Gong

We implement the concept of standardized nursing
operations and regularly organized the training
programs on nursery skills and safety including topics
such as safety on intravenous infusion, respiratory tract
care and application of insulin in order to enhance the
nursery standards of various hospitals.

trainer on

B2) were invited to conduct

Hospital.

Emergency rehearsals were organized against endemic
infectious diseases on an irregular basis to increase
the awareness of medical staff on disease prevention
and control and implementation of precautious, nursing
care and quarantine measures which are up to standard
so as to avoid propagation of the related diseases and
further infections.

Nursing technigue contests were held by way of
scenario simulation to not only consolidate the skills
and psychology of the nursing staff but also test their
on-site emergency responses and related abilities
effectively.

We arranged senior mentors to directly couch nursing
interns and new staff. Every intern shall receive an
internship of 8 months prior to qualifying as a nurse,
gain 2 to 3 months’ clinical experience subsequently
and pass the final examination before becoming a
qualified nursing staff.
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Phoenix Institute

The Group officially announced the inauguration of Phoenix
Institute (BI/EIZ2FE) under China Resources University (3
JEXE), aiming to establish a training platform for talent
development.

B E £k
RNEBR2017F1281BER S A E B
REETH [BEEZR] (KL - FER
J—EAAERAFITFS -

The Inauguration Ceremony of Phoenix Institute under China Resources University
EBREHESERKTHER

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.



The 4 purposes of the establishment of Phoenix Institute

are as follows:

As the healthcare industry has been suffering
from a shortage of talents while the business
footholds of Phoenix healthcare is increasing
with constant expansion of its operations and
scale, thereby boosting its manpower demand.
The professional management talents trained by
Phoenix Institute will give an effective and long-
term support to our business expansion, and
thus creating value for us.
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Phoenix Institute will undergo various exchange
activities with excellent domestic and overseas
universities focused on hospital management
to share the management wisdom to attain
mutual growth with the overall medical industry.
Further, Phoenix Institute will collaborate with
other professional academies under China
Resources University to allow the staff to
gain an in-depth perception of our core values
through the curriculum integrating the culture
and visions, which will hence encourage the
unified team spirit of the Group generally and
demonstrate the philosophy of “Benefit all with
benevolence and competence” (“{ZM 1T - B2
AT
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Following the development of the medical
industry under active promotion of the Chinese
government as well as the continuous reform,
Phoenix Institute will solve the management
problems of hospitals through active studies
on the national policies and, with experiences
gathered, further review and improve the
hospital management system for an upgrade of
service standard.

EEBEREBREREXNANES MR E
[RIE EFe | G I5 AT 9T Bl SR UK - SR EE
BiEEmEnEE KR EELR T
FRAEBRERRR - RITREKFE

Nowadays, the medical technologies are ever-
changing rapidly. Leveraging Phoenix Institute
as the innovative development platform, we
explore the innovation and development of
the healthcare sector, including various new
industry practices and business models such as
Internet plus (BB #9+), intelligent healthcare
and Big Data so as to maintain the leading
position of CR Phoenix in the healthcare sector.

BOBRERMRBFAR  BAUTEESRK] B
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Youth Working Committee

CR Phoenix has set up a Youth Working
Committee, aiming to develop the
young generation into the successors
of the management team, thereby
delivering a perpetually sustainable
company. The Youth Working Committee
organized training campaigns on a
regular basis to allow young talents
to have an in-depth perception of our
corporate culture and values and also
shoulder the mission of “Benefit all with
benevolence and competence” to make
contributions to the future development
of the medical and healthcare industry.
In addition, Youth Working Committee
also ran outdoor activities to enhance
team spirit and cohesion. It grants
assessment awards at the end of
every year, including honours such
as The Best Devotion Award and The
Best Persistence Award, to recognize
all the members who remain actively
participated in and committed to the
activities of Youth Working Committee.

Clinical Working Committee

The Clinical Working Committee of the Company (“Clinical
Working Committee”) has established 9 clinical professional
committees to consolidate the academic exchange among
various hospitals and specialties, including academic

activities, case studies, trainings, workshops, user
training on medical devices, joint ward patrolling, surgical
observation, volunteer medical consultation. Through the
collection of statistics of various kinds of clinical training
the Clinical Working Committee also set

up a training database to record and share mutually the

information,

quality training resources of the laboratories under key
development of various hospitals. In addition, The Clinical
Working Committee and the information department jointly
launched a WeChat subscription account named”Phoenix
Healthcare College CHC" (2 & Bl |2l & £ 55CHC), which
integrates the various training resources of the Group and
conduct online management over each and every procedure
of the training programs.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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As the largest general hospital group in China, we are
committed to green development. To ensure our growth
is environmental friendly, we manage all environmental
related matters in a sustainable way, and ensure that we
fully comply with the "Environmental Protection Law of
((REARLFEIRFRE
7%)). We also developed systematic plans and policies in
a bid to incorporate the idea of environmental protection

the People’'s Republic of China”

into our daily operation. These include launch of energy
conservation and emission reduction projects, upgrade
and enhancement of recycling rate of reusable resources
and strict implementation of disposal procedure. We have
engaged qualified hazardous waste disposal companies
recognized by the country and local governments for
hazardous chemical and medical waste transportation
and disposal. In order to maintain relevant emissions
above national standards, we also keep abreast of the
applicable updates to environmental laws and regulations
and standards on a regular basis to take corresponding
measures as appropriate, concretely fulfilling the corporate
responsibility on environmental protection. During the
year ended December 31, 2017 the Group had no non-
compliance regarding environmental protection.
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Air and Carbon Emissions Management BErRRkixgEmER

No significant air or GHG emission is incurred during the BN EN I FEER BRI IZRE S|
operation and ordinary business course of our hospitals. BATETRNETREHEW - & BH NLEE
Our air and carbon emissions are mainly indirect carbon AR TETERRERFERE N
emissions from the use of electricity, air emissions from EAXNEEEER £ 85 (BIEEERE
vehicles (including ambulances) and cooking stoves. In B) NEREREMEENEREEN - A
order to further mitigate impacts on the environment, our E—SREHRENTE  BEEEH
dining halls choose to use natural gas which has fewer HREEEHKXAR -

emissions.

661.53 38.79 | paticuse  103.69

Nitrogen oxides N Sulfur Oxides N N
A Ko BT A Ko BT et K9 BTt
Greenhouse gas (GHG) Value Unit
RERE HE B
Total emissions 57269.75 tonnes CO: equivalent
e s W fLiEE
Direct emissions (Scope 1) 17,743.06 tonnes CO2 equivalent
BEHW (8BE) WE—S(LIREE
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) 39,526.69 tonnes CO: equivalent
BB (FE2) W fLiREE
GHG removals (Scope 1) 9.48 tonnes CO2 equivalent
BERBRMRE (BE1) WE—S(LIREE
Total GHG emissions per square metre of floor area (Scope 96.85 kg CO2 equivalent
1 and 2) (per s.q.m)
BYFREEEBMAEREENRE (BE1K%2) AFZ8RES
(FF75K)

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.



The Group has formulated a “Sewage Treatment
Management System” (57K IE B %l E)) regarding
sewage discharge and treatment, and strictly complied with
relevant national standards such as “Discharge Standard
of Water Pollutants for Medical Organization (GB18466-
2005)" ((EEEBEIOTRMPMIZLE) (GB18466-2005)) and
"Discharge Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater
Treatment Plant (GB18918-2002)" ({3 #8)5 7K iE 32 k)5 4
BEMUZ#) (GB18918-2002)). Our business operation does
not involve any production activities. The primary categories
of our wastewater are domestic sewage and healthcare
wastewater. Healthcare wastewater which contains
pharmaceutical chemicals, virus, etc., if discharged without
proper treatment, may have an impact on the environment
and public hygiene. Accordingly, all hospitals are cautious
about related treatment. Wastewater that contains chemical
and pharmaceutical residue is collected separately by
each department and is handled collectively by qualified
healthcare waste consignees. On the other hand, healthcare
wastewater that contains bacteria and viruses is discharged
together with domestic sewage into sewage treatment
facility built in all healthcare institutes for sedimentation
and chlorination. Those facilities are managed by designated
officers who had received professional training. Staff
performs regular residual chlorine test on effluent. There are
accredited third-party testing agencies performing monthly
sampling test on five indicators, namely pH value, total
residual chlorine, chemical oxygen demand (COD), ammonia
nitrogen and fecal coliform bacteria. Finally, treated sewage
will discharge to designated municipal drainage system
and the government will perform periodic test on sewage
(sewage testing basis: HJ586-2010 and HJ/T347-2007). If
the healthcare institute fails the test, a test report will be
submitted to them.
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Hazardous Waste Treatment

Wastes generated from our healthcare institution operations
are mainly healthcare waste and general waste. We have
developed an effective collection system in all healthcare
institutions to segregate waste. To prevent from cross
contamination and mixing, waste is segregated into colour-
coded waste receptacles.

Based on the requirement of the “Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China’} the Group has
formulated the “Healthcare Waste Management System”
((EBEREYEIEHIE)) and “Hazardous Substances Safety
Management Plan” ((EEWMELZZ2EIEETE])). It aims to
regulate hazardous substance management as to avoid
causing harm to the environment and spreading disease
and to protect patients and employees from the hazard
of these substances. It also sets a comprehensive waste
classification system.
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BFERBEBELNBEYIESBERE
MEk—REY AEEESBREEE
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Hazardous waste Value Unit
BEEREZRY BE BfI
Total 864.92 tonnes
g E U7

Total hazardous waste per square metre of floor area
BYFREHEBEEESEREYESE

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

1.46 kg (per s.g.m)
AFF (FFHIH)




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

General Waste Treatment

General wastes generated from our operations include,
among others, domestic wastes produced by in-patients,
their families and healthcare staff, disposable infusion bag -
or bottle, food waste from restaurants, office paper and
prescription invoices. These wastes are clearly separated
from healthcare waste and are collected, disposed and

recycled by qualified waste consignees.
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Total non-hazardous waste 7343.27 tonnes
BEBEEVRE 7
Total non-hazardous waste per square metre of floor area 12.42 kg (per s.g.m)

BY T ABOEEEZERYEE

Waste disposed to landfill
RERYNEER

66.18 tonnes M
11.89 tonnes M#

I

720730 tonnes M

B Domestic waste M Paper
HEREY) 4ok
™ Food waste

R (BFK)

Waste collected for recycling
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‘27 tonnes I
‘ 3.48 tonnes i

46.15 tonnes I

M Glass M Paper
W Aok
M Plastic
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Use of Resources

As hospitals provide round-the-clock services as well as
a majority of medical devices consume electricity, energy
consumption is inevitable. However, as a responsible
corporate citizen, the Group spares no effort to conserve
energy and strictly complies with “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation” ({F#ZE A K
HMBEELEETREY). In July 2017 we issued the latest
version of “Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
Management System” ((EigeRBEEEHIE)) to develop
the comprehensive direction of energy conservation and
emission reduction for our large-scale healthcare group.
All in-network hospital institutes are required to set up an
energy conservation leading group which is dedicated to
studying on and decision-making for environmental issues
as well as supervising and inspecting the progress of
relevant tasks.

The Group's resource consumption mainly includes the
use of electricity, natural gas, diesel, liquefied petroleum
gas and water. On the other hand, the Group has taken
measures to reduce waste of resources. For instance, in
terms of water resources, Jian Gong Hospital completed
the installation of card swipe device for water supply at
shower rooms in 2017 Specifically, water runs out from the
shower for a limited period after staff place the card, which
effectively reduces excess water consumption. Meanwhile,
sensor faucets are widely used within the Group to save
water consumption. Further, Yan Hua Hospital collects
condensed water to replace drinking water for cleaning and
cloth disinfection. We also recognize that anti-leakage is an
integral part to reduce consumption. The common practice
of our Group members, hence, is to perform regular pipeline
inspection and repair dripping water faucets. For example,
Brain Hospital found loose wall and connection splice in
the old aluminum composite hot water pipe network due
to prolonged thermal expansion and contraction. Varying
degrees of port leakage were found in various wards
and such material was not wrapped with polyethylene
insulation, thus resulting in severe heat loss. Besides, the
hospital did not have retrieved water pipelines for main
hot water pipe. Cooling down stagnant water caused huge
waste, which is not conducive to energy conservation or
environmental protection. Accordingly, the hospital decided
to renew and install additional hot water pipe to the entire
network and adopt PRR composite insulating pipe with
better performance in thermal insulation, thus substantially
improving energy efficiency.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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In terms of electricity consumption, most of our healthcare
institutes have switched to LED lamps, certain of which
feature with voice activation and time limit functions.
To reduce electricity consumption in vacant areas, the
remaining hospitals are proceeding with the replacement
gradually. Mentougou Hospital took the lead to adopt
solar power in replacement of electricity for heating hot
water, striving to make contributions to energy saving and
emission reduction in various aspects.

Apart from water and electricity consumption, our operation
also involves the consumption of paper in offices and
pharmaceutical packaging material. We are endeavored
to reducing consumption, such as discouraging the use
of paper in offices and encouraging employees to adopt
double-sided printing and use paper on both sides as much
as possible. Some of our hospitals use the packaging
provided by suppliers directly to avoid repackaging in
later stage. In addition, the restaurant of certain hospitals
uses reusable plastic containers when delivering meals to
patients.
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Total consumption
BmERE

80,768,332.38

kWh
TEE

Total energy consumption per square metre of floor area 136.58 kWh (per s.q.m)
FPHREHEERREELSE TRE (FF7HXK)
Total consumption 1,870,293.00 m?

BERE SLHK

Total water consumption per square metre of floor area 3.16  m?3 (per s.q.m)
BYHAREEEEFRKES SR (FFHK)
Total consumption 53.64 tonnes

BERE 08

Plastic 3.24  tonnes

¥ 2 ]

Paper 50.40 tonnes

B Mg

Packaging material used per square metre of floor area 90.71 g (per s.g.m)

FYrHAEHEEREYAE

254,541.39 kWhT F B

26,750,603.98 kWhT F B

85425178 KWW T Ei 4
970,01743 kWhT FLBF
M Electricity M Diesel | Gasoline
g s e
@ Natural gas M LPG
RAE, R A BE
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Environment and Natural Resources

As mentioned above, the Group emphasises the
harmonious development with natural environments by
strictly adopting and implementing policies and standard
procedures to protect the environment. These standards
go further than the existing PRC environmental laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, we were in
compliance with all relevant PRC environmental laws and
regulations in all key aspects. No environmental claims,
lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions were
reported. The Group formulated the “Optimization System
for Resource Allocation” ({& JRA F B & $ E)), which
specifies the requirements on the quality and reasonable
allocation of newly procured resources to manage resource
decision-making process and avoid erroneous procurement
and unnecessary use of resources. The Group formulated
the “Radiation Safety Management Plan” ({BEI &2 &E IRt
20)) and “Radiation Emergency Plan” ((#B5TfE2FEZE)) for
all hospitals, which focuses on the management of radiation
safety and specifies the requirements on all radiation
equipment, protection and waste storage and treatment.
Every year, qualified evaluation and rating agencies are
engaged to measure the radiation level of all radiological
equipment and workplaces in the hospitals. Moreover, the
hospitals hold and evaluate radiation drills so as to enhance
the prevention and control of radioactive hazards and
safeguard the hospitals and the surrounding environment.
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Pursuing the concept of “Adhering to our initial and serving
the public” and leveraging our advanced medical technology
and latest hardware, we give back to the community and
bring robust health and hope to people. We contribute
our efforts to the community through the provision of
supporting services to community patients and general
dissemination of health knowledge. We formulated reform
plans on the community medical and healthcare services
institutions and their services. Through improving the
service procedures of the community medical service
institutions, upgrading the staff skills, hardware and
facilities, enhancing the quality of community medical
services. In addition, our medical staff is encouraged to
participate in volunteer medical consultation and support
the other charity events actively, promoting the virtue of
helping others. It is because we believe that, apart from
professional skills, medical practitioners should be more
burdened to serve people with all their hearts before they
could reciprocate and relieve others’ pain.

Free Consultation and Medicine

Our in-network hospitals often organise or participate
in various free medical consultation activities in the
community to provide discounted or even free medical
services for the underprivileged groups or the countless
poor. Other than general clinical and simple body-check
services, we also offer speciality clinical and health check
services for patients with special needs. Some of our free
consultation during the Reporting Period are described as
follows:

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Volunteer clinical event for brain diseases at Guangdong
999 Brain Hospital

B HERERKRE

BR=NIER BRI E R E2 58

On 14 July 2017 Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital partnered
with Xin Feng County People's Hospital and sent a
medical team comprising various nationally renowned
brain specialists including neurosurgeons, neurologists,
psychologists, cerebral palsy specialists and others to
offer volunteer consultation services on brain speciality
for almost 400 community residents. In addition, our
physicians took this opportunity to introduce advanced skills
and medical concepts to primary hospitals so as to help
promote their medical service standards.
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Volunteer consultation campaign in memory of Lei Feng 2R R A AR B R $R 2 2 T B
at CR & WISCO General Hospital (Z 5 2 #i#4 8 57)

i REXIE 5 A

v e

CR & WISCO General Hospital (M8 M456) launched  FHERMMAAERN2017F3AA MRS
the Lei Feng volunteer consultation campaign on 5 March FHRBEDAY - HMLBH0Z LKA
2017. We arranged more than 30 experienced specialists  131EFH = 8 & 5% 5 5 2 i #1E E 41 & 1
from 13 laboratories to offer free clinical consultations and ERBFPL RERERREHRZEZE SN
testing of systolic blood pressure, blood types and glucose PIE -~ ERME - mA & MmEFRS -
for the community residents in Gangdu Garden Community B BANBEZEABWOBREREAN
Healthcare Service Center. Our medical staff answered EEME YHRERERS E{Lr\%ﬁgﬁ
patients’ various questions in details and distributed various Fit - RLEPESEHRAINERL -
pamphlets on health knowledge to the residents on site. AHEA800% ANEXREBANRMZ Eﬂ%

== o

The volunteer consultation campaign was well-received =
by the mass public. A total of more than 800 people were
given the opportunities of health consultations and clinical
services on that day.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.



Volunteer consultation event at Huaibei Miner General JEILIETEEfE 2 ZE
Hospital

On 2 March 2017 the medical staff from the otolaryngology 2017F3F28 ' B IETHETHNES
and neck and head surgery under Huaibei Miner General WBRIGESEINERINEEAEEME ES
Hospital commenced the volunteer consultation event at HEEZIE nmEEE|[F%E -8
Liang Gong Square and disseminated the ear healthcare  F78 -  2FEE | MEEES - T8 -
concept of “early identification, early intervention and early RPN EEAER THEHEREETS
rehabilitation” to the citizens. During the event, our medical = NEE AR0ZETRETHEIER
staff gave a lecture on hearing healthcare and conducted wE KA -

specialty ear check and hearing assessment for more than

50 citizens on site.
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With the theme of “Promoting the
well-off society with general health
and making the Chinese dream come
true together” Jing Mei Hospital
sent a specialty medical team to the
far-off Xiao Long Men Village, Qing
Shui Town, Mentougou to launch a
large-scale healthcare and volunteer
consultation program there. As the
local medical conditions were relatively
underdeveloped, apart from the
provision of volunteer consultations,
we briefed the far off residents on
first-aid training to allow emergency
patients on mountains to obtain proper
and immediate care prior to hospital
admission, and thus increasing the
chance of survival. We also promoted
the “Bright Walk” campaign for
cataract patients from the village to
help them see again through a medical
relief scheme with fee reduction and
exemption.

Support Community Activities

We have actively supported the social welfare agencies
and visited children’s homes with support, care and gift
donation. Other than regular donations, we have also
launched fund-raising campaign by placing donation boxes in
the hospital to raise necessary medical funds for the staff
members that were inflicted with critical illness so as to
relieve their economic burden. During the Reporting Period,
we have made charitable donations totaling approximately
RMB1.4 million to support the groups in need in the society.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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The 2017 Wuhan Marathon first-aid station of CR &

WISCO General Hospital (275 #4848 57)

-!.'~ REMAULT WUHAN MARAT w—.u
BENZES MARATHOMN FENISH

We also tremendously supported the community sports
activities. As the on-spot medical care and rescue agency
designated by 2017 Wuhan Marathon, CR & WISCO General
Hospital (ZEH R i %07) set up a first-aid station at end
point of Marathon and 8 medical check-points on every
session of 300m track to take part in the standby and any
rescue actions on site for protection of Marathon runners.
Our medical team comprised almost 40 medical staff from
various laboratories. With the professional training and
rehearsals ahead of the race, they were well equipped to
make precise judgement in case of emergency and deliver
appropriate first-aid or care responses.

In order to provide timely emergency care, our team was
equipped with all-round first-aid equipment including
cardioverter defibrillator, monitor, respirator and basic
medicines to handle general exhaustion, sprains and torn
muscle of marathon runners. They also undertook physical
recovery and nursery care for the runners after race such as
chilling, antiseptic wound cleansing, oxygen inhalation and
others.
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Civic Education

We despatched pamphlets to attending patients or their
family members in the hospital areas to publicize the proper
clinical concepts and fundamental knowledge on health
such as “Higher chance of recovery if early treatment” and
“Prevention is better than cure’| promoting healthy habits
from the daily-life of the public and thus facilitating a better
quality of life. Furthermore, all in-network hospitals have
set up their own special page of health on their website
respectively and uploaded, from time to time, various
information covering disease prevention, daily-life health,
medical news update and proper drug use together with the
popular healthcare knowledge. We believe, with sufficient
efforts in civic education and healthcare promotion, not
only will the waste of social medical resources be reduced
generally, but also will the overall medical quality of the
community be enhanced.

Prevention of diseases

In response to the “World AIDS Day', Beijing Mentougou
Hospital participated in the promotion campaign of AIDS
prevention and treatment under the leadership of the
Party committee secretary of the regional hospital and
hospital administrator, disseminate the proper knowledge
on AIDS to the general public so as to lessen the social
misconceptions about AIDS patients and promote
acceptance to them. We also put efforts in public education
about the precautionary measures against AIDS and
increase the public awareness of its prevention.
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Seminars on health and popular science knowledge

We actively organized seminars on health and popular
science knowledge in various regions to increase
community knowledge on various diseases and rectify
incorrect beliefs about drug misuse and attitudes such as
“seek consultation in a haste makes waste” Meanwhile,
we advocated the importance of seeking timely medical
treatment to reduce the possibility of missing the best
treatment time or causing further deterioration with any
delay. We envision that the proper medical knowledge and
concept could be propagated gradually in the community,
and thus fostering a healthy life and well-being to the mass
public.

Among all, in order to support the “World Breastfeeding
Week', the pregnant women school under Mentougou
Hospital for Women and Children hosted a seminar on the
know-how of breastfeeding on 1 August 2017 With the
theme of “Breastfeeding: Let's do it we advocated the
benefits of breastfeeding and illustrated the relevant skills
to more than 20 parents-to-be. Consequently, we invited
2 new mothers to share their breastfeeding experience
and the social pressure they had encountered. Through
this event, we hope to gradually deepen public knowledge
on breastfeeding and reduce its associated stigma as to
popularise breastfeeding.
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Anti-corruption

We strictly complied with the relevant requirements of Law
of the People's Republic of China on Medical Practitioner
(P A R EFBIE 2 ERTZE), Law of the People’s Republic
of China Against Unfair Competition (% A RELME &

% 35%) and the Provisions on the Establishment of
Commercial Bribery Records in the Purchase and Sale of
Medicines (BREVEBEBHAFRNEBB IR IDHENR
7€) and Regulations of Consolidating the Implementation
of “Nine Prohibitions” for Proper Medical and Healthcare
Industry Practices (MR E&EFHEITRER"NLTHE"). Our
provisional Party discipline committee member and the
disciplinary inspection unit are responsible for monitoring
the non-medical staff of the Group, its subsidiaries
and medical institutions, while all members of the
medical institutions are under the supervision of various
independent disciplinary, inspection and monitoring units,
thereby enhancing the transparency and accountability of
the monitoring practices. Further, we frequently organized
the training programs on ethics, including visits of the
anti-corruption education bases and invitation of judicial
authorities for attending seminars and education on case
reporting in relation to the medical healthcare sector in
order to increase the staff awareness of being a clean
medical practitioner. Pursuing the “zero tolerance” policy
towards bribery and corruption, we must impose severe
penalties on any bribery and corruptive acts and refer the
cases to judicial authorities.

In addition, according to the “Rules about Carrying out Party
Anti-corruption Construction Responsibility System" (87
BITEREREXRETHAIRE) promulgated by the State
Council, we have also formulated the “CR Healthcare
Group’s Implementation Measures on Party Anti-corruption
Construction Responsibility System” (£ 22 f& &= @ & & BE
BERETHETHIEA) and requested all member units
of China Resources Phoenix Healthcare to sign the “2017
Responsibility Letter for the Unit Carrying out Party Anti-
corruption Construction” (2017 FEREEZEZRETEETE) to
well define the responsibilities of all units in establishment
of the climate of anti-corruption and integrity. It is necessary
for us to enter into “Anti-corruption Agreement” (B& 2 #
##) with the suppliers under cooperation. We have also put
in place the “Provisions on Labour Contract” (AE)&RIR
7F) and “Staff Handbook” (B T Ffff) to standardize the
professional ethics of all employees and strictly prohibit the
improper acts such as corruption, receipts of rebates and
commercial bribery.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Chapters/

Indicators (KPls) Statements Page(s)
TEHRE  BE  —MREBELBREEER X 1 BE
A. Environment

AIRIR

Aspect A1 : Emissions
EEAT - B
General Disclosure  Information on: Air and Carbon 122
(a) the policies; and Emissions
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations Management
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

— MR FABERRERBHENR  MKRLEOEES - B BREBRERER
NEZEZRMNEEEH
(a) BE: &
(b) BTHETABEAZENHEBERZNRONE
o
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions KEY ENVIRONMENTAL 96,122
data. DATA
BB AN PR R R R ARRA P R BUR - TERBHE
EIRAL
KPI A1.2 GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where KEY ENVIRONMENTAL 96,122

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production  DATA
volume, per facility).

RASR AR K BERBATNE (LEEE) k (WER) BE (11 FE2RRHE

RIZAL2 NSER B - SEREHE) ©

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, KEY ENVIRONMENTAL 97124
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of DATA
production volume, per facility).

RSEE R FEEREREEDHESE AWE) k (EH) BE FE2RFEE

EIRA13 (WWABEEEN - BIERBIE) °

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) KEY ENVIRONMENTAL 97,125

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of DATA
production volume, per facility).
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Management
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KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Hazardous Waste 124
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FEIZA1.6 results achieved. fERERRIE
HAEEEELBEEEYMNA L  RIEKELEEMNTE General Waste 125
Mo R FT1S AR © Treatment
—RREEYI BRI

Aspect A2 : Use of Resources

EBHEA2 : BREM

General Disclosure  Policies on the efficient use of resources, Use of Resources  126-127
including energy, water and other raw materials.

—RRWE BREAER (BREER - KEREMERETE) HEEK - ERER

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type KEY ENVIRONMENTAL 98,128

(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) DATA
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).

BSEAE R REAESMEER SEEER (NE - fsih) FERIBEEUE

EIEA2.1 BHEE (UTETERE) KBE (WABEES
7 - §IERMETE) °

KPl A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per KEY ENVIRONMENTAL 98,128
unit of production volume, per facility). DATA

RASEAE K BREKERTE (WMABESE( - BERMITE FERBEE

FE1RA2.2

KPl A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and Use of Resources  126-127
results achieved.

RSB et g IR e A e 5t Bl RS AR © BIREMR

E1RA2.3

KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Use of Resources  126-127
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

SRR K it SREGE A KR ERI B ERIBE - AREARKR EREA

E1RA2.4 a8 RPATISACR -
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RIE -HERERRE
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Chapters/
Indicators (KPls) Statements Page(s)
TEHR  BE - —REBEXBAREEER EX:Gp e L BE
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Use of Resources 98,128
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.
RASEE SR MATABEMENEE (ETE) X (ER) BRER
1E1RA2.5 BAEEBMEE -
Aspect A3 : The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEAI : IRIELAAZIR
General Disclosure  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant Environment and 129
impact on the environment and natural resources. Natural Resources
—MRIEE WRBITAHRRERRABERENERZENBER - RELRKAZIR
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities Environment and 129
on the environment and natural resources and the Natural Resources
actions taken to manage them.
RBEE R HEBEHHRELRAERNEATERERR RELRKAEIR
EIEA3.1 EEARTENTE -
B.Social
Bt
Employment and
Labour Practices
ERERBIER
Aspect B1 : Employment
[EHEB1 : BfE
General Disclosure  Information on: Employment 108-111

—RIKEE

(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
BTG ERE BEXEA  ITERE - RE - F EE
g Zalb - REBBUAREMEB LB

(a) BE: &
(b) BTHBEITABEAFENRBEEIEZLBRHNE
o

EHREBREZERARAT



Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Chapters/

Indicators (KPls) Statements Page(s)

FTEHR  BE  —MRERBERBREEER =N 3 BE#

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by employment type, age group Employment 108
and geographical region.

SRR REREE - FREMNKMESESHESHEE - (=

FE1EB1T

KPI B1.2 Turnover rate by age group and geographical Employment 109
region.

BSEAE R RERAR RS D EEBRALE - (=

E1EB1.2

Aspect B2 : Health and Safety
EHB2 : @RERZS
General Disclosure  Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

—REE FARELZ2TERRAREEEREBELRS
Hy -
(a) BX: Kk
(b) BEBFHETAGBEALENHEBEEZRAINE
#} o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
RIS B TERR ML A SR LR o
$E1EB2.1
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
RASRAE K ETEEATERS -
¥E1%B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety

measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.

AR 4E X WP IR M B R 2R R 2450k - A RMERBHITR
1E1%B2.3 BRI

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

Occupational Health 112-113
and Safety

BEERELE

Occupational Health 114
and Safety

BXERERE

Not disclosed N/A
TNFIEE i

Occupational Health 112-113
and Safety

BxiEFERts
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P

g

mm
B
)
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Chapters/
Indicators (KPls) Statements Page(s)
TEHR  BE - —REBEXBAREEER EX:Gp e L BE
Aspect B3 : Development and Training
[EMEB3 : & &IEII
General Disclosure  Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Development and 114-120
skills for discharging duties at work. Description  Training
of training activities.
—RRIE BFRREAEERITIERENANBRREENBER - BREE
MIFFES
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender Not disclosed N/A
and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).
BSEE BRMRIREEER (NaREEE  PRERBESE) ITTER TiEA
FEIEB3.1 oM XIEEBDL °
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per Not disclosed N/A
employee by gender and employee category.
RASEE BRMRIREEERE S BREETKEIIN TR TTIRE TiE A
#E1EB3.2 0
Aspect B4 : Labour Standards
[EMEB4 : T %R
General Disclosure  Information on: Employment 110
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
— R EE BRAPI I E T skaa %5 THY - (A
(a) BXE: &k
(b) BTHETABEAZENRBERZLRIINE
x o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Not disclosed N/A
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
BABEAE R i s R B M) 15 e AR R B T ORI 85 T o T HE i A
E1EB41
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Not disclosed N/A
practices when discovered.
BSEER HMERRER BN ERBE @SR LRE - TTRE A iE A

FE1EB4.2

EHREBREZERARAT



Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Chapters/
Indicators (KPls) Statements Page(s)
FTEHR  BE  —MRERBERBREEER =N 3 BE#
Operating Practices
ZEEDI
Aspect B5 : Supply Chain Management
EHB5 : HERER
General Disclosure  Policies on managing environmental and social Supply Chain 107
risks of the supply chain. Management
—MREE EIRHEEANIRE M ERRBOR - HEREE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Not disclosed N/A
EBEE R @S SHHEEREA - T E TiEm
FE1EB5.1
KPIl B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain 107
suppliers, number of suppliers where the Management
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
BREER R EREREEENEN  mENTERAEMNNE HERER
J51EB5.2 SR%E - ARABEANRITRERTA -

Aspect B6 : Product Responsibility

BHEB6 : EmEML
General Disclosure

— R EE

KPI B6.1

161%B6.1

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods

of redress.
BUAMREERNMBRBHEEEZ S  BE - 23
FLEEE ARG AR -
(a) BE: &k

B

(b) BTHRTABEARZENMERZIEMEINE

#
Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEXDEXEMEH T AL 2 REREHMAR YK

A DL
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BENEVOLENCE AND 99-107

COMPETENCE

(Y )

Not disclosed

T HE



RIE -HERERRE
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Chapters/
Indicators (KPls) Statements Page(s)
TEHR  BE - —REBEXBAREEER EX:Gp e L BE
KPIl B6.2 Number of products and service related Medical Incident 106
complaints received and how they are dealt with. and Complaint
Management
RASEE PR Em I RGOIF R AR EE % - BEEHRRFER
¥E1%B6.2
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and No intellectual N/A
protecting intellectual property rights. property rights are
involved with our
business
BSEER o BB 4 SRS AN EE R B V1B D) - BMEBRBE LR TEA
161%2B6.3 BERE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and Not disclosed N/A
recall procedures.
RSEE R il E 81 E B R EmBIKIER - T HE TiE A
$515B6.4
KPIl B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Privacy of patients 105
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.
RS AR HIUEEESBRRERLBEE - URBBERITRE BALE
1515B6.5 BRFE e
Aspect B7 : Anti-corruption
EEB7 : RE'S
General Disclosure  Information on: Anti-corruption 138
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
— R BN ILHEE R - HEFROEEER k&S
(a) HX: Kk
(b) BTHZETABEAZENHAEZLRINE
ko
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding No occurence N/A
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the Reporting Period and the
outcomes of the cases.
SEE R REEMANEETASEEEREVEEENESHF REEE i A
$E1EB71 MEHHBE RFAER -

EHREBREZERARAT



Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Chapters/

Indicators (KPls) Statements Page(s)
TEHE - EE - —REBERAREEER EX:0 - 1 B¥
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-  Anti-corruption 138

blowing procedures, how they are implemented
and monitored.

RAGEIE RN W e EmE MR RER - UERBERRTRERE KRES
$E1ZB7.2 b7

Aspect B8 : Community Investment

[EHEBS : @&

General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand Benefit All 130-137
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

—RRI R AL RBERTHREEMEHEFTENRREE BEXT
%EEeE Rt &R RmABUR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Benefit All 130-137
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, Principally focused
culture, sport). on health, elderly,

poverty, healthcare
education and sports

RSB AR K EITERSE (HE  RREFH LIFR & FERT
$512B8.1 R Xit-88)- FTEH IR
HEKEE
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the No statistics for the N/A
focus area. time being
RASRAE K EEIHBMBAER (N EEFFH) o HRARE ST TiEA
515882
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Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA RESOURCES PHOENIX
HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 153 to 299,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

=2
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional MR EXETEEREES 2546
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the RAEE NG BERARZERRASE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. B VHRB e ZEETHAEEEREEE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit SRR REEEREELERE &
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and EReHZEEHIEHEB I ER -

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HEELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNRERRERER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

BAERABRUERAFH2BLEE 2 RBEFME

We identified impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives as a key audit matter due to its
significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the significant management
estimate involved in assessing the
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives.
EENBERABRRAERAFHZETLEE
ZREFEZRNSARERSZE RASH
HFEVBHREMEABEERESR &
NABERAMEAFH BILEEZRBERNG
B RERERE MG -

Details of significant judgments and
assumptions in the impairment assessment
are disclosed in Notes 4 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

WAER L 2 ERAE RBRRFBRERGS
B mRMT4K%22 -

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives included:
EENEMENAERAERAFH BV EE 2 RBIERT
HFT I TIZFF 8245

e Evaluating the external valuers’ competence,
objectivity and qualifications;

o FHEINEMAEED ZBERES  BEMREE

e Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and assumption of discount rate
used in estimating the recoverable amount,
with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists; and

s HEAMBHEEZRERZWHET - E¥TT1E1ED‘35£&F¢ET$
SRR E e EAMKACERENRBZ ZERE N
M

e Evaluating the appropriateness of other key
assumptions and inputs, including financial
forecast, by comparing to historical performance
and industry data.

s FERHEBERBIITEHE FEEMEER
wEBABZRENS - BEMGTEA -
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mak Chi Lung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It F/E

For the year ended
31 December

HZE12A318ILEE

2017 2016
20174F 20164
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
fizx ARETRT AR®BTT
Revenue WS 5 1,532,831
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A A (1,126,198)
Gross profit EF 406,633
Other income HEaA 93,184
Other gains and losses H Yo & B 18 (1,728,693)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (24,128)
Administrative expenses THEHR (147,934)
Finance costs &R 10 (342)
Other expenses HiEA 11 (35,625)
Share of profit (loss) of associates FE(REEE A aFE (E518) (241)
Share of profit (loss) of joint ventures AL ATFE (EBE) (15,335)
Profit (loss) before tax MEIAE (B8) (1,452,481)
Income tax expense Fristim sz 12 (47,331)
Profit (loss) for the year FEMNE (BE) 14 (1,499,812)
Other comprehensive income (expense) HZEU A (F%) 13
ltem that may not be reclassified to AfRER A6 TR E# D IHE
profit or loss: Bam A -
Remeasurement of defined benefit ERENERARETEIZ
pension plans (Note 35) B2 (H5E35) (20,332)
[tems that may be reclassified AJBEREE R EZT T E
subsequently to profit or loss: BamoEA -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHHEREARBEER
investments -
Share of other comprehensive FE(E— A= | R —fE
(expense) income of an associate SENRIZEMEE
and a joint venture (Fx) WA 10,220
Other comprehensive expense FEHEMEAMY
for the year (10,112)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FEZEWA (Fixx) %8
for the year (1,509,924)
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Consolidated Statement of

Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEBEREMEEBAREK

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=2017F 1231 H L FE

For the year ended
31 December

HZ12A31BILFE

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:

IEFENE (BE) :

Equity holders of the Company RAGIERFFEA 421,024 (1,506,964)
Non-controlling interests el 8,661 7,152
429,695 (1,499,812)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FEEE2EWA (Bik) 4258 -
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RAGIERFFEA 403,514 (1,513,010)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR ME 2 8,661 3,086
412,175 (1,509,924)
Earnings (loss) per share SR&EHN (BE)
- basic (RMB yuan per share) —HEK (BRRAEET) 16 0.33 (1.67)
— diluted (RMB yuan per share) — % (ERARYT) 16 0.33 (1.67)
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At 31 December 2017 20179128318

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes  RMB’'000 RMB'000
Mz AREFTRT AREBTT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MK 18 264,292
Intangible assets mEE 19 2,132,362
Receivables from invest-operate- REKRE — 28 —BX
transfer (“IOT") hospitals ([107)) Bz EYFKIE 20 113,004
Lease prepayments for land use right i FREREEN K 21 143,720
Goodwill FEES 22 1,463,611
Interest in an associate R—REEE ARz ER 23 163,338
Interests in joint ventures REERA) R 24 513,648
Loan to a sponsored hospital m— AR ETIREMER 7(iv) -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 25 -
4,793,975
Current assets MENEE
Inventories T8 27 50,241
Loan to a sponsored hospital m—ERPFBRIBENER 7(iv) 47761
Trade receivables FEWE 55 IE 28 255,924
Prepayments and other receivables TERTRIEREMEYRIE 29 43,533
Amounts due from related parties FELUK Ba B 5 218 45 68,228
Short-term investments MERE 30 66,400
Certificate of deposit FEE 31 52,806
Cash and cash equivalents HEeNIREEEY 31 1,069,468
1,654,361
Current liabilities nRBBE
Trade payables FETE SR IE 32 242,757
Other payables H M fE I 3RI8 33 120,655
Amounts due to related parties FE 1~ B RS 75 2B 45 6,914
Payables to hospitals sponsored by FES NS (B 22 gt v BE PR
the Group (the “Sponsored (B0 |) kI8
Hospitals”) 7(iv) 369,344
Tax payables JEHI & 12,678
Borrowings B 34 -
752,348
Net current assets mENEEFAE 902,013
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAEE 5,695,988

EHREBRZERARAT



At 31 December 2017 12017412 A31H

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
Mz AR®TT AR®BTT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Retirement benefit obligations RIKEFE T 35 19,578
Deferred tax liability BB E 26 318,880
338,458
Net assets BEFEAE 5,357530
Capital and reserves A& AR K (e
Capital N 39 267
Share premium IR0 B 6,365,946
Reserves B (1,127,834)
Equity attributable to equity holders of  ZNA TS FA AEIHERS
the Company 5,238,379
Non-controlling interests AR 2 119,151
Total equity 1B REZS 5,357530

The consolidated financial statements on pages 153 to 299
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors of the Company on 22 March 2018 and is signed

on their behalf by:

Han Yuewei
BRE

Director

EF

Ren Yuan

£ &

Director

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31BILFEE

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
iz ARETE AR®ETT
Profit (loss) before tax HarFE (B8) (1,452,481)
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Share of (profit) loss of associates FE(LEEE R 7]
(FH) B8 241
Share of (profit) loss of joint ventures A4 AT (FH) BB 15,335
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BENMERETE
equipment 28,495
Amortisation of lease prepayments for {5 FA#E 7R & TB ) 70 5%
land use right 8,878
Amortisation of intangible asset EmR A EEH 19,146
Interest and investment income FEBRIEERA (35,582)
Finance costs 81758 A 342
Expense recognised on equity-settled  FRiRHEZS A E LARRMD T30
share-based payments Rz E A 23,298
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, E%% 55 = & % Y
plant and equipment, net (Uez) BB 558 565
Fair value changes of mutual funds HERXES QA BEZE 2,645
Foreign exchange gain PE 3 U & (2,016)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 1,727,499
Loss on deemed disposal of a joint BEHE—HELEAT
venture o Ei=] -
Gain on reclassification from Bt AT B DR "
associate to available-for-sales AIHEHEERE 2 WS
investments -
Loss on partial disposal of UMP HEBSERER
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“UMP BREA T (FH&%G%
Healthcare Holdings") S8 ) Moz EIE =
Impairment loss on available-for-sales Ef{%ﬁ%&ﬁZﬂTﬁEﬂE\
investments -
Operating cash flows before LEECEHA 2 KE
movements in working capital BeERE 330,862
Movements in working capital 2iBEEEH
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (ij][l) (7693)
Increase in trade receivables EUE 5 FRIEE N (91,895)
Decrease in prepayments and FEE Iﬁ&ﬁ@fqﬁl
other receivables SRIBR D 201
Increase in amounts due from related  JEUR AR 5 ZRIEIE AN
parties (8,770)
Increase in trade payables FETE SR IEE N 32,522
Increase in other payables H b5 Iﬁiﬁﬂﬂ 33,470
Increase in amounts due to related JFE {~F BA B 5 SRR L N
parties 6,533
Cash generated from operations KEMSRE 295,230
Income taxes paid EFEH (71,442)

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE20175 12318 It F/E

For the year ended
31 December

HZE12A31BILEE
2017 2016

20174 20165
Notes  RMB'000 RMB'000

i ARBETTE ARBTT

Net cash generated from operating KR E TSI & ) F 58
activities 223,788
Cash flows from investing activities REEFMEREME

Interest received from loan to m— AR RBTIREER

a Sponsored Hospital Z TSR E =
Investment income received from SRERMERERA

financial products 21,951
Purchase of financial products HESREM (3,732,622)
Proceeds from disposal of financial BFEEREmTSHRIE

products 3,696,212
Purchase of certificate of deposit WBEFRE (831,084)
Proceeds from certificate of deposit FREBE A 894,962
Purchases of property, plant and BEME  MENEKE

equipment (42,451)
Proceeds from partial disposal of HoHE—HEBE R

an associate FTiS50R -
Proceeds from disposal of available- REEAHEEREZ

for-sales investments FT1S 508 -
Payments to |IOT Hospitals under IOT  1B4ZI0T#% 3% A I0T bz

agreements (BN (32,000)
Repayment from 10T Hospitals |OT 2P (8% 58 14,808
Proceeds from disposal of property, BREVE  WENERE

plant and equipment FTiS50R 308
Purchase of mutual funds BERRES (459,996)
Proceeds from mutual funds HREESEHRIE 502,351

Dividends received from available-for- WAHEHEREWERZ KB
sales investments

Dividends received from an associate it —MIE & R R 2 I B 1,963

Shareholder loan to a joint venture mA—RE&ERaRER
REERK (15,000)
Cash inflow on acquisition of WERB AR ZRER
subsidiaries 101,003
Net cash (used) generated from EEE (FTH) Fr8E &
investing activities AR 120,405
Cash flows from financing activities RETEMERERE
Interest paid ERFIS -
Contributions by non-controlling TR ERITA
interests -
Bank loan received BUIRTITE K 43 -
Payment for repurchase of ordinary BOTERER
shares -
Dividends paid to owners of the SNFARRHEBEAZES
Company 43 (83,112)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ST IEIERER IR E
interests 43 -

EHREBRZERARAT



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31BILFEE
2017 2016

20174 20164
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

ez ARBETT ARBTT

Repayments to the Sponsored I) 22 91 B8 e 3R 3K
Hospitals 43 (15,955)
Proceeds from grant of Award Shares 1R/ HEET &
under share award scheme R D 2 P13 IR 462
Net cash used in financing activities B EBFTRIR 55 (98,605)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and BHERBELEEY Cid)
cash equivalents SRR 245,588
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRERRSEEY
the beginning of the year 821,864
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes & 2 & & g7 £ 2,016

Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRASKERESFEY
of the year 31 1,069,468

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH Re kR EEY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EER DT
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR AR E 31 1,069,468

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings
Company Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands on 28 February 2013. Its shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from 29
November 2013. The registered office of the Company
is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South Church Street,
Grand Cayman KY1-1002, Cayman Islands, and its
principal place of business is located at Beijing, the
PRC. The Company is an investment holding company.

On 31 October 2016 (the “Acquisition Date”), Pinyu
Limited (“Pinyu”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, acquired the entire share capital
of Ample Mighty Limited (“Ample Mighty”) and its
subsidiaries from China Resources Healthcare Group
Limited (“CR Healthcare Group”). Upon completion of
the acquisition of Ample Mighty and its subsidiaries
(the "Acquisition”), the name of the Company has been
changed from “Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd"” (“[&l
BEZEEB AR AA") to “China Resources Phoenix
Healthcare Holdings Company Limited” ("% E B B &%
ERAERATR").

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
mainly engaged in provision of general healthcare
services, provision of hospital management and
consulting services, group purchasing organisation
("GPQ") business and other hospital-derived services
in Mainland China.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

EHEEERERBR AR (AR
all) M2013F2H28H REFH =2 B
SRRVEEREHESIMA L RE
HREREMERR - RN BE2013
FINAB R EBHERIME
PRAE ([BEAZRT]) £tk £ e K
A &) 5 i 9% = & b ik B4th Floor,
Harbour Place, 103 South Church
Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman lIslands © = Z & ¥ 27
RABILER - RARIRKEERA
3] o

72016108318 ([WEBH]) -
Pinyu Limited ([Pinyul @ 2N R]AY
ME2EWNBAR) HEPNBEEE
ERAR ([EHEBEEE]) WEE
wERAR ([BH]) REWB QR
ZERRA - RIBEHEREWE AR
([YefEEIE]) TR & + NAFIRH
HIEEEBEREBBRAR] EE A
(=B REEIERARAR] -

ARmRENBLR (TAREE]) X
EETEAMEFREHESRS BRER
% IRHBREENEARSE &8
REBAR ([GPOJ) EHIA K H 5
BT A ARRS
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ﬁgO
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

The Group has applied for the first time in the current
year the following amendments to IFRSs issued by
IASB.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

IAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
IAS 12 for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to As part of the Annual
IFRS 12 Improvements to IFRS standards

2014 - 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments require
an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets
if cash flows from those financial assets were, or
future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from
financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control
of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in Note 43.
Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in Note 43, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards and interpretations that have been

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

issued but are not yet effective.

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23

Amendments to
IFRS 2

Amendments to
IFRS 4

Amendments to
IFRS 9

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to
IAS 19

Amendments to
IAS 28

Amendments to
IAS 40

Amendments to
IAS 28

Amendments to
IFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?
Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

As part of the Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards
2014-2016 Cycle’

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle?
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

{ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new IFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate
that the application of all other new and amendments
to IFRSs and Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of IFRS 9 are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"). All other financial assets are measured
at their fair value at subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the
Directors anticipate the following potential impact on
initial application of IFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Debt instruments classified as loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost as disclosed in Notes 7(iv)
and 20: these are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial
assets will continue to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost upon the application of IFRS 9;

Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in Note
25: these securities qualified for designation as at
FVTOCI under IFRS 9, however, the Group plans not to
elect the option for the designation and will measure
these securities at fair value with subsequent fair value
gains or losses to be recognised in profit or loss. Upon
initial application of IFRS 9, there's no investments
revaluation reserve related to these available-for-sale
investments will be transferred to retained earnings at
1 January 2018.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under IAS 39.
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Impairment

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 will result
in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that
subject to the impartment provision upon application of
IFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the accumulated amount of impartment loss
to be recognised by the Group as at 1 January 2018
would be increased as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under IAS 39 mainly attributable to
expected credit losses provision on trade receivables,
other receivables, receivables from IOT Hospitals, loan
to a sponsored hospital and amounts due from related
parties. Such further impairment recognised under
expected credit loss model would reduce the opening
retained earnings and increase the deferred tax assets
at 1 January 2018.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

In April 2016, the IASB issued Clarifications to IFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The Directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however,
the Directors do not anticipate that the application
of IFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS
16 will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Upon application of the IFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be both presented as financing cash flows by the
Group.
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IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Under IAS 17 the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group
is a lessee. The application of IFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
IAS 17 and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
IFRS 16.

As disclosed in Note 40, total operating lease
commitments for the Group as at 31 December
2017 amounted to RMB5,114,000. The Directors do
not expect the applicable of IFRS 16 would result
in significant impact on the Group’s results but it is
expected that certain of these lease commitments
will be required to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of IFRS 16.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.
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The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17 and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e |evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporates
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

(i) has power over the investee;

(ii) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

(iii) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance
with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition date;
and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’'s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date), and additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or groups of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal (or any of the cash-generating unit within
group of cash-generating units in which the Group
monitors goodwill).

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and joint ventures is
described below.
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An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/
joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group's investment in an
associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

H-RBERRHLAERRZIRE -
BERERAKSBERTREER
AlE ARERAEDEARR - WiEH—
B ERAREERRZRER - &
BRABEARED R RIE QR
ZAHRBERBEZARFEZE
M BEEASHE Yt ARERA
B> REMFR - AEEDERBEAIE
ERABEZAAFEBHRERARNZ
EE5 - RERKEBIRE 2 HRA

RERER o

AT ERBER e #RIE395 2
HE - BRI EAARAKEREBE R
AlE A SR A A HERR ()R (E &
8o M ER  WRERETELS
RKARMIKE (BREEE) FR—
BRE—BE  UWHBHAIKE SR
(AfEREEEAAEERKLEMXA
B8 sE/%E) BIREE A H
HEERMEFRENR - TR
RBEERSBRIREREE —#
7 o iR E 2 Bl R ERIE N -
A14% IR B R & 5t % RI 32365 HE 72 R
EEERED -

EHREBRZERARAT



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of
IAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as it fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or join venture would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.
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When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.
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Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property
is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the
entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element at initial recognition.
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Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "lease prepayments for land use right” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
is reflected immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
actuarial changes reserve and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment.
Interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
at the beginning of the period to the defined benefit
obligation.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past
service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

e interest expense; and

O remeasurement.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share award scheme

For award shares granted that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of award shares granted at the date of grant, net
of any initial grant price received, without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions. The fair
value of services is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of award shares that will eventually vest with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve). For award shares that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the services received is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share award scheme (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of award shares that are
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expenses
reflects the revised estimate with a corresponding
adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

When the award shares are vested, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to treasury share reserve. The
difference between the amount previously recognised
in share-based payment reserve and the cost for
repurchasing the award shares will be transferred from
treasury share reserve to capital reserve.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting periods and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting periods, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress as described below are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property, plant and equipment, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).
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Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but the increased carrying amount shall not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted-average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition.
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Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant periods.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset (including short-term investments)
other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

i) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

i) the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

i) it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and |IAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gain or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item. The dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets at FVTPL is
included in the “other income” line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 47.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Dividends on AFS equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group'’s right to receive the dividends is established.
Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, receivables from 10T
Hospitals, loan to a sponsored hospital, amounts due
from related parties, certificate of deposit and cash
and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at FVTPL are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade receivable or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulate under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant periods.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to related parties, payables
to the Sponsored Hospitals and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.
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Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the management of
the Group is required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and the future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimation, that the management of the
Group has made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Control over the hospitals under IOT agreements
The Group entered into a series of |IOT agreements
with the not-for-profit hospitals and their contributors
in which the Group agrees to make investments to
the hospitals or/and the contributors to improve the
medical facilities of the hospitals in exchange for the
right to manage and operate the hospital and receive
performance-based management fees for periods
ranging from 16 to 48 years. The operating rights are
expected to be transferred back to the hospitals or
their contributors after these periods.

The management assessed whether or not the Group
has control over these not-for-profit hospitals through
the IOT agreements (the "“IOT Hospitals”) based on
whether the Group has the practical ability to direct
the IOT Hospitals' relevant activities unilaterally. In
making their judgement, the management considered
the composition of the internal governance bodies and
also certain committees which oversee the operations
of the hospitals. After assessment, the management
concluded that the Group does not obtain the decision
making power under these bodies and committees to
direct the relevant activities of the hospitals, so the
Group does not control and thus does not consolidate
those hospitals. Instead, these IOT agreements are
considered as management contracts to generate
management service income. Details of the 0T
agreements are set out in Note 7.
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Control over the hospitals under the sponsorship
rights and service agreements

The Group acquired the sponsorship rights from other
parties and became the sponsor of certain not-for-
profit hospitals. The Group also entered into a series of
service agreements with those not-for-profit hospitals
in which the Group agrees to provide management
services to the hospitals and receive management
fees. According to the contract, the management fees
to be received by the Group shall be comprised of
supply chain management service fees and hospital
management fees. The supply chain management
service fees were based on certain percentage of the
procurement of the hospitals whereas the hospital
management fees were based on certain percentages
of the revenue and net income before tax generated by
the hospitals.

The management assessed whether or not the Group
has control over these not-for-profit hospitals through
the sponsorship rights and service agreements based
on whether the Group has the practical ability to direct
the hospitals’ relevant activities unilaterally. In making
their judgement, the management considered the
composition of the internal governance bodies and
also certain committees which oversee the operations
of the hospitals. After assessment, the management
concluded that the Group does not obtain the decision
making power under these bodies and committees to
direct the relevant activities of the hospitals, so the
Group does not control and thus does not consolidate
those hospitals. Instead, these service agreements are
considered to generate service income. Details of the
sponsorship rights and service agreements are set out
in Note 7.
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The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of each of the reporting period that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year from the end of each reporting
period.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal. The calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows, a
further impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2017 and 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill is
RMB1,463,611,000 (net of accumulated impairment
loss of RMB1,727499,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in Note 22.
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Estimated useful lives and impairment of
sponsorship rights and services contracts

The Group’s management estimates the useful lives
of the sponsorship rights and services contracts of
the hospitals are indefinite. This estimate is based on
an analysis of all of the relevant factors, such as the
expected useful life of similar nature and functions,
the period of control over the right and legal or
similar limits on the use of the rights (including the
ability to renew the service contracts upon their
maturity through the sponsorship rights to appoint
representatives in the board of trustees of the
Sponsored Hospitals), and the useful life is dependent
on the useful life of other assets of the hospitals.
Based on this analysis, the Group’'s management
considers there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the right is expected to generate net cash
inflows for the Group.

The carrying amounts of the sponsorship rights and
services contracts are reviewed to assess whether
their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts annually. The recoverable amount is
determined based on the cash-generating unit to which
the sponsorship rights and services contracts have
been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use
and fair value less costs of disposals. The impairment
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit, which has taken into account the estimation of
expected future cash flows of services contracts, and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised to
write the assets down to its recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the carrying
amounts of the sponsorship rights and services
contracts is RMB1,728,026,000 and the details of the
recoverable amounts calculation are disclosed in Notes
19 and 22, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Impairment of loan to a sponsored hospital,
receivables from IOT Hospitals, trade receivables
and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group takes into consideration
the financial strength of the sponsored hospital and
the 10T Hospitals, the credit history of the customers
and the current market condition. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
management reassesses the adequacy of impairment
on a regular basis. Where the actual cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
The carrying amount of loan to a sponsored hospital,
receivables from IOT Hospitals, trade receivables and
other receivables are disclosed in Notes 7 20, 28 and
29, respectively.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group takes into consideration the
market price of the available-for-sale investments. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
fair value based on the quoted market price. If there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the asset below its cost, a material impairment
loss may arise, and the cumulative net loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
should be reclassified from other comprehensive
income to profit or loss even though the asset has
not been derecognised. The carrying amount of the
available-for-sale investments is RMB137,406,000 (2016:
nil) as at 31 December 2017 as disclosed in Note 25.

Due to a significant decline in the fair value of the
equity securities below its cost in current year, the
Directors considered there was an objective evidence
of impairment. Accordingly, the Group recognised
impairment loss of RMB93,255,000 based on the
closing price at HKD1.73 per share quoted on the Stock
Exchange as at 31 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Revenue represents income from general healthcare
services, hospital management and consulting
services, and sale of pharmaceuticals, medical devices
and medical consumables under the GPO business,
and professional medical consultation services under
other hospital-derived services.

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as

Watetra BRERYE - B EIEME
BRI IA R AEGPOSE TS 85 & % n
BERESWMARERREY  REMERT
ERT B X B R AR EE
HA e

AEBFRANWKESITAT

follows:
For the year ended
31 December
HZE12A31BILEE
2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTF T ARBTFT
General healthcare services A BERS 600,892
Hospital management and BbrE IR KA RS
consulting services
From 10T and Sponsored Hospitals R B I10T [z 22§ &2 116,386
From third party suppliers (Note) REFE=HHER (M) =
GPO business GPOET% 810,510
Other hospital-derived services HE BT ER 5,043
1,532,831

Note: The Group entered into the agreements with its third party suppliers
for the joint development of a regional integrated pharmaceutical
supply chain management system (“Supply Chain Joint Development
Agreement”), which became effective from 1 January 2017 With
Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd Gt =M fE=ERARAA) (“Jian
Gong Hospital”), two IOT hospitals and one Sponsored Hospital
as the main service targets, the Group provides supply chain
management services to the suppliers and charge the suppliers
supply chain management service fees mainly based on a percentage
of made by the hospitals mentioned above from the suppliers. The
agreements will expire as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2019, respectively.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

The Board is identified as the chief operating decision
maker (the "CODM") of the Group for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment. The
CODM reviews operating results and financial information
for each operating company separately. Accordingly, each
operating company is identified as an operating segment.
Certain operating companies are aggregated for segment
reporting purpose after taking into account that those
operating companies are operating in similar business
model with similar target group of customers, similar
methods used to distribute their products and under the
same regulatory environment.

Revenue from this segment is mainly derived from
hospital services provided at Jian Gong Hospital
and 999 Medical Clinic (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (999
Clinic") ("= hB&EFIZE (RY) BREFEAF")

The Group provides comprehensive management
and consulting services to |IOT Hospitals and
Sponsored Hospitals and receives from each
IOT Hospital and each Sponsored Hospital an
annual fee. The Group also receives supply chain
management service fees through setting up
supply chain management system from third party
suppliers.

The Group derives revenue from sales of
pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables to Jian Gong Hospital, the 0T
Hospitals, the Sponsored Hospitals and external
customers.

[t mainly represents professional medical
consultation service provided to third parties.

Segment information about the Group’'s reportable
segment is presented below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. 7HER w0
Segment revenue, results, assets and Huz - XB - EERE

204

liabilities

For year ended 31 December 2017 HE20175128NALEE
External revenue el 664,282 325,931 857,720 29791 1877724
Intersegment revenue ARk - - 196,191 1,302 197493
Segment revenue el 664,282 325,931 1,053,911 31,093 2,075,217
Eliminations e (197,493)
Consolidated revenue A 1,877,724
Segment results I 47308 214070 205,182 20,678 487238
Share of profit of associates iy NG il 5,259
Unallocated share of profit of a RAREE—

joint venture ARERANE 16,263
Loss on deemed disposal of UMP B EEUMP Healthcare
Healthcare (Beijing) Group Limited (Beijing) Group Limited

("UMP Beijing") (Hag® (tn))) B8 (307)
Loss on partial disposal of HEBSBEEE

UMP Healthcare Holdings BARE BB (3,114)
Gain on reclassification of interest in REABHEEY

UMP Healthcare Holdings from ERmEE T

associate to available-forsale BENAEATHR

investments LERE MR 115,358
Dividend received from BRAEEERERSE

available-forsale investments 1,768
Impairment loss on available-forsale It ERERESE

investments (93,255)
Unallocated interest and investment ROBESRRBRA

income 36,752
Share-based payment expense IRAFH B (5,151)
Finance costs HBER (2,482)
Foreign exchange gain 36 6,042
Other unallocated expense Eth RN BRI (4,864)
Profit before tax BiATFI 559,507

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Hospital
management Other
General and hospital-
healthcare ~ consulting GPO derived
services services business services Total
Ga  BEhEER Hip B
BERE FHRE  GPO%RE  HTAERE =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12A318
Segment assets NHEE
Goodwill mE
Cash and cash equivalents and ReRBREEED
certificate of deposit REFE
Short-term investments RHRE
Interest in an associate i AYNEIPA: o
Available-forsale investments AHHERE
Other unallocated assets EAPEREE
Elimination of intersegment ’“BF'?WQ IR
receivables
Consolidated assets GREE
Segment liabilities AHEE
Borrowings B
Other unallocated liabilities EkniaE
Elimination of inter-segment payables 7SN FUEEH
Consolidated liabilities GRERE
Other segment information m’“ e
Amounts included in the measure of gfg FES
segment results or segment assets: é“/XﬂTQMZfﬁ
Addition to non-current assets NEFRBEE
(Note) (Fi&E)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, BENE  BRERIREL
plant and equipment, net FER (W)
Interest income FMEKA
Amounts regularly provided to the Vi X D
CODM but not included in the BFFAREE
measure of segment results or A HRETEH
segment assets: Fa
Interest in an associate i A=YNEIPA: T
Share of profit of an associate FEfh—RIE D RIFE
Unallocated share of profit of a ROREE—HAERR
joint venture M
Share-based payment expense RG R ER
Finance costs HBER
Foreign exchange gain B 5 Mg
Income tax expense FERAY
Note: Non-current assets consist of property, plant and equipment, lease Mz EMBEERTEWE  BEREE - THER

prepayments for land use right and intangible assets.

BEEENTARELEAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Hospital
management Other
General and hospital-
healthcare  consulting GPO derived
services services business services Total
e BREER HthEEhr

BRRE  RakE GPOXE AR st
RVB'000  RMB'000  RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETL  ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR

For year ended 31 December 2016 22016512310 LEE

External revenue Sk 600,892 116,386 810,510 5,043 1,532,831
Intersegment revenue PEbEE - - 200,824 - 200,824
Segment revenue Pl 600,892 116,386 1,011,334 5,043 1,733,655
Eliminations bl (200,824)
Consolidated revenue FAkE 1,532,831
Segment results RS 39,241 116,797 177553 946 334,537
Share of loss of an associate e —RIBE L TEﬁﬁ (241)
Unallocated share of loss of a FOEEE—HAEAR

joint venture B (13,547)
Unallocated interest and RARHER

investment income KEWA 25,004
Impairment loss on goodwill BHEREER (1,727499)
Share-based payment expense MEORZZER (23,298)
Finance costs HBER (342)
Foreign exchange gain & % Muzs 2,016
Other unallocated expense Hi AP EES (49,111)
Loss before tax AR (1,452,481)
As at 31 December 2016 #2016512A8318
Segment assets PHBE h57226 2,980,420 257642 2,457 3,797745
Goodwill HE 1,463,611
Cash and cash equivalents and ReRRLEENR

certificate of deposit Tk 1,122,274
Short-term investments RHRE 66,400
Interest in an associate il i) YN 3 163,338
Unallocated interest in Al = t-YNC 4

ajoint venture AOEER 7487
Other unallocated assets kA iEE 1,279
Elimination of intersegment A E IR 3

receivables (173,798)

i
op>
g
F

Consolidated assets 6,448,336

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Hospital
management Other
General and hospital-
healthcare consulting GPO derived
Services services business services Total
e BREER Bt B

BERG  RAR% GPOXE (AR &t
RMB'000  RWB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT  ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETR

Segment liabilities NHERE 149,010 828,706 268,825 1,390  1,247931
Other unallocated liabilities HWAPEEE 16,673
Elimination of intersegment payables DR FIEEE (173,798)
Consolidated liabilities Fahf 1,090,806
Other segment information HigHHEs
Amounts included in the measure of FERHRE
segment results or segment assets:  FHEERFAZEH -
Addition to non-current assets (Note) ~ REIEREAE (i) 130,644 1,757753 6,979 - 1,895,376
Depreciation and amortisation TERSEE 28,538 21,710 768 - 51,016
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ REWE * BE &G
equipment, net LEER 437 - 128 - 565
Interest income MEKA - (13,631) - - (13,631)
Amounts regularly provided to the Vi EE D
CODM but not included in the BTG H2E
measure of segment results or AR HRETEH
segment assets: £
Interest in an associate R-FE N R 2 ER NA TER NA RER NA TER NA FER 163,338
Unallocated interest in R-AaERFZ
a joint venture L gy NA. TER NA TER NA TEE NA TEH 7487
Share of loss of an associate Efi—RBERRER NA TER NA RER NA TER NA FER 241
Unallocated share of loss of AOREL AR AT
a joint venture BE NA NER NA NER NA REE NA TER 13,547
Share-based payment expense WRGAH2ER NA TER NA TER NA TEE NA TER 23,298
Finance costs HBER NA FER NA TEE NA TER NA TEE 342
Foreign exchange gain & 5 egs NA NER NA FER NA REE NA TER (2,016)
Income tax expense FEHES 2,044 1,165 43,788 334 47331
Note: Non-current assets consist of property, plant and equipment, lease Mzt JERMBEEBEYE - BERRH - e
prepayments for land use right and intangible assets, including those BHERNFARERAE (B1EEBIEENH
acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries. BARESHEREE) -

EHREBRZERARAT
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Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from both external and inter-segment
customers. The intersegment transactions are charged
at regulated price for the sales of pharmaceutical,
medical devices and medical consumables.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described
in Note 3. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, all
assets are allocated to operating segments other
than goodwill, cash and cash equivalents, certificate
of deposit, short-term investments, interest in an
associate, unallocated interest in a joint venture,
available-for-sale investments and certain assets of
the Company and overseas subsidiaries. All liabilities
are allocated to operating segments other than
borrowings and liabilities of the Company and overseas
subsidiaries.

Income tax expenses have been allocated among the
segments as additional information regularly provided
to the management but not included in the measure
of segment result while the relevant tax payables and
deferred tax liabilities have been allocated into the
segment liabilities.

No geographical information is presented as all of the
Group's revenue is derived from activities in the PRC.
The Group’s operations and non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Revenue from the customers, including revenue from
hospital management and consulting services and GPO
business, contributing over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group during both years is as follows:

AR 148 7 7 o 19 4 7 o B 4 M ok 6
BIBIO%ME S 2 3k (BIERE %
R IR I A SRS BEGPO 2 A A k)
T

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A3181LEE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Beijing Jing Mei Hospital Group
JtRREEEEER)
(*Jing Mei Hospital”)

Beijing Yan Hua Hospital
Gl=e-la-1)
(“Yan Hua Hospital”)

Beijing Mentougou Hospital
(JtRmF9sEE = Bh)
(“Mentougou Hospital”)

AR EERER
(MRt EERe )

bR FAC BB

(T #ef &b J)

bR FIRE IR B b
(TPsRBmER 1)

344,073

313,872

164,373

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total

revenue of the Group.

* BRAMEY BEAEERKE10% AL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

The Group entered into IOT agreements with the
contributors of IOT Hospitals, including Yan Hua
Hospital, Jing Mei Hospital, Mentougou Hospital,
Beijing Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine
Hospital (3t ;X ™ P9 38 )8 [& + & % Ft) (“Mentougou
TCM Hospital”), Beijing Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children (dt = 1 F9 88 8 2 &7 4 1R {2 Br)
(“"Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children”),
Airport Hospital of Shunyi District (3t = ™ JIg & [& 2=
BERT) (“Airport Hospital”) and Shunyi District No.2
Hospital (At RTJEZEE S —&Fc) (the “No.2 Hospital”)
(collectively referred to as the “Shunyi Hospital”),
Third Center Hospital of Baoding City (fREME =
L B BE) (“Third Center Hospital”) and First Center
Hospital of Baoding City ({fRiEE —HEPFT) (“First
Center Hospital”). Pursuant to the IOT agreements,
the Group is committed to provide (i) investment
amounts to the 10T Hospitals that will be repaid back
to the Group (the “Repayable Investment Amounts”)
or (i) investment amounts to the contributors of the
IOT Hospitals that will not be returned to the Group
in return for the operating rights of the 10T Hospitals
over periods ranging from 16 to 48 years, subject to
other conditions set out in the |OT agreements. Under
the 10T agreements, the Group operates and provides
management services to the |OT Hospitals and derives
management fee based on pre-set formulas set out in
the 10T agreements.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Upon completion of the Acquisition as disclosed in
Note 1, the Group owns 100% equity interests in (i)
China Resources Hospital Holding Company (“CR
Hospital Holding’ "#HEFiER AR A F]"), which is
the sponsor for Huaibei Miner General Hospital Group
(“Huaikuang Hospital Group” "#1t#& T 2R EE")
and Xuzhou Mining Hospital (“Xukuang Hospital” "#&
M T B& LU 2 BE"), (i) Shenzhen Yukangrun Hospital
Management Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Yukangrun #3JIm
HWEEEREEEARAA"), which is the sponsor for
Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital (“Brain Hospital” "&
R NIEEIZEBT ). Such Sponsored Hospitals entered
into consulting service contracts with Beijing Phoenix
United Hospital Management Joint Stock Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Phoenix’ It REEME BREERNBERA
A]) and China Resources Hospital Investment (China)
Co., Ltd (“CR Hospital Investment” "ZEBHEEKRE (h
Bl) BFRAF]") as disclosed in Note 7(vi). Pursuant to
the consulting service contracts, the Group commits to
provide consulting services to the Sponsored Hospitals.
In return, the Group charges the Sponsored Hospitals
service fees based on pre-set formulas set out in the
consulting services contracts.

The amount of hospital management and
consulting services fees received/receivable by the
Group from the IOT Hospitals and the Sponsored
Hospitals are as follows:

YRR < B SERk 1R - AREHEA
(VLR TSR EE ([ERER S
B ) LMl el ([TREE )
ZEBHERBREZERER AR ([
HEREER]D - (NER=NERER
(TR EE B 1) 2 28 3 75 R Yl i+ R
BREEARLR (TRIER] 2
100% et - & FRIM B EIL R EE
BEBREEROHBRAE ([IERR
Bl REEERRE (FE) ERA
A ([ERBRKE] ST ERREE
Rl - 20FE EE7(VI)FT IR BB AR 15 B A AR
e R - N5 B A gE 2 b iR
BRRE - MAKREERERRSES
[R Fr 51 80 2 TR TE 22 = [7) 28 1 B8 B W AR
RIGE -

(i) AEBEBEWK EUIOTE R & 2
MELNBRERERAAREE
SR

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A3181LFE

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR¥TT

IOT Hospitals IOTEER 94,817
The Sponsored Hospitals RiEERfr 21,569
116,386
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

7. 10T Arrangements/Services 7. IOTZHE B IB BT K

Arrangement with Sponsored AR 7% Z B w0

Hospitals (Continued)

(ii) The amount of revenue and cost of sales derived (i) MIOTE R & 52 3 B2 B2 42 £ GPO
from GPO business to the 10T Hospitals and the B 70 748 |17 > o Sl B K S 2 ]
Sponsored Hospitals are as follows: T
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017F12A31HILFE

IOT Hospitals IOTEFr 833,011 645,056
The Sponsored Hospitals (Note) BT (M) 24,285 22,350
857,296 667,406

Note: Revenue derived from GPO business to the Sponsored 3T i R P BB IR HGPOX K TS s B FE R g &

Hospitals contains revenue from China Resources Wuhan ERMERER ((REEREER]) K ARK
Iron and Steel Hospital Group (“Wugang Hospital Group’, " 6.876,0007T - 2 H i 8 b &= B A3 E R M (1t)
R EE") of RMB6,876,000. Wugang Hospital Group sremEaRAT ((EERM] AEEZALA
is a Sponsored Hospital of China Resources Wugang (Hubei) 7)) ZERyEErE .

Hospital Co., Ltd (“CR Wugang’; “ZEHR# (i) Bz EEHR
A A)"), which is the Group's joint venture.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE2016F12H31HIFFZE

IOT Hospitals |OTE&Fr 806,037 635,489

806,037 635,489

212 China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /~nnual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z20176F12A31B L F/E

IOT Arrangements/Services
Arrangement with Sponsored
Hospitals (Continued)

(11} The carrying amount of operating rights and
the sponsorship rights and services contracts,
classified as intangible assets (Note 19), and
receivables from |OT Hospitals at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December 2017

7. I0TZR 8~ BA 82 YR BE B 1Y
BR 7% & Bk m)

(iii) RBEBRDERBTEE (4
RE19) AYAT S HE K SR N AR S
B RMREEN K ERIOTER
BB

2017412 H31H

|OT Hospitals |OTZ R 384,453 - 14,838 110,566
The Sponsored Hospitals BB - 1,728,026 = =
384,453 1,728,026 14,838 110,566

As at 31 December 2016 R2016F12831H

|OT Hospitals |OTEpz 404,336 - 14,838 113,004
The Sponsored Hospitals BipEEh - 1,728,026 = =
404,336 1,728,026 14,838 113,004

EPREEERZERAERQ2T - 0 213
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

7. 10T Arrangements/Services
Arrangement with Sponsored
HOSpitals (Continued)

(iv) The amount of trade receivables with the 10T
Hospitals and the Sponsored Hospitals (including
amounts due from related parties), loan to a
sponsored hospital, and payables to the Sponsored
Hospitals at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

As at 31 December 2017

7. I0TZHE BRI BT 1Y
BR & Z HE @)

(iv) R BIR R B 10T B B Je 28 3t
B EKE 5308 (BREEK
BT 5KOR) A — SRR
REMEREEMNEHRBERREA
(N

R2017E12H31H

|OT Hospitals |OTE5z 351,829 = B =
The Sponsored Hospitals Bl 22,265 50,312 57,834 210,000
374,094 50,312 57,834 210,000

As at 31 December 2016

R2016F12H31H

|OT Hospitals |OTERT 271,627 = = =
The Sponsored Hospitals Ryreefr 26,749 47761 109,344 260,000
298,376 47761 109,344 260,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

(Continued)

Notes:

a.

In November 2014, CR Hospital Investment and Xukuang
Hospital entered into a three-year loan agreement. Pursuant
to the agreement, the loan bears the prevailing three-year
bank loan interest rate plus 2%. The interest will be paid on its
maturity.

In November 2017, the above three-year loan agreement was
renewed and extended to November 2020. Pursuant to the
agreement, the loan bears the prevailing three-year bank loan
interest rate. The interest will be paid on its maturity.

Loans from the Sponsored Hospitals are unsecured, bearing
interest at 0.35% per annum and repayable on demand.

The balances are non-trade in nature, unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

Details of the |OT agreements have been disclosed
in the Company’s annual reports in prior years

Except as described below, there is no change in
the IOT arrangements during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

a.  MR2014FN1MA - EHERKEHRRKRE
BRIV AR FHNERDH - RIBZ
Wk - BRIEBRIT=FHBRTERFIER
B2%st B - FEBREBEREH
B At o

R2017F 1A UWE=ZFHER =
EEENTERE2020F118 - RIBEZ
# - BERRBIT=FHRITERF X
AR - FIB R B E R IR 1 -

b. XRERBRERENERREER &
0.35% M F A X518 A EIREREE -

c. RERBRRIFBHILE  EEW - T
B RBRERERE -

IOTH M FBCENETFER
NANFEEREPREE - BRIAT
aish - IOTLBER B £20174F
K2016F12A31H IEFE R

EHREBRZERARAT



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Third Center Hospital

On 15 September 2015, the Group entered into
IOT agreement with the People's Government of
Baoding, Hebei Province (A 4L 1R E ™ A K K )
(“Baoding Government”), which is the contributor
of Third Center Hospital, and obtained the
operating right of Third Center Hospital with a
period of 20 years from 2016 to 2035. Under
the IOT agreement, the Group commits to make
Repayable Investment Amounts of RMB70 million
to Third Center Hospital in 2016, which will be
repaid to the Group in equal annual instalments
during the tenure of the IOT arrangement. In
the meantime, the Group commits to establish
a special purpose charity fund of RMB20 million
subject to the investment progress of Third
Centre Hospital. During 2016, the Group had
contributed RMB3 million to the fund which has
been established in 2016 and made Repayable
Investment Amounts of RMB32 million to Third

Center Hospital.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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20159981658 » REFEEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Xukuang Hospital

Xukuang Hospital is a not-for-profit hospital
organised in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. CR
Hospital Investment, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ample Mighty entered into a service
contract with Xukuang Hospital, which took effect
from 24 December 2015.

Huaikuang Hospital Group

Huaikuang Hospital Group is a not-for-profit
hospital organised in Anhui Province, the PRC.
CR Hospital Investment entered into a consulting
services contract with Huaikuang Hospital Group,
which took effect as from 1 May 2016.

Brain Hospital

Brain Hospital is a not-forprofit hospital organised
in Guangdong Province, the PRC. CR Hospital
Investment entered into a consulting services
contract with Brain Hospital, which took effect as
from 1 May 2016.

Development during the year ended

31 December 2017

In 2017, the above service contracts have been
terminated and replaced by the new contracts
entered between the Group and the Sponsored
Hospitals. According to the contracts, the
management fees to be received by the Group
shall be comprised of supply chain management
service fees and hospital management fees. The
supply chain management service fees are based
on certain percentages of the procurement of the
hospitals whereas the hospital management fees
are based on certain percentages of the revenue
and net income before tax generated by the
hospitals.

The new management services contracts are
effected from 1 January 2017 The contracts have
an initial term of 3 years and are on largely the
same terms and conditions, save for contracting
parties and effective dates. The contracts are
renewable on the maturity date.

T IEE ST

BRIEER T —BRPBIERE K
M ZIEENER o EHERKE
(BHEMEZEE2ENBAR) H
BIEEREI— M RIEER © %
A RER2015F 12 924 BAEAER -

EBE T E

HERE 25 ;‘%IE BN E % izﬁl
B 2 FFET BT - EHE
&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁnx.ﬁi @@
BARFE SR - Z&RR201655
R1BRER -

R B b

PRI = — MR BERE K

iZ#Mﬂ T o BRI E
ERRSRI BB AT . — (D AR IRTE &

Iﬁ » Z A& RR2016F5 18 #E

AR o

B F20174F 125310 i1t FE Z
BE
JB‘A2017$ WERBERBE S
iRE - WHASEEERERTET
49’]%&Aﬂ*ﬂk BRBEZES
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31HIEFE

2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETF T AR¥FT
Interest and investment income on:  F| 8 &% & Wz

financial products T REmM 21,951
receivables from 10T Hospitals KB I0TE T 2 FEW IR 13,163
bank deposits RITIFHK 3,053
loan to a sponsored hospital M — MR IR A E 468

Dividend income on available-for- AHEEREZ
sale investments AR BIA -
Government grants IR B 40
Fee income from suppliers (Note) REHREE 2 WERA (HiE) 50,399
Others HAth 4,110
93,184

Note: On 10 January 2012, the Group entered into a one-year

supply agreement with a third party supplier for the supply of
pharmaceuticals to Jian Gong Hospital, Yan Hua Hospital and Jing
Mei Hospital. The agreement was renewed annually from then
on. Under the supply agreement, this supplier arranged itself or
other suppliers to supply pharmaceuticals to Jian Gong Hospital,
Yan Hua Hospital and Jing Mei Hospital through the subsidiaries
of the Group or directly to these three hospitals. In consideration
of granting to this supplier the priority to supply pharmaceuticals
to these three hospitals, this supplier agreed to pay the Group an
amount calculated based on a percentage of the total pharmaceutical
purchases made by Jian Gong Hospital, Yan Hua Hospital and Jing
Mei Hospital (the “Minimum Economic Benefit”). The fee income
represents the difference between the amount of the Minimum
Economic Benefit and the gross profit generated by the Group from
the sale of pharmaceuticals to the three hospitals. The fee income
was received/receivable from this supplier or from other suppliers as
arranged by it. The agreement has expired as at 31 December 2016
and the Group has entered into the Supply Chain Joint Development
Agreement with this supplier as detailed in Note 5.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z20176F12A31B L F/E

HitW = REE

9. Other Gains and Losses 9.

For the year ended
31 December

HZE12A31BILEE

Gain on reclassification of interest in NEt & EFREER 2z

UMP Healthcare Holdings from HEE AR EH YA

associate to available-for-sale BAHEERE

investments (Note 23) Wz (M43E23) 115,358 -
Foreign exchange gain, net PE 5 W e F 58 6,042 2,016
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, BREW¥ - BENHE

plant and equipment ZWas (E518) 51 (565)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale At &% &R EE 18

investments (Note 25) (Pf5E25) (93,255) =
Loss on partial disposal of UMP HEBSESREE

Healthcare Holdings oS BL (3.114) -
Loss on deemed disposal of UMP B AHEMAE® (dbR)

Beijing =N (307) -
Impairment losses on goodwill HERESE - (1,727,499)
Fair value changes of mutual funds HEEES AL EBEZEH - (2,645)

24,775 (1,728,693)
10.Finance Costs 10. 0I5 & H

For the year ended
31 December

HZE12ANBIEEE

Interests on bank loans IRITERF B 1,492 =
Interests on payables to JE {<F 22 24 B8 B 3KIB 2 A1) B
the Sponsored Hospitals 990 342
2,482 342
EBEEBEEERERART 0

219
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

11. Other Expenses 1M HEtEHA

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31BILEE

Medical disputes expenditure BEEUHHEY 241 199
Others Hib 545 363

Transaction cost in relation to REERXRZFIM 2R BEA
major transactions - 30,063
Donation 5 HE = 5,000
786 35,625

12.Income Tax Expense 12. RS BiBE 2
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss: RIBEEREHAY

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31HILEE

Current tax: BNEAFR IR :
PRC enterprise income tax FE RS
(“EIT") (TEEmEH ) 131,065 47,240
Deferred tax (Note 26) EER (MI5E26) (1,253) 91
Total income tax recognised in NI ER
profit or loss FiStisass 129,812 47,331
The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are subject to EIT at AEEzHHMBARRMEFEA
25% during both years. YRR 25% BN EFTSH -
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made RPN &8 B A PR B 8 5 A0 3 R ZR A AR
as the Group did not have assessable profits subject to BEENER 2 ERTRAE - HAi &
Hong Kong Profits Tax during both years. FHREABNEHIRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit (loss) before tax per the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

FEMEBAHEGEER RAEMEE
WASRE 2 BATAE (B5E) HERM
T

follows:

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A3181L5E

2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®ET T
Profit (loss) before tax MAIAE (B8) (1,452,481)
Tax calculated at statutory tax rates 3£25% (20164 : 25%)
of 25% (2016: 25%) EEMEFE S (363,120)
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss of {5 —EEZ A= (FIiE)
an associate R BB E 60
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss of D{HA& L% (FiE)
joint ventures = Wl Y3 -7 3,834
Tax effect of income not taxable for AR A 2 Tl 76 5 2
tax purpose (39,457)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible Ft iR B 691 A] iR 5 A =%
for tax purposes ZTRIEE 436,807
Effect of different tax rates of BINABITRITE 2 8
overseas companies 14,669
Utilisation of tax losses previously — B KR GHER 2 B EE
not recognised (5,462)
Income tax expense FRS iR 2 47331

EHREBRZERARAT



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Other comprehensive income includes:

Hp=m A B

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A3181LEE

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT
[tem that may not be reclassified to  AJEET# EZ P IEE
profit or loss: Bm 2 HE -
Remeasurement of defined benefit  FRBEIAERKSETEI
pension plans (Note 35) EFr2E (fEE35) (20,332)
(20,332)
[tems that may be reclassified AJBER BB ERT 72
subsequently to profit or l0ss: BmZHE -
Exchange differences arising on MEBINETSFTE £
translating foreign operations: M ZE :
Share of exchange differences of  EEHMEL AT R —fA% QA
associates and a joint venture ZIEH =% 10,220
Reclassification adjustment upon  HEEINETR HEHRRHE
disposal/partial disposal of ZEH AR
foreign operations -
10,220
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHHESRMEE !
Losses arising during the year FRNEEZEIE -
Reclassification adjustment upon BB B H B
impairment -
10,220
Other comprehensive expense, Hitv2EAZ (FBRAEH)
net of income tax (10,112)

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

The Group's profit (loss) for the year has been arrived REBZEREFE (BB) &M% A
at after charging: THRIEREBY :

For the year ended
31 December

HZE12A31BIEFE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Depreciation of property, plant and Y BENBRETE

equipment 28,495
Amortisation of lease prepayments - #b/{d F AR & T8 {5 R 4

for land use right 3,878
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEEE GTAHEEER

(Included in cost of sales and FERAN)

services) 19,146
Total depreciation and amortisation WEREEARE 51,016

Cost of inventories recognised as BRAERST 2 FEKRA

expense 947,386
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEBFZKLHEERS
rented premises 4,309
Staff costs B I
Salaries and other allowances & B E (bR 203,402
Retirement benefit contributions RIREFIE R 13,163
Equity-settled share-based IR EE AN N
payment expense ZEMR 23,298
Total staff costs B TR 239,703
Auditor’s remuneration ZEED BN 3,350

EHREBRZERARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

15.Emoluments of Directors, Chief 15. 8 » THARBRRENER
Executive and Five Highest Paid BHEALTZENE
Individuals
15.1 Executive directors, chief executive BABTES  THAERFHTES
and non-executive directors
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the DHENHENSEERITHAE
directors and the chief executive were as follows: RZMEmT

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZ2017F12A318ILEFE

Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Cheng Libing (R £ 5% 4) KIERE - 3,421 37 3,458
Mr. Xu Zechang (k2 & %) (Note ii) HEERAE (M) - 2,265 26 2,291
Mr. Wu Potao (RIE ) (Note i) RI\ELE (M) - 1,580 30 1,610
Mr Han Yuewei (#2254 (Note i) BRERE () - 449 7 456
Ms Ren Yuan (fE&% 1) (Note i) EER L (M) - 337 7 344
Ms Fu Yanjun ([f#E20L) (Note i) fIAER L (M) - 490 8 498
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Wang Yin (EE%:4) FEEAE - - - -
Mr. Wang Yan (EE % 4) FERE - - - -
Mr. He Xuan (Bl £ 4) (Note i) Bied s (Ftatii) = = = =
Mr Liang Hongze (225 4) (Note iv)  2t2%4 (MsEv) - = = -
Independent non-executive directors: BV FHTES :
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (EBEE ¢ 55 4) Eeibita 433 - - 433
Ms. Cheng Hong (FRAT 2 1) AR G 240 - - 240
Mr. Lee Kar Chung (FREE5) FRELE 240 - - 240
Mr. Sun Jianhua (FREEZE S &) FEERE 240 - - 240
1,153 8,542 115 9,810
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

B Z=2017F128318 L FE
EERITHBRHEWG 2 IBERE
BEUBROAHR2ERAAEARK
293,0007T (20164 : £&) »

The amount of equity-settled share-based payment
expense attributable to the directors and the chief
executive was RMB293,000 (2016: nil) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZ2016F12A31BLLEE

Retirement

benefit

Salaries and scheme
Directors’ fee allowances contributions Total
ESWe HemEER RINEMEEMER Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBETT AR®TR

Executive directors: HITES !
Mr. Liang Hongze (232 % 4) ZaEE A (Kiv)

(Note v) (Note vii) (Bt zEvii) - 3,438 32 3,470
Mr. Shan Baojie (B E 5 4) BEAEE (FFvi)

(Note vi) (Note vii) (B & vii) - 2,358 32 2,390
Mr. Cheng Libing (%37 &5 5) R4 (i)

(Note vi) - 2,740 32 2,772
Mr. Jiang Tianfan (TR IR (i)

(Note vii) - 2,737 32 2,769
Ms. Xu Jie (%2 T) izt (Fizv)

(Note v) (Note vii) (Pt vii) - 2,607 32 2,639
Mr. Wu Potao (RIE% %) (Note vii) REFEELE (Fztvil) - 617 6 623
Mr. Xu Zechang (128 L 4) BEELE (Batvi)

(Note vii) (Note vii) (B zEvii) - 2,576 32 2,608
Mr. Zhang Xiaodan (3REz 355 4) SR T A (P shviii)

(Note viii) - 2,774 32 2,806

Non-executive directors: EHTES :
Mr. Yang Huisheng (15184 5% 4) BRELAE (Fizvi)

(Note vi) _ _ _ _
Mr. Rui Wei (/&% 4) (Note vi) wiE e (Betvi) = - - -
Mr. Wang Yin (EEN%4) (Note vii) FENFEA (M stvil) = = = =
Mr. Wang Yan (£ 2% %) (Note vii) TE&E (Hatvi) = = = =
Mr. He Xuan (Efiest4) (Note vii) Biex 4 (Fiztvil) = = = =
Mr Liang Hongze (2324 4) AR A (Hiskvil)

(Note vii) - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES :
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (BSEE Yt 50 4) BEYEE 400 = = 400
Ms. Cheng Hong (1241 % t) Bazt 240 = = 240
Mr. Lee Kar Chung (ZZ % 4) FRETE 240 - - 240
Mr. Sun Jianhua (RRZ 5L 4) REErs 240 - - 240
1,120 19,847 230 21,197
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Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

On 12 October 2017, Mr. Wu Potao resigned as an executive
director and the Chief Executive Officer. And Mr. Han Yuewei
was appointed as an executive director and the Chief Executive
Officer.

On 12 October 2017, Mr. Xu Zechang resigned as an executive
director and Ms. Ren Yuan and Ms. Fu Yanjun were appointed
as executive directors. Their emoluments disclosed above
were calculated based on their respective actual terms of
office within this year. The emoluments of Mr. Xu Zechang
and Ms. Fu Yanjun for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
RMB2,934,000 and RMB2,242,000, respectively.

On 12 October 2017, Mr. He Xuan resigned as a non-executive
director.

On 12 October 2017 Mr. Liang Hongze resigned as a non-
executive director.

Mr. Liang Hongze is the chief executive of the Group and his
emoluments disclosed include those for services rendered by
him as the chief executive until 25 April 2016.

On 25 April 2016, Mr. Liang Hongze resigned as the chief
executive of the Group and Ms. Xu Jie was appointed as the
chief executive of the Group.

On 25 November 2016, Ms. Xu Jie resigned as the chief
executive of the Group and Mr. Wang Yin was appointed as the
chief executive of the Group.

On 1 February 2016, Mr. Yang Huisheng and Mr. Rui Wei
resigned as non-executive directors of the Company and Mr.
Shan Baojie and Mr. Cheng Libing were appointed as the
executive directors of the Company.

On 25 November 2016, Ms. Xu Jie, Mr. Jiang Tianfan, Mr.
Shan Baojie, Mr Xu Zechang and Mr. Liang Hongze resigned
as executive directors of the Company, Mr Wu Potao was
appointed as the executive director of the Company and Mr.
Wang Yin, Mr Wang Yan, Mr Liang Hongze and Mr He Xuan
were appointed as non-executive directors of the Company.

On 28 December 2016, Mr. Zhang Xiaodan resigned as the
executive director of the Company, Mr Xu Zechang was
appointed as the executive director of the Company.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

During both years, no directors waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments, and no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

EXFARATESZIHEEEZREE
BRAEEARARRMARESHRGZ

B -

EXFRBIYIFATTES e EE
REERERRRESTZME -

MER - MEESINELRERES
e - BAREMERES (T
M ER/EMAREBELR AL
B 2 R B R AR (E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

15.Emoluments of Directors, Chief 15. 8 » THARBRRENER

Executive and Five Highest Paid EHALTZHME @

Individuals (continued)

15.20f the five individuals with the highest B2REERMUZRHFALTY B4
emoluments in the Group, four (2016: five) were % (20164 : 5%) BARAH
directors of the Company for the year ended 31 F2017F12A31BEFERNE
December 2017 whose emoluments are included - BENHFMN EXHTE - H
in the disclosures above. Details of the emolument BR1% (20165 : &) &x = ¥ &
for the year ended 31 December 2017 of the B (WIHEARREETHEEITH
remaining one (2016: nil) highest paid employee A B) Bl E2017F12H318 1k
who is neither a director nor chief executive of the FENHFMFBLOT :

Company was as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31BIEFE

Salaries and allowance Fre HaEEL 1,376 =
Contributions to retirement RIKBFIET B3R
benefit schemes 37 -
1,413 =
The emolument was within the following band: FMN T TIIEE -

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A3MBIEE

HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 TE
2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) AEERETHAEARMSRERK#
per share attributable to the equity holders of the SBAA (E8) N THEETE

Group is based on the following data:

For the year ended
31 December

HE12ANBILEE

2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARETF T
Earnings EF
Profit (loss) for the purpose of basic FA{Ezt&E AR A T]
and diluted earnings (loss) per A ANELREESR
share for the year attributable to EARREERT (BE)
equity holders of the Company ZFE (E518) (1,506,964)
Number of shares gvip 4=
Weighted average number of REsTEBRER

ordinary shares for the purpose of & (E5#E) =2
basic earnings (loss) per share (in I E R

thousands) ZHE (F&) 901,557
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary  EfE#E L @R 2 F £ -
shares:
Non-vested shares under AR 52 EhEt £l
share award scheme HINREBZ N/A
(in thousands) Bt (FAR) i@ A
Weighted average number of REsTESREE

ordinary shares for the purpose of & (E#E) 2
diluted earnings (loss) per share (in  JI#EF15E @A
thousands) ZE (F&) 901,557

EHREBRZERARAT



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

The weighted average number of shares used for the
purpose of calculating the basic earnings (loss) per
share for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
has been arrived at after adjusting the effect of shares
repurchased and held by the Scheme.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 does not assume the
conversion of the Company’s outstanding non-vested
shares under the Scheme since their exercise would
result in a decrease in loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

On 24 May 2016, the Board resolved that the proposed
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015
was revised to HKDO cent per ordinary share of the
Company, instead of HKD11.9 cents per ordinary share
of the Company as previously recommended.

On 16 June 2017 a resolution was passed at the annual
general meeting that the Company declared the final
dividend of HKD6.3 cents per share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2016 with total dividends
of approximately HKD81,691,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB70,899,000) to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 27 June 2017 The dividend was paid on 28
July 2017 The Trustee holds the dividends of treasury
share of approximately RMB965,000.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final
dividend of HKD11 cents per share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2017 was proposed by the
Board and is subjected to approval by the shareholders
in the forthcoming general meeting.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Leasehold Medical Motor Office  Construction
Buildings  improvement  equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BT WEEAENR  BER HE OBRRE ERIE fif

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTTE ARMTRT ARMTRT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETI

COST A
At 1 January 2016 R201651R1R 69,832 41,288 108,623 3,680 14,190 16,241 253,854
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEMBEAR

(Note 37) (Biz¥37) 90,264 4,420 1,067 1,378 8,230 271 105,630
Additions NE - 290 21473 617 3,569 16,858 42,807
Transfer E 4 - 18,484 220 - - (18,704) =
Disposals/write-off RE/Hi# = - 2,507) (756) (403) = (3,666

At 31 December 2016 R2016512A31H 160,096 64,482 128,876 4919 25,586 14,666 398,625

Additions RE - 880 15,647 619 6,551 12,900 36,597
Transfer e - 9,246 = = 4,918 (14,164) =
Disposals/write-off RE/HH - 625) (1,072) (710) (40) = (2,447)

At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A318 160,096 73,983 143,451 4,828 37015 13,402 432,775

ACCUMULATED ZitHE

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2016 R2016%1 A1H 43133 20,613 35,636 1,909 7340 - 108,631
Charge for the year EEME 4,624 5,398 14,837 487 3,149 = 28,495
Eliminated on disposals/ REE / Wisk

write-off 4 - - (2,217) (359) (217) - (2,793)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A318 47757 26,011 48,256 2,037 10,272 - 134333
Charge for the year EEHE 8,997 7832 16,348 754 9,533 = 43464
Eliminated on disposals/ ~ REE /s

write-off HH# - (335) (769) (520) - - (1,624)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A318 56,754 33,508 63,835 2,271 19,805 - 178173

CARRYING AMOUNT Kl
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12431H 112,339 38471 80,620 2,882 15,314 14,666 264,292

At 31 December 2017 20175124318 103,342 40,475 79,616 2,557 17210 13,402 256,602

EHREBRZERARAT



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

The above items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress are depreciated
over their useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis:

Buildings 20 - 50 years

Over the shorter of the
lease term and estimated
useful lives up to 10 years

Leasehold improvement

Medical equipment 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 - 10 years
Office equipment 1 -5 years

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts
of buildings without ownership certificates were
approximately RMB6,784,000 (2016: RMB8,165,000).

The intangible assets of the Group represent operating
rights under IOT agreements and sponsorship rights
and services contracts. Operating rights under 10T
agreements have finite useful lives, and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the operating period set
out in the 10T agreements which ranged from 16 to 48
years. Sponsorship rights and services contracts have
indefinite useful lives. Details of the operating rights
and the sponsorship rights and services contracts are
disclosed in Note 7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE2017F12A31H ILFE

19.Intangible Assets (continued)

19.8EE @

COST: A

At 1 January 2016 7201651 B1H 470,630 = 470,630

Additions (Note i) NE (FiIzED) 18,913 = 18,913

Acquisition of subsidiaries BB B A Al

(Note 37) (MI5E37) = 1,728,026 1,728,026

At 31 December 2016 and 2017 20162017512 31H 489,543 1,728,026 2,217,569
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION: ZEsti##s) -

At 1 January 2016 7201651 B1H 66,061 = 66,061

Charged for the year FEEH 19,146 = 19,146
At 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H 85,207 = 85,207
Charged for the year FEEH 19,883 — 19,883
At 31 December 2017 72017512 A31H 105,090 = 105,090
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 404,336 1,728,026 2,132,362
At 31 December 2017 M2017€12 A31H 384,453 1,728,026 2,112,479

EHREBEZRERATF

—T—+F%H 233



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Since the commitments to provide Repayable Investment Amounts
are part of the respective |IOT arrangements which the Group has
been granted the operating rights of the IOT Hospitals in return, the
additions arising from the initial recognition of receivables from 10T
hospitals are accounted for as part of the 10T operating rights to the
extent the additional investments relate to upgrading the relevant |OT
Hospitals, rather than restoring to a specified level of serviceability
and subject to amortisation charges (included in cost of sales and
services in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income) over the operating period of the respective
|OT arrangements.

Sponsorship rights represent the legal rights stipulated in the articles
of associations of the Sponsored Hospitals, including: (a) access to
the operation status and financial reports of the Sponsored Hospitals;
and (b) recommending members to the executive committee which
is the highest authority of the Sponsored Hospitals. The Sponsored
Hospitals are not-for-profit hospitals and do not have limit on the life
of operation period.

In prior years, the consulting services contracts were entered
between the Group and the Sponsored Hospitals. The initial term is
20 years and the parties will negotiate to renew the term every five
years and the term of 20 years will recount after every renewal. The
consulting services fees are charged on a yearly basis and represent
certain percentages of the revenue of the relevant hospitals,
provided that the fees will not be more than the audited net profit
(before deduction of the services fees) of the relevant hospitals.
The consulting service contracts have been terminated and replaced
by new services agreements entered between the Group and the
Sponsored Hospitals which took effect from 1 January 2017 as
disclosed in Note 7.

According to the new contracts, the initial term is 3 years and the
parties will review the clauses every year and the term of 3 years
will recount after every renewal. According to the contracts, the
management fees to be received by the Group shall be comprised
of supply chain management service fees and hospital management
fees. The supply chain management service fees are based on
certain percentage of the procurement of the hospitals whereas the
hospital management fees are based on certain percentages of the
revenue and net income before tax generated by the hospitals.

The Group's management considers there is no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the sponsorship rights and services
contracts are expected to generate net cash inflows for the Group.
The useful life of the sponsorship rights and services contracts is
indefinite based on an analysis of the factors, such as the life of the
sponsorship rights, life of operation of the Sponsored Hospitals and
the ability to renew the service contracts through the sponsorship
rights to appoint sufficient members to the executive committee of
the Sponsored Hospitals.

The carrying amounts of the sponsorship rights and services
contracts are reviewed to assess whether their recoverable amounts
have declined below their carrying amounts annually. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the sponsorship rights and consulting services
contracts have been allocated to the group of cash-generating units
("CGUs") of a division of Beijing Phoenix and Ample Mighty and
its subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 22. There is no impairment
loss recognised on the sponsorship rights and consulting services
contracts during both years.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It F/E

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTF T
Receivables from the |OT Hospitals: KB I10TEbx 2 FEU R IE
At beginning of the year REF) 116,400
Payments to |OT Hospitals under BIRIOTH &R I0T &Pt
IOT agreements SN | 13,087
Repayment from |OT Hospitals REIOTER 2 BN (14,808)
Interest and investment income FEREERA 13,163
At the end of the year RERXR 127842
Less: current portion included in B BT ATER R E MR
prepayments and other KIEZ BNHAEL
receivables (Note 29) (Fff5E29) (14,838)
Non-current portion FEBNERER > 113,004

Pursuant to the 10T agreements and arrangements as
disclosed in Note 7 the Group made the Repayable
Investment Amounts to the IOT Hospitals in return
for the operating rights of the IOT Hospitals over a
tenure ranging from 16 to 48 years. These Repayable
Investment Amounts are interest free and will be
repaid to the Group in equal annual instalments during
the tenure of the IOT arrangements. The carrying
amount of these interest free Repayable Investment
Amounts made by the Group to IOT Hospitals that will
be repaid back to the Group is recorded as receivables
from IOT Hospitals and was measured at fair value
upon initial recognition and subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
at an average effective interest rate of approximately
11% per annum over the tenure of the respective 10T
arrangements.

1B MY 7R 3 B 2 10TH &% &
P AEERIOTE aniﬁzétaz@&
B  WBEBIOTERNMTTF162
48¢HHWZZ«< B 2 EABEER
BB AREREEIOTZHHRA
ti”%ﬁ/‘ﬁﬁmz}xﬁmg@ REE
MIOTER XN MGEMNE 2 ZER
BEEBERESECRABEARLR
E;K§|OTEEEZf”& RIB - )R
RFRAREBENE  EREAER
%‘J+/£?;z%’711%2$i@,\m¢ﬂ

B BBIOT % HEHARR A DAk S5 A AN 5
EEO
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

21.Lease Prepayments for Land Use

Right

21. T fE FEEEFE AR

As at 31 December
®12H31H

Cost: PR
At the end and beginning of the year RERKEFL 166,219 166,219
Accumulated amortisation: RETHE
At beginning of the year REH 19,124 15,749
Charge for the year F [ 5 3,375 3,375
At the end of the year REXR 22,499 19,124
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERZIEEEAE 143,720 147095
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE2017F12A31H ILFE

21.Lease Prepayments for Land Use 21. T fFARBEEE AR @
nght (continued)
Analyse for reporting purpose as: ERE AP ITAT -

As at 31 December
M12A31H

Current portion included in T ATER R R E D EWGRIE 2
prepayments and other BREREL 5 (BIEE29)
receivables (Note 29) 3,375 8,878
Non-current portion FEBNEAER 140,345 143,720
143,720 147,095
22.Goodwill 22. 758

Cost: %N
At 1 January ®1A1H 3,191,110 -
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary & & — M B A TES

(Note 37) (F$3E37) - 3,191,110
At 31 December M®12A31H 3,191,110 3,191,110
Impairment loss recognised: ERRREES :
At 1 January »1A1H (1,727,499) =
Charge for the year FEREBE - (1,727,499)
At 31 December R12H31H (1,727,499) (1,727499)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31 B ZEREE 1,463,611 1,463,611

EHREBRERAR2T 0 W



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
and the sponsorship rights and services contracts
(Note 19) have been allocated to Ample Mighty and
its subsidiaries and a division of Beijing Phoenix
(2016: Ample Mighty and its subsidiaries) which are
identified to be a group of CGUs. During the year, a
division of Beijing Phoenix was included in this group
of CGUs as it began to provide the supply chain
management services to the Sponsored Hospitals
under the arrangement disclosed in Note 7 (vi). The
recoverable amount is based on fair value less cost
of disposal calculations determined using the income
approach. The level of the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurement is categorised in
its entirety is level 3. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management covering a 9-year period, and
such estimation is based on the group of CGUs" past
performance and the management’s expectations for
the market development. Cash flows beyond the 9-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2.81% (2016: 2.89%). The cash
flows are discounted using a post-tax discount rate
of 12.03% (2016: 10.16%). The discount rate reflects
specific risks relating to the business. The management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the group of CGUs to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of the group of CGUs.

During 2016, the Group recognised an impairment
loss of RMB1,727499,000 in relation to the goodwill
arising on the Acquisition which mainly arose from
the difference between the share price of HKD12.34
per share on the Acquisition Date and the issue price
of HKD8.04 per share stated in the sale and purchase
agreement dated 30 August 2016 as announced by
the Company on the same date, on the 462,913,516
consideration shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE2017F12A31H ILFE

23.Interest in an Associate

23. R —EBE QT2 ES

As at 31 December
M12A31H

Cost of investment in an associate & —RHL AT Z KA 24,250 141,985
Share of post-acquisition loss, FE(R U B 18 B 1B R IR 2 O AR B,
net of dividends received (827) (1,196)
(Loss) gain on deemed disposal of 18 &H & —EE 2 A )
an associate (EE) Wz (307) 5,163
Exchange adjustment S (541) 17,386
22,575 163,338
N/A
Fair value of the listed investment  FWiR& 2 AL EBE TEA 134,320

Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the
reporting period are as follow:

RS IR SR B Z Q) 25 1EH
SR

UMP Beijing (Note i) The BVI Hong Kong and 30%
BaBg® (Gtx) (Fa) EBERES Mainland China
BERTEA
UMP Healthcare Holdings Cayman Islands  Hong Kong N/A
(Note ii) FEHE i (Note 25)
BoBBER (M) TER
(K&25)

N/A 30% N/A" Provide healthcare
(Note 24) (Note 24)  solutions and service
@R TEf REBEERAERRE
(tsx4) (Ftiaa)
15% N/A 15% Provide healthcare
(Note 25) solutions and service
TER e S E YT
(HzE25)

EHREBRZERAR2T
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the joint venture shareholders’ agreement (the “JV
Shareholders’ Agreement”) on 16 July 2015, UMP Beijing issued
1,000 shares to Pinyu and UMP Healthcare China Limited (the “UMP
China”) at nominal value of United States dollars (“USD") 0.01 each.
Upon completion of the issuance of shares, Pinyu and UMP China
each held 50% ownership interest in UMP Beijing. According to the
JV Shareholders’ Agreement, UMP Beijing’s total capital commitment
is RMB100 million, with Pinyu and UMP China contributing RMB50
million each, in the form of interest-free shareholders loan. In
addition, each of Pinyu and UMP China has the right to appoint up to
three directors to the board of UMP Beijing.

In 2015 and 2016, Pinyu and UMP China each injected RMB24.25
million in total into UMP Beijing as the shareholders’ loans by three
instalments. On 27 September 2016, such shareholders’ loans
have been capitalised and converted into new shares allotted and
issued to each of Pinyu and UMP China on a pro-rata basis. As at 31
December 2016, the interest in UMP Beijing was accounted for as
interest in a joint venture.

In March 2017 UMP China subscribed for 6,668 shares in UMP
Beijing, at a consideration of RMB32.33 million. Immediately after
the completion of the subscription, UMP Beijing was owned as to
70% by UMP China and 30% by the Group. Pinyu has the right to
appoint up to one of five directors to the board of UMP Beijing. As
the Group’s shareholding in UMP Beijing was decreased to 30%
and only had one director nomination right, the Group lost the joint
control over UMP Beijing. As such, the Group's interest in UMP
Beijing became interest in an associate amounted to RMB24,707,000.

On 13 July 2015, Pinyu entered into an agreement with True Point
Holdings Limited (“True Point”) to acquire shares representing 20%
of the then total issued shares of UMP Healthcare Holdings for a
total consideration of HKD180,000,000. The consideration for the
share purchase was determined based on arm’s length negotiations
with regard to UMP Healthcare Holdings' financial conditions and
results of operations.

On 27 November 2015, UMP Healthcare Holdings completed its global
offering and was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
by issuing 184,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO0.001 each. After
completion of the global offering, Pinyu’'s equity interests in UMP
Healthcare Holdings decreased to 15%. The Directors considered the
Group had been able to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of UMP Healthcare Holdings through the Group’s voting
power and a board representative nominated by the Group.

The financial year end date for UMP Healthcare Holdings is 30 June.
For the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting, the
Group used the interim financial statements of UMP Healthcare
Holdings for the six months ended 31 December 2016.

On 8 May 2017 UMP Healthcare Holdings issued 1,492,000 new
shares pursuant to the exercise of share options by its directors and
employees under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, resulting in an
increase of total issued shares to 737492,000 shares. Accordingly,
the Group's shareholding in UMP Healthcare Holdings was diluted to
14.97%.

In early June 2017, the Group disposed 1,154,000 shares of UMP
Healthcare Holdings at an average trading price of HKD2.83 per
share, resulting in a gain of RMB1,291,000.

The Group's board representative in UMP Healthcare Holdings
resigned on 15 June 2017, since then the Group no longer holds any
directorship in UMP Healthcare Holdings. The Directors consider the
Group has lost its significant influence over UMP Healthcare Holdings
as the Group is unable to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of UMP Healthcare Holdings. Accordingly, on 15
June 2017, the Group reclassified the interest in UMP Healthcare
Holdings from associate to available-for-sale investments (Note 25).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It F/E

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(continued)

On 15 June 2017, the Group discontinued the use of the
equity method and measured the retained interests in UMP
Healthcare Holdings at fair value. The fair value at 15 June 2017 is
RMB265,230,000, which is determined based on the closing price
of HKD2.79 per share quoted on the Stock Exchange. The difference
amounting to RMB100,843,000 between the fair value of the
retained interests and the then carrying amount of RMB164,387,000
has been recognised in profit or loss. The previously recognised
other comprehensive income in relation to UMP Healthcare Holdings
has been reclassified to profit or loss, which is amounting to
RMB14,515,000.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate at the end of the reporting period is
set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate's
financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements.

UMP Beijing

s« ()
iy (&)

M2017F6A 158 » "EBTHERERE
WAARBEFERHEBHEENREE
5o N2017F6AIGAM AR BEAARE
265,230,0007T * Lt Jh 4R 5% 7O Bk 32 T AT $R UK TH
BEER279BTERE - REERN AN BEEH
EEREEEARK164,387,000t 2 HMER
AR #100,843,0007T B A Bz HER © LAl
REBHEBHEEN LM E2ERABERN
DRI - £ AARM14,515,0007T °

RIS SRR R MBS A2 A
HEZHIINT - A THEERAE
S 4 R 7 R 25 S B L
AR EREF) 2 £ -

BERRNZERAMBERRDEMA

BE8% (1tR)

As at 31 December

Mm12A318
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARET T
(Note)
(K5E)
Current assets mENEE 36,004
Non-current assets ERBEE 21,598
Current liabilities mENAE (42,099)
Non-current liabilities ERBHERE (529)

EHREBRZERARAT
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REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

23.Interest in an Associate (continued)

23.A—REBENT 2 ER @

Summarised financial information of BENATMEERREE @

associate (continued)
UMP Beijing (continued) BEBg% (ILR) (&)

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31HIEFE

Revenue Wz 1,476 4,706
Profit (loss) for the year FEME (BE) 29,530 (27.094)
Other comprehensive income FEAMEZAKA (FAX)

(expense) for the year 2,073 (655)

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive FEFE (Ei8) K2 HE

income (expense) for the year WA (%) @58 31,603 (27,749)

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE2017F12A31H ILFE

23.Interest in an Associate (continued) 23. R —EBEQNT 2R @
Summarised financial information of BENTPEERRE @
associate (continued)
UMP Beijing (continued) Bag% (1) (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Al BB RHE BT A SRR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in FRERACHAER (tR) BEZR
UMP Beijing recognised in the consolidated financial EEHRAT -
statements:

As at 31 December
»12H31H

Net assets of UMP Beijing BMEER (tR) 2EEFE 75,250 14,974
Proportion of the Group's ownership ZNEEREA 2% (IbR) 2
interest in UMP Beijing Fir 75 fE M b 151 30% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's REBRHAER (LX)
interest in UMP Beijing w2 BREE 22,575 7,487
Note: As disclosed in Note (i), in March 2017, the Group reclassified the P&t - AN B SRV AT EE » R2017463 8 » AEE K
investment in UMP Beijing from interest in a joint venture to interest REaB%E (bR SR —HEE AR
in an associate. The summarized financial information of UMP Beijing R B D EE N — RIS A R R o B
which is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group during the year BEB (ER) (AARII AR KEHE2016
ended 31 December 2016 is presented as comparative information. F12ANBIEFEZEERAR) ZHBERE

E25RHLBER -

EHREBRZERAR2T
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

24.Interests in Joint Ventures 24. AEENT]ZER
Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are REBEREREERBIZFRBET ¢
as follows:

As at 31 December
®12H31H

Cost of investment in joint ventures &RE&EA & A Al Z KA 507,949 532,199
Share of post-acquisition loss and  JE(G U EEZ EIE &
other comprehensive expense HharmAx (1,516) (18,144)
Exchange adjustment fE R - (407)
506,433 513,648
Details of the Group’s joint ventures at the end of the NIEHRAEFB S L N T 25150
reporting period are as follow: T

CR Wugang Wuhan, the PRC Wuhan, the PRC 51% 51% 51% 51% Hospital consulting
EBRH hERE B RE service
Bl ARS
UMP Beijing (Note 23) The BVI Hong Kong and N/A 50% N/A 50% Provide healthcare
BERE (tR) (WF23) RBEREE Mainland China 1% T solutions and service
EERTENH, Rt BEER A RARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It F/E

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the reporting period are
as follow: (continued)

Note:

Through the acquisition of Ample Mighty and its subsidiaries in 2016, the
Group obtained the interest in a joint venture, CR Wugang.

CR Wugang, which is the sponsor of Wugang Hospital Group, was
established by CR Hospital Investment and Wuhan Iron and Steel (Group)
Corporation (“Wugang Group” "B #(££E )2 7]") on 19 February 2013.

Although the Group holds 51% of the equity interest of CR Wugang and
has the power to appoint three out of five directors of CR Wugang under
the Articles of Association, decisions about the relevant activities of CR
Wugang require unanimous consent. As such the Group does not have
right to direct the relevant activities of CR Wugang and accounted for
interest in CR Wugang as a joint venture.

During the year, the Group's interest in UMP Beijing was changed from
investment in a joint venture to investment in an associate as detailed in
Note 23.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown
in the joint venture's financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

CR Wugang

RREPRFAEERERR ZFHBOT : (B)

HiEE

FHER2016FREREREMBAR - AEEES
SR NTIESE I £

EHRM (ARMBREEMNERA) BEHBRR
ARBVEME (£E) A7 ([RMEE]) K2013%F
2R19H R -

BEAEEERE RS I%0E  YERRE
ARERANZEEIRNARERETIN=2"F
BEBRRMBREDORRDESES —BRE -
It SR B A A B Y AR RS B RS B
HRM 2 EEASERRIALR

AONFTEE23RT AL - ARBRE S B (ER) w0
HAR—HAEERARANKRERFRNE RSN — M
BRAERE -

AEBRERRZHHBENTERS
R o LN E R RIE R BB
MR EERRENE E R RIM R
RFFRZEH

BERTNZFLEAMBRETRA

2R #

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
Current assets mEEE 512,138
Non-current assets EMEEE 11,543
Current liabilities mEAE (136,660)

EHREBRZERARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

24.Interests in Joint Ventures (continued) 24, REENT 2R @
Summarised financial information of EELNTHBRERRBE @
joint venture (continued)
CR Wugang (continued) 2B R (%)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the i EERAESEAIENTIER ¢
following:

As at 31 December

M12A318
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEFEEY 44,075 9,243
Current financial liabilities (excluding ENHA& R & E (T"EBHE
trade and other payables and ENE S NEAM
provisions) JE AT RRIB A Je B ) (111,947) (132,664)

Revenue g - =
Profit (loss) for the year/period FE_HEFE (5E) 533 (3,505)
Other comprehensive income FE /HEEMEZEREKA

for the year/period - -

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive EE / HiEAE (FiE) &
income (expense) for the 2HEMA (FAX) L%
year/period 533 (3,505)

The above profit (loss) for the year/ it [E HIRIFE (&)

period includes the following: BIELATIEA
Depreciation and amortisation IrE NGBy 838 138
Interest income I B U A 773 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It F/E

Summarised financial information of SENTIMBERBE @
joint venture (continued)

CR Wugang (continued) 2R (%)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB E R E TR S B ISR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in PR E BN RS C REEYER
CR Wugang recognised in the consolidated financial R

statements:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
Net assets of CR Wugang ERRIMEEFE 387,021
Proportion of the Group’'s ownership ZANEBE {5 AE B2
interest in CR Wugang Fir /8 ¥ =5 L ) 51%
197,381
Effect of fair value adjustment WEEBB AR BEARZ
at acquisition 2 308,780
Carrying amount of the rEEEERRHFZEEZ
Group's interest in CR Wugang R e 5 506,161

EHREBEZRERATF



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AREBTT ARBTFT

Listed equity securities ETIRAE S

As disclosed in Note 23, the fair value of the shares
held by the Group in UMP Healthcare Holdings on
initial recognition as available-for-sale investments was
RMB265,230,000.

From 16 June to 31 December 2017, the Group
disposed 14,240,000 shares of UMP Healthcare
Holdings at an average trading price of HKD2.48 per
share, resulting in a loss of RMB4,405,000.

Due to a significant decline in the fair value of the
equity securities below its cost in current year,
the Directors consider it is an objective evidence
of impairment. Accordingly, the Group recognised
impairment loss of RMB93,255,000 during the year
based on the closing price of HKD1.73 per share
quoted on the Stock Exchange as at 31 December 2017.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

AN K FE23FT KB AR B AT R
REBBEBERNNAAEERD
THEARARLEEREFERARE
265,230,0007T °

MR2017F6 A16H =12 A31 B #if -
AEEZRFHRFEETR2.488 T
& 14,240,000% Bt & & 7% & B iR
1+ BEEE ARY4,405,0007T °

HRRABFN AR BERAFERXR
B TREEEREKE  EFRABFML
XEREFE Bt - AEERER
201712 A31 B £ 8 X BT BT 3k
Wi BER1.738 TERBERSEA
R #93,255,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE2017F12A31H ILFE

26.Deferred Taxation 26. EIEB1E
The movement of the Group's deferred tax assets FERNAREBRIEREEZSEFHEOT -

during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2016 1K2016F1H1H 300
Charge to profit or loss Bk (300)
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 R20164F %2017 12 A31H -
The movement of the Group's deferred tax liability FERNAEBELFHABZEHUT

during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2016 1K2016F1H1H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) W BT B A A (FIsE37) 319,089
Credit to profit or loss FFAEE (209)
At 1 January 2017 H2017F1 818 318,880
Credit to profit or loss FFAE=E (1,253)
At 31 December 2017 R201712A318 317,627
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in TEMTHEERZELEHEE

respect of the following items:

As at 31 December
®12A31H

Tax losses IS EE 131,845 145,742

EHREEBRERAR2T 0 240



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Tax losses above were from the PRC subsidiaries of
Ample Mighty, which were acquired by the Group
through the Acquisition. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to those tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams of the
relevant PRC subsidiaries and it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

The tax losses will be expired as follow:

RS R R TR B AN SR A B U
FRERHEETBIKB AR - HRT
BE TRURI A5 B 7 B Kt B 2 RIAR R AR
KA KRB KR AT B AR5 B 1R 4K 3
FIERTEAE - SRR SR E R
FERELEN IR EE

MR RR A T 75 S E

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTF T ARBTFT
2017 20174 1,149
2018 20184 15,592
2019 20194 51,406
2020 20204 65,232
2021 20214 12,363
145,742

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profit of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
RMB1,271,838,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB892,236,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

RBEFBRCEMGRE - PEMNBA
7] 8200841 A1 H # 5t BT B ERFIH
TIRA IR EW BB TR - AR AE
5] B S 12 1) By 2= BE 9 98 [0 B P B 3%
TR TN ARAIBEE A RRREE -
AT ERNGR A B S F Rk Bt B BB
NAEJR2017F12A31B W R 5T FE
A K #1,271,838,0007T (20164 :
AR #892,236,0007T) FTEA 2 E
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE2017F12A31H ILFE

27. Inventories

27. 78

As at 31 December
M12A31H

Pharmaceuticals %5 30,779 34,369

Medical devices and EEEWm A EEREM
medical consumables 7,818 15,872
38,597 50,241

28.Trade Receivables

The Group allows a credit period of approximately 60
days for the general healthcare service to the patients
which is due from medical insurance programs, 60 days
to 120 days for the sales of pharmaceutical, medical
devices and consumables to the 10T Hospital, and 90
days to 180 days for the hospital management services
to the IOT Hospitals and consulting services to the
Sponsored Hospitals after issuing the invoice.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date:

28.fE W& 5 FH

AEBETTIHKOEERAT :
BMABZGABERBSAAARSR
% H60K (AEBERKRTE )
MIOTEPTHER S m - BESIM K
M RRAREEREOREI20K ; [
IOTE B 1Rt 9 B8 B B 18 AR 755 S ) 2
MR MR RS AR AR ER
90K E180K °

TXEINIZERBHM2HRNEKRE
HRIAMRER DT

As at 31 December
®12A831H

0 to 60 days 0E60X 192,462 202,467
61 to 180 days 61E180K 138,010 15,461
>180 days 180 KA E 21,248 37,996

351,720 255,924

EHREBRZERAR2T
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aged analysis) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but not
impaired

X ENRKE SRS ERN R
THREBHNRIE (BEKRER DT

F2HTX) BREEERLERL
REARE - BABKBRDERRA

Yem - SURER B3 IR R AR R o

EBEE KRB FEWE 55 AR

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARBTFT

Overdue by: EHAR B

91 to 180 days 91E180K 37996
Total #Et 37,996

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality
of the trade receivables from the date that credit was
initially granted up to the end of each reporting period.
The Group's exposure to the concentration of credit
risk is disclosed in Note 47.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

REETE B W E 558 2 Al Bl 72 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It F/E

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTF T

Current portion of receivables R EI0TET 2 R GRIE

from |OT Hospitals &) BN HAEB 55 14,838
Prepaid value-added tax TERHEER 13,171
Prepayments to suppliers ) 4k 7 2 A< 9 TR 3K 1,519
Current portion of lease prepayments + i {# FB#EFH E T8 5%

for land use right &Y BN HAEB 55 3,375
Public housing maintenance fund NEFER#EEES 1,110
Prepayment of share-based payment BAR&(A {3k 2 BT 3K

(Note) (F3E) 1,279
Prepaid maintenance expense Taff#ER 1,847
Fee income receivables JE W B YT A 3,459
Others HAb 2,935

43,533

Note: The prepayment of share-based payment represents the excess of
the fair value of the award shares at the grant date over the grant
price paid (the “Excess”) by the Selected Participants (defined in
Note 36). The relevant employees bear the risks and rewards of the
shares upon acceptance of the grant and payment of the grant price,
and are obliged to refund the Excess in cash to the Company if the
relevant employees terminate the services before the end of the
vesting period. This amount is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the periods in which services are expected to be rendered by the
relevant employees. An amount of RMB1,018,000 was recognised
as expense during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB2,349,000).

BYEE - AR R RN R B R N RE B2

ARABEBLERS2EE (T&FHE36) T
HEREEEz=8 (28] - BHAREENE
AR N 2 AR B AR AR AR (D LR R B
B3k - mfHAEER I B 1 538 HAAE SR AT RER: - Al
BURSHARARREESE - 2 HEFRAER
ER AR B IR EI IR RIS ERRI A S 8K - &
F2017F12A31BEFERRNEBEAAAR
#1,018,0007T (20164 : A R %2,349,000
JT) e

EHREBRZERARAT



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AREBTFT AREBTFT

Financial products © Bl EE o

66,400

The financial products were operated by banks, with
expected annual return ranging from 0.5% to 4.9%
(2016: from 3.0% to 4.0%) per annum which have
been designated at FVTPL. The maturity of the financial
products as at 31 December 2017 is in January and
February 2018.

There were no significant changes in the counterparties’
credit risk and therefore there were no significant gains
or losses attributed to changes in credit risk for these
financial assets at FVTPL during both years.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

Exir‘ﬂi%uuﬁﬂfﬁﬂkﬁz T8 B FF R
#= N F0.5%ZF4.9% (20164 :
3.0%i4.0%> 1 F BFVTPL - B
2017F12H31B & B EMmR20184%F
1AK2RAEIH -

EEFHEERRITESEKE (L &
RREFEAL W ERZEFVIPLE
MEECEERRETMELEZEXN
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It F/E

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARBTTT ARBTT

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS
(classified as cash and (nEREER
cash equivalents) WeEEY) 1,069,468
Certificate of deposit FREE 52,806
1,122,274
Cash and cash equivalents and B MBeEEWEER
certificate of deposit BATYEEFE :
denominated in:
— RMB — AR 1,081,180
- USD — %7 33,461
- HKD — BT 7,633
1,122,274
Bank balances carried interest at market rates which R2017F12 A31 B W RITE&RIE N
range from 0.01% to 1.35% (2016: from 0.01% to e F0.01%%1.35% (20164 :
1.30%) per annum as at 31 December 2017 As at 0.01%%1.30%) KIS E5H B o
the 31 December 2017, the certificate of deposit MR2017F128318B B #H A R
of RMB55,426,000 (2016: RMB52,806,000) carried 55,426,000 (20166 : A R ¥
interest rate at 4.45 % (2016: 7.80%) per annum, which 52,806,0007T) F R EMF X &
will mature on 20 March 2018 (2016: 30 March 2017). 4.45% (2016%F : 7.80%) I # R

201843 H20H (20164 : 201743
H308) 2|8 -

EHREBRZERARAT
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ENEZHARE » —RIZOEIOX
MEERRE - RER - AREEN
B SRR E B HEL B RREE DA

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are
normally granted on a credit term of 0 to 90 days. An
aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables, as at the

end of the year, based on the date of delivering of

goods, is as follows:

m -

As at 31 December

M12A318
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETTT ARETT
Within 60 days 60K 201,380
61-180 days 612180k 39,447
>180 days 180K £ 1,930
242,757
As at 31 December
M12A31R8
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Staff cost payables FEfF 8 TRA 43,607
Deposits from patients BARES 5,093
Deposits from suppliers HEHRES 13,112
Other PRC tax payable A B A b R A & 15,676
Unpaid travel expense and R 2 ZRAS K&
administrative expense TR X 2,890
Unpaid expense in relation to £ 25 2 Bk 75 4B B8 Y
professional services R 6,416
Payable for purchase of property, BEYE  BENMXEG
plant and equipment 2 FERT5RIE 953
Retirement benefit obligations BRENEF
(Note 35.2) (M47%35.2) 2,446
Unpaid expense in relation to HE KX 5 HEEH
major transactions RTFAX 17,635
Others Hth 12,927
120,655

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARETT

Bank loans IRITER

NS

Carrying amount repayable:
Within one year —FNR

AR Y EEEERMNREE

In March 2017 the Group entered a loan agreement
with Develop Bank of Singapore (“DBS"), which is
unsecured, bearing a floating interest rate at HIBOR
plus 0.88% per annum. The maturity dates of those
bank loans are 7 and 25 January 2018, respectively. As
at 31 December 2017 the unused bank facilities are
HKD595,000,000.

The PRC employees of the Group are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the government of the PRC. The
PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required
to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit plan to fund the
employee benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit
plan is to make the specified contributions. The
retirement benefit cost charged to profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounts to
RMB17432,000 (2016: RMB13,363,000).

2017637 - AREHEE K ER
R1T ([ER] ST —M0ERHZE
ZERRERRT - mBEBRITEER
B N0.88E 2 F BFIEF B - ZFR
TERZEEBE DR A/2018F1H7
H K258 - 20174128318 &
REA ZRWITRELE 7595,000,000/7%8
=

AEEFEHEEHAEBATBEK
FTEER B R B 32 iR 1K 18 F 51
BlIRKE - ARRFENE R A
AIEEETIERAMETES L
MR B - U R
BEA - AEBEARBRKEF
EERENE —ETABNIETH
M- HE2017F128318 1t
FE - BEaXENBRORKE
R KA B AR #17,432,0007C
(20164 : A R ¥13,363,000
TT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARBTT ARBTIT

Total estimated benefit payable {HEtETERARAEER 42

to retired staffs 22,024
Less: Amounts due within N u+)\ﬁi\1ﬁf1ﬁ

12 months included 1218 A A E| #R 3R

in other payable (Note 33) (Pft7E33) (2,446)
Amounts due after 12 months 1218 A 12 B BRI R 708 19,578

Pursuant to the agreement with Beijing
Construction Engineering Group upon the reform
of Jian Gong Hospital in 2003, the Group operated
a defined benefit plan for 35 retirees. Under the
plan, the retirees are entitled to a certain medical
insurance and funeral compensation until death.

The plan exposes the Group to longevity risk. The
present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the best estimate
of the mortality of plan participants. An increase
in the life expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan’s liability.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

B E R T EE W
& R2003F g Bl E
B AEBEABRRIKAEE
E—TBERERFGTE - BIEZGT
gl BRRABBEREZEF WA
ZEETEERRB R EFEME

o

ZEtalFASERBERSRAR
AERMNFEBENRENIZE

i]t Jriﬂ/ BAEFT R 7 EME
& o EI2HEEEHRSTMNIE

ﬁﬂﬁigﬂﬂgxa‘f%z%fﬁ S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE2017F12A31H ILFE

35.Retirement Benefit Obligations 3B EREBANEE @

(continued)

B2ARAERAEE @
(HEMEANEEREROT ¢

35.2 Defined benefit plans (continued)

The principal assumption used for the purposes of
valuation was as follows:

As at 31 December
®12A831H

Discount rate B IR K 3.00% 3.00%
Expected rate of the average TREA A AT AL A

per capital disposable #RE

income growth 10.00% 10.00%
Average longevity at retirement & RIEEERA SR

age for current pensioners S ST 94 92

Movement in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation during the both years was as

follows:

HWIALEE - FEERAE Y R
EEBWT :

For the year ended
31 December

HZE12ANBIEEE

At beginning of the year REL] 22,024 4,630
Benefit paid [=ENE Y (1,727) (2,938)
Remeasurement on the AERENABEFERTE
net defined benefit liability - 20,332
At the end of the year RER 20,297 22,024
EFREBEERARAT 0 259



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability, which is mainly actuarial losses arising from
changes in demographic assumptions, financial
assumptions and experiences adjustments, is
included in other comprehensive income.

Significant assumptions for the determination of
the defined benefit obligation are discount rate,
expected average per capital disposable income
and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of each reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant.

If the discount rate is higher (lower) by 1%,
the defined benefit obligation would decrease
(increase) by RMB1,209,000 (RMB1,343,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB1,188,000 (RMB1,309,000)).

If the expected average per capital disposable
income growth increase (decrease) by 1%,
the defined benefit obligation would increase
(decrease) by RMB848,000 (RMB1,321,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB764,000 (RMB1,334,000)).

If the average longevity at retirement age for
current pensioners increases (decreases) by one
year for retirees, the defined benefit obligation
would increase (decrease) by RMB1,561,000
(RMB1,436,000) for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB1,981,000 (RMB1,825,000)).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another
as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group expected
to make payment of RMB1,903,000 under the
defined benefit plan in the next twelve months
from the end of each reporting period (2016:
RMB2,446,000).

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

HREBMNBEFE (BIEAOQ
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MBAIREF (F) 1% * HE2017
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B EH 8 ER (i*m AR
1,209,0007T (A R ¥1,343,000
70) (20164 : A R 1,188,000
7t (AR%1,309,0007T)) ©

fis] T8 BR A #9 0] 2 B WK A 12 K 32
CR) 1% @ & 2017912831
HIEFEMRERMETHEHE
& 38 o Ot 2) A K #848,000
7T (A R #1,321,0007T) (2016
F . AR#764,0007T (AR
1,334,0007T)) °

WERERKAENTHEGE
E(HER) —F 8 22017F
12A3MBLEFENARERAE
Eﬂﬂﬁﬁi*ﬂu(ﬂd ) AR ¥
1,561,000t (A R #1,436,000
70) (20164 : AR ®1,981,000
7T (AR#%1,825,0007T)) °
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On 7 July 2014, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Scheme"”) as a means to recognise
the contribution of and provide incentives for the key
management personnel including directors, senior
management, employed experts and core employees
of the Group (the “Selected Participants”). The Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date. The shares to be
awarded under the Scheme will be acquired by the
Company through the trustee from the open market out
of cash contributed by the Group (the “Award Shares”)
and be held in trustee for the Selected Participants
until such shares are vested in accordance with the
provisions of the Scheme.

From September to December in 2014, the Company
paid an amount of HKD221,856,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB175,684,000) to repurchase the
Company's existing shares of 16,044,500 from the
market pursuant to the Scheme.

In January 2015, 2,144,000 existing shares of the
Company were repurchased from the market at a
total consideration of HKD30,218,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB23,892,000).

In April 2017, 11,000,000 existing shares of the
Company were repurchased from the market at a
total consideration of HKD114,917000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB101,851,000).

R2014F7 878 » AR — I8
Iin 2B a8l ([%&H8l)) - IEARX
TAEBTFTEEEAS (BEESE -
SRERE XEZEREZLMEER)
([ER2EE)) MEEREARES
REZBO AR - ZETEEERMA
HB10FNB B RER - BIFEZET
SEHNROBEARARILHZITA
HAEBHBANBR SRR ARTIZE
A (TEREKRR))  WHEFEARE
BELEERE  EEABEROBEZ
FEICHERBAL -

B2014F9A 128 » AR 8 X 1+
221,856,000/ 7T (HE RN ARK
175,684,0007T) R & Z &t 8 T 15
B [016,044,5008% &K A 7] IR A &

,f/'\ °

R2015%1 8 ARR)ET S LD
2,144,000fx AR AR B R D - 8K
&/530,218,0008 ¢ (HERHAR
#23,892,0007T) °

R2017F4 8 - ARRET S LEEE
11,000,000fx A A AR A K fh - 4B
KB A5114,917,000% 7T (FHER A
AK%101,851,0007T) °
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On 25 May 2015, the Board granted an aggregate of
8,690,200 Award Shares to 63 Selected Participants
who are managerial personnel under the Scheme, of
which (i) 440,000 Award Shares were granted to 4
directors without initial grant price; (ii) 4,639,200 Award
Shares were granted to 59 Selected Participants, who
are the senior management, employed experts and
core employees of the Group without initial grant price;
and (iii) 3,611,000 Award Shares were granted to 44
Selected Participants (all of whom overlap with those
Selected Participants mentioned in (ii)) with the initial
grant price of HKD12.68 per share. The vesting dates
of these Award Shares are as follows:

1,320,200 Award Shares 13 May 2016

7,370,000 Award Shares

1/3 on 13 May 2016

1/3 on 13 May 2017

1/3 on 13 May 2018

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

R2015%F5825H - EE 2 IR K %
FTEIME3RERABERILEES
4% 1118,690,2000% #2EH A 1 + & A
()440,000f BB IR D X T4RE S
&Y SR BB 5 (i1)4,639,200%
HBERHDEZ FOZRBRAEE SR
EEAE XEEREZELEED
BEZHEEMEVNIRHERL S &
(ii)3,611,000/% 42 ) i {0 &% T44%
W E 2 B (2 E0 B AT /) &R
SHEESER) VIPRHERBER
12,688 - EERERHEBH
BRanR -

1,320,2000% 20165 H13H
LB D
7.370,0000% 1/37220164F5 A 13 H
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On 22 December 2015, the Board granted an aggregate
of 2,385,000 Award Shares to 65 Selected Participants
who are managerial personnel under the Scheme, of
which (i) 400,000 Award Shares were granted to 4
directors without initial grant price; (ii) 1,273,000 Award
Shares were granted to 61 Selected Participants,
who are the senior management, employed experts
and core employees of the Group without initial grant
price; and (iii) 712,000 Award Shares were granted to
29 Selected Participants (some of whom overlap with
those Selected Participants mentioned in (ii) above)
with the initial grant price of HKD9.21 per share. The
vesting dates of these Award Shares are as follows:

1,125,000 Award Shares 24 December 2015

1,260,000 Award Shares 1/3 on 1 January 2017

1/3 on 1 January 2018

1/3 on 1 January 2019

On 20 July 2017 the Board granted an aggregate of
1,130,016 Award Shares to 54 Selected Participants
who are managerial personnel under the Scheme to
settle the staff cost payables to the relevant employees
amounting to RMB8,015,000 which were vested on
20 July 2017 The excess of the fair value of the award
shares at the grant date over the staff cost payables
derecognised was recognised as expenses during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The Award Shares carry rights to dividends.

R2015% 128228 ' EFSRIEZ
BRI HERABERIEES
H % 2,385,000/ B AX 1D © &
()400,000f% B IR (0 X TAR E FH
G SR B E ¢ (i))1,273,0000%
BERONE TOIZBERAEE SR
EEAS - xﬁviﬁ}%&jf?/b\@,\m
BEZ2MEEMEY PR HER
(|||)712 000 %2 B ix 17 % T29% 3%

2HE (PH2EEE 3 (i) i
Hﬁﬁé EL2EEER)  YISREER
RBERI.21BTT - ELRBEIIRGK K
BRHEAWT
1,125,0000% 201512 248

HEEIRR 1
1,260,0000% 1/372017€1 A1 8
HEEIRR1H

1/312018F1 8 1H
1/37320194F1 A1H

MR2017F78208  EE B E %
STEIMBAREEABEERMEEH
11,130,016/ B IR 1 © DA )
HEREESNENEIRAARK
8,015,0007T ° &% FMK 7D E R2017F
7H20B 5 B - B 2017512 H31
HIEFE  BEROAREABEZA
AEBEEBLEERIERENE XA
NEBCHERBRAX
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36.Share-based Payment Transactions 36. AR IR ZR S
(continued)
Share award scheme (continued) IR 17 SR BT & (a0
The following table discloses the movement of the TRBEEEHZE2017F12A31B IEF
Company’s Award Shares granted to the Selected FERTREEZEENAQ G EEK
Participants for the year ended 31 December 2017 and M ES) - LA RK2017F12A31H
outstanding at 31 December 2017: B M R TTIE SRE AR 1

Directors L = 258,748 (258,748) = = 9.42 - 20/07/2017

-
1

Sub-total 1 258,748 (258,748) = =

Employees E& 2,407,336 - (1,325,330) - 1,082,006 14.92 12.68  25/05/2015
Employees B2 2,506,003 - (1,252,997)  (171,667) 1,081,339 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Employees €8 712,000 - (297333) - 414,667 8.98 9.21 22/12/2015
Employees B8 548,000 = (182,667) (40,000) 325,333 8.98 - 22112/2015
Employees & = 871,268 (871,268) = = 9.42 - 20/07/2017
Sub-total g 6,173,339 871,268  (3929,595)  (211,667) 2,903,345

Total ) 6,173,339 1130016  (4188,343)  (211,667) 2,903,345
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36. LB RIRZRS @

36.Share-based Payment Transactions

(continued)
Share award scheme (continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the
Company's Award Shares granted to the Selected
Participants for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
outstanding at 31 December 2016:

B 17 2R BT &l s

TREZEEHZE2016F12A8318 1LF
EERTEELHEENARQ R RZER
MEEE - LAKK20165F12A31H
B e RTTE SREN AR 15

Directors % 660,000 - (660,000) - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Sub-total gt 660,000 - (660,000) -

Employees [E8 660,200 - (660,200) - 14.9 - 25/05/2015
Employees [E8 3,611,000 - (1,203,664 2407336 14.92 1268 25/05/2015
Employees €8 3,769,000 - (1,252997) 2,506,003 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Employees [E8 712,000 - - 712,000 8.98 921 2211202015
Employees [E8 548,000 - - 548,000 8.98 - 201202015
Sub-total gt 9,290,200 - (316,861 6,173,339

Total & 9,950,200 - (3776,861) 6,173,339

& For these Award Shares with initial grant price, the number of vested * RREVNSRHEROEBEROTE - BEK

shares represents the number of Award Shares that the relevant
employees are entitled to request the Company to sell. The relevant
employees bear the risks and rewards of the shares upon acceptance
of the grant and payment of the grant price, and are obliged to
refund the Excess in cash to the Company if the relevant employees

terminate the services before the end of the vesting period.

D2 B I ERE B AR ERA DRI SR EE
inE B - 1HREIEE N MR NI X R HE
REFAKERR () BB R IR 3R - Wi 5 AR R
ERREPERABR - ABENRSAARE

EHREBEZRERATF

.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

Due to employee resignation, the corresponding Award
Shares were forfeited in accordance with the Scheme.
The Group recognised net expenses of RMB5,151,000
(2016: total expenses of RMB23,298,000) after a
reversal of RMB®6,182,000 (2016:nil) for the relevant
tranche for the year ended 31 December 2017 in
relation to the Scheme, including an amount of
RMB1,018,000 (2016: RMB2,349,000) amortised from
prepayment of share-based payment as disclosed in
Note 29.

On 30 August 2016, Pinyu entered into an agreement
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Ample
Mighty from CR Healthcare Group by the issue of
462,913,516 consideration shares by the Company. The
Acquisition was completed on 31 October 2016 and
has been accounted for using acquisition method. The
fair value of the consideration shares of the Company,
determined using the share price at the Acquisition
Date, amounted to RMB4,982,600,000. Upon
completion of the Acquisition, CR Healthcare Group
holds approximately 35.70% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged.

Ample Mighty is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of
hospital consulting services and healthcare services in
Mainland China.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB18,418,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in 2016,
with the other expenses line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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As at 31 December 2016, due to awaiting
the completion of final valuation to assist the
management’'s estimates in relation to fair value of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and interest in a joint venture at the acquisition
date, the fair values of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiaries and the goodwill arose
on the acquisition are estimated and determined on
a provisional basis. In 2017 the final valuation was
completed. The management considers no adjustments
to provisional amounts in relation to the fair value of
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities recognised
at the Acquisition Date and the goodwill arose on the
acquisition.

Fair value of identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities recognised at the Acquisition Date:

2016F12A831H ° ARNEFRLK
AT AEEIEE T UEE B 5
M WEREE  BREEERR—
FEaENRIZEENAAEBE FTlK
BB ARMNR#REEFERKE
EENEEZARBENDKREEAE
ETHERETE - R2017F » &K
HEDETK - BEERA AN
HAKEAHERETHREERD
EREERBIBEENEEERE

ETaBFELAR -

RUfE AR MR BREE M
EEREENAAEBER

Amount

recognised at

the date of

acquisition

FUEE B B

EEREHE

RMB'000

ARETF T

Fair value of net identifiable assets of FTUCRE BB A B Al S R B B R E /Y

subsidiaries acquired NREE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BREKEE 105,630

Intangible assets BEEE 1,728,026

Loan to a sponsored hospital m— AR T IR B K 47,293

Interest in a joint venture R—EEE AR 2R 507,949

Inventories F&E 226

Trade receivables FEWE 5 5KI8 26,409

Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE B B Ath FE W R IE 1,699

Amounts due from related parties JE U BE B O X IE 1,958

Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEY 101,003

Trade payables FETB S RIE (692)

Other payables H fth FE T IR (23,584)

Amounts due to related parties 1~ BE RS 5 5RO (381)

Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JE ST 2R B8 B 5K IR (384,957)

Deferred tax liability EEHREE (319,089)

Net identifiable assets AR EEFE 1,791,490

EHREBRZERARAT
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37. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continued)
(ii) Goodwiill

Goodwill determined was as follows:

37. B B A R @
(ii) BE

EEMNEBNOT

Consideration transferred EEENRE 4,982,600
Less: Net assets acquired B BEWEEETRE (1,791,490)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEFTE AR R 3,191,110

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Ample Mighty
included amounts paid for the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of
Ample Mighty. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. In addition, as mentioned in
Note 22, certain amount of goodwill was in relation
to the increase of share price of the consideration
shares issued by the Company at the Acquisition
Date.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be deductable for tax purpose.

Net cash inflow on the Acquisition:

WHEEEELENHERIEERD
FIBE -« Waig & - RERMHH
BRERRELS NMZIANE
B o ZEmBREANAREDHR
B EENERIZE - I RE
B FRER o I - B
22Fit AT EESBRIEAR
fEUR B B BAAR R R FT BT TRUERR
MERRE EFAFTE -

Wi B AT E A O P B TR S A (R0
AT

WIERERAFRA

Cash and cash equivalent balances
acquired

BERBER MRS TEYER

101,003
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It F/E

Included in the loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 was profit of RMB19,042,000
attributable to the additional business generated
by Ample Mighty. Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016 includes RMB23,536,000
generated from Ample Mighty.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2016, the Group's revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2016 would have
been RMB1,603,689,000 and loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would have been
RMB1,496,621,000. This pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2016, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.

In determining the “pro-forma” revenue and profit
of the Group had Ample Mighty been acquired
at the beginning of the year ended 31 December
2016, the directors have

e calculated depreciation and amortisation of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets acquired on the basis of the fair
values arising in the initial accounting for the
business combination rather than the carrying
amounts recognised in the preacquisition
financial statements; and

e determined borrowing costs based on the
funding levels, credit ratings and debt/equity
position of the Group after the business
combination.

B Z£2016F12A318 It F &
MEBBEIEERMEEBINE
% AL 7B A K #19,042,000
JC o Bt E2016F12H318 L&
BNl aEaiEEEEEMNARE
23,536,000 °

i W B R2016F1H18 5%
K A% B E £2016%F128
SIBELEFEMNRTZAARK
1,603,689,0007T *© # £20164F
12A31BLEFEEMNBEAAR
#51,496,621,0007C ° ZfEZ &
FHEMR SR A - I~ —EREK
NEER2016F1 1B WEEE
R BRERERES  EERER
R D IEERERKRELEZ
TEOR( ©

EETE AL B [N & £20164F
12ANB L FEFINWBELE
ZIEE| s hAEBRES
= )

o ERNRYEHBAIHETIN
B REMELENAAE
1B (M A= 408 Al f1 75 ok
TERANRESE) YA
WEME - BE L& iERE
WEBE 2T e EEHEITRT
g R

o ERAKEEXRBAHRD
Be2K¥ - ERAFAERE
/B A R OR B {8 & KA

EITETE °
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Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's non-wholly owned subsidiary, Jian Gong
Hospital that has material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The non-controlling interests owned 20%
of ownership and voting right in Jian Gong Hospital
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. The summarised
financial information below represents amount before
intragroup eliminations.

AR E BRI RSN ANEREIE
2EHBARES BRI IEE R
TEHNT  72017F %20164F12
A3MA  FERERERRES BT
AR E#EN20% « N5
BRI ZHEERRARMEKHEIIZE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AR¥FT
Current assets MENEE 410,788
Non-current assets SERBEE 293,454
Current liabilities mEBE (88,915)
Non-current liabilities EREEaE (19,578)
Total equity B 595,749
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR HE 2 119,151

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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38.FZEMBL T @

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A3MBIEFE

Revenue and other income I B i Wt 2 663,743 603,722
Expenses M (621,403) (567,958)
Profit for the year F ) E 42,340 35,764
Other comprehensive expense for  FEHME2EMASX

the year - (20,332)
Total comprehensive income for FEE2MI AL

the year 42,340 15,432
Attributable to non-controlling JEVE R A o B G I

interests 8,468 3,086
Dividend paid to non-controlling M IEIE RS T AR B

interests 9,300 -
Net cash generated from operating £ /EEFT15IR 4 /558

activities 120,017 52,751
Net cash used in investing activities & ;& & AR S H5E (23,948) (25,132)
Net cash used in financing activities & EBFTAIR S 5 (46,494) =
Net cash inflow Be R AEE 49,575 27619

EHREBEZRERATF
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39.Capital 39. [k

Ordinary shares of HHRMEE0.00025/8 L2
HKDO0.00025 each LB
Authorised ETE
At 1 January 2016 R2016FE1H1H 1,520,000,000 380 302
Increase in authorised VA TE R AN (i)
share capital (ii) 1,520,000,000 380 331
At 31 December 2016 M20164F
and 2017 2017912 H31H 3,040,000,000 760 633
Issued and fully paid ERITRHBZE
At 1 January 2016 R2016E1H1H 833,763,000 209 166
Shares issued for acquisition AUWEEBMEITZ
of business {iii) A&7 (iii) 462,913,516 116 101
At 31 December 2016 720164 K&20174
and 2017 12H31H 1,296,676,516 325 267
Notes: B EE
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group repurchased its (i)  MEE2017F12A3NBLEFE - A5EBRA

(ii)

(iii)

ERRERXMBEEASRONERNT

own shares through the Trustee on the Stock Exchange as follows:

April 2017 20174 A4 11,000,000 10.67 10.18 114,917
The shares repurchased were held by the Trustee pursuant to the SRS M R ETRIEA AR ZE BB E « 5
Scheme as detailed in Note 36. 15 #5136 ©
On 31 October 2016, the Company increased its authorised share (i)  M2016%F10H318 » AR T INEETRA
capital to HKD760,000 divided into 3,040,000,000 shares of Z760,0005 7T © 9 £3,040,000,0000% & i&
HKDO0.00025 each. E{E0.000258 TTHI RS °
On 31 October 2016, 462,913,516 consideration shares with par (i) H2016%F108318 @ AEE A EHEEEE
value of HKDO0.00025 per share were issued and allotted to CR 1T R D B0462,913,516AX KB M (R E
Healthcare Group (Note 37). {80.00025/57T) (MF5E37) ©

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 A31 A L FE

40.Operating Leases 40. 8 EHE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREAEA
As at 31 December

W12A31H

Minimum lease payments under LEHETHREEENK
operating leases
Within one year —F R 2,942 2,858
In the second to the third year E_ZE=F
inclusive (BEERWE) 2,172 940
5,114 3,798
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by e ENTIENEBERBE R N5
the Group for the office premises leased. These leases ETmEMETES - ZSEHER —ZF=
were negotiated for lease terms of one to three years FEFHER - KT AMAERS -

at fixed monthly rental.

4. B HAth&iE

AT RERTHERRALGRE FBEHRE
FHEREBHEARN L R E AR

I|EE ®

41.Capital and Other Commitments

The following is the details of capital expenditure and
other commitment contracted for but not provided in
these consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December
»12H31H

Capital expenditure NG
In respect of acquisition of BRAWEDE
property, plant and equipment = N & 6,341 9,803
Other commitment oA
In respect of Repayable BEBEIOTH=
Investment Amounts to M IOT 28 B 15 H &Y
|OT hospitals under HEERESR
IOT agreements 538,000 538,000

EHREBRZERAR2T
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H It FE

The Group is involved as defendants in certain medical REBEREEESP EREHEER
disputes arising from its normal business operations. EANETERUD -AEBETEE
The management of the Group believes, based on legal HBE  ERNEEERMEZEERERE
advice and considering the insurance coverage, the C ZEFRAREERE TR
final result of these lawsuits will not have a material SENTNBRAEEEEEARNY
impact on the financial position or operations of the 2 A WERELERE -

Group and accordingly, no provision is made in this

regard.

The table below details major changes in the Group's THRFMAEEREITHELANTE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including BEES  PEESMIEIRSEH o
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising BB EEENAGEARSREN A
from financing activities are those for which cash flows RIS ReBENANEREESRERE
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the mMESEAMETHAERESREL
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash BE -

flows from financing activities.

Dividend
payable Payables
included to the
under other Sponsored
payables Borrowings Hospitals

SAA
3R FE SR 3
FEf AR 2. By BERHE

Note 34  Note 7(iv)
FeE34 B RE7(iv)
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT ARETRT

At 1 January 2017 K2017F1H1H
Financing cash flows BMERERE
Dividend distribution DIRAE

Dividend belongs to treasury share  [EERHD 2 & E
Foreign exchange translation SNERE

Interest expense accrual JEET R EH X

At 31 December 2017 K20179F12H31H

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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During the year, the Board granted an aggregate of
1,130,016 Award Shares to 54 Selected Participants
who are managerial personnel under the Scheme to
settle the bonus payable to the relevant employees.
Further details are set out in Note 36.

On 31 October 2016, 462,913,516 consideration shares
with par value of HKD0.00025 per share were issued
and allotted to CR Healthcare Group as detailed in Note
37

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has the following
material related parties:

Names and relationships with related parties are

RAFE  EEERBEZTE M54
FEBABER2HEELSARY
1,130,016A% B AR 10 + AR AT BT
1R B TRITEAL - E— BN M
36WE -

AN MIFE37FT AR AL - A20164F 107
3NB - AEEMERBESEET
X Bt 3£462,913,5160 K B 15 (F
A E{E0.00025/87T) °

BAGRA M RREMEEARES
O - REEA AT E AR

BB 77 & e % B R R 00 2 RA R N

as follows: T
Name Relationship
il RS

Yan Hua Hospital

Entity controlled by a shareholder

LB H— BRI ERE

Subsidiaries controlled by

Fellow subsidiaries of CR Healthcare Group

China Resources Company Limited

(“CR Limited', formerly known as

China Resources National Corporation)
rhEE AR A T

(THEZEME] - piEPEEREQR)

P2 Il ) BT /28 2 )

which has significant influence over
the Group

HAKEELBEAZENEBBRSE

BES =N

EHREBRZERARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

45.Related Party Transactions (continued) 45. B H X 5 @
452 Related party balances 45.2 B 75 L 8

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following balances with related parties:

Amounts due from related parties

RBEIR - REBB AT EH
TTRERR

PR BT '

As at 31 December
»12A31H

Yan Hua Hospital L EEBR 83,991 66,468

Subsidiaries controlled by Fh [ 2 B PR 1 A9
CR Limited KIEING] 2,661 -
86,652 66,468

The following is an aged analysis of amount due
from related parties which is trade in nature based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

TXEFINHRERRILEZ R B
EIIH R D B 5 1 E IR
ZIRER DT

As at 31 December
»W12A31H

Within 60 days 60K A 34,588 53,5670
61-180 days 612180k 52,061 12,858
181-1 year 181 KE1F 3 40

86,652 66,468

The Group had the following balances of
receivables from Yan Hua Hospital under the 10T
arrangements at the end of the reporting period:

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017

REBRHEARES A TRE
|OT % & U e b B8 B s IB /Y 45
7%

HT:-‘



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z20176F12A31B L F/E

45.Related Party Transactions (continued) 45. BB B X5 @
452 Related party balances (continued) 45.2 B HR 5 &8k (0
Amounts due from related parties (Continued) FEW B T 70 E (&)

As at 31 December
®12A831H

Receivables from Yan Hua Hospital JFE LA A 1 B2 Bre 30 IE 32,223 32,291
Less: current portion included B EEABRRIER

in prepayments and other H fth fE Y I8

receivables "I BN EREE 7> (3,262) (3,262)
Non-current portion JEBNEREL 2 28,961 29,029

As at 31 December
®12A318

Subsidiaries controlled by CR Limited A1 Bl B AT 124l #Y

)= PN=] 2,276 1,760
The amounts due from the related parties are FE W AR 75 FRIBIA A R ETE -
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and REEHR  2ERAIR—FAK
recoverable within one year. As at 31 December [ - 720174 K20165F 1231
2017 and 2016, the Group did not have amount due A AEEWEDSIHAEKES
from related parties which was past due. 575 I8 ©

EHREBRERAR2T 0 2/
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

45.Related Party Transactions (continued) 45. BB A X5 @
452 Related party balances (continued) 45.2 BB 5 48R (w0
Amounts due to related parties FE(T BB T 50 H

As at 31 December
M12H31H

Yan Hua Hospital e BEP = 34
Subsidiaries controlled by Fh B 2 B P ) 9

CR Limited {BpEEING] 7,038 3,114
Total HEt 7,038 3,148

As at 31 December
®12H31H

Subsidiaries controlled by Fh B 25 8 B2 1) 49
CR Limited NG 222 3,766
The above amounts are unsecured, interest free Lt RIBAEET 2R RARE
and repayable on demand. EREE -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELZEY

As at 31 December
12 A31H

Subsidiaries controlled by FR B 2 R PR I /Y
CR Limited {Rg=NE]| 100,357 3,114
Bank balances carried interest at market rates RWEFER  RITERIRTF
which range from 0.01% to 1.35% per annum at 0.01%%1.35%H) 1 % A = &F
the end of both years. B

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z20176F12A31B L F/E

45.Related Party Transactions (continued) 45. BB AR5 @
45.2 Related party balances (continued) 45.2 B &R
Short-term investments HHRE

As at 31 December
M®12A318

Subsidiaries controlled by FP B EE R P I A B B A A
CR Limited 182,000 -
The expected annual return rates of the financial ERERNTEHRFLQRENT
products are ranging from 3% to 4% per annum 3%ZE4% + I M2018%F 27 F|
and the maturity is in February 2018. By o
453 Related party transactions BB RS
Trade in nature ESME

For the year ended
31 December

HZ12A3181LFE

Hospital management and Bt EE MAARE
consulting services
Yan Hua Hospital FeAL B 36,324 35,798

For the year ended
31 December

HZE12A31HILFE

GPO business GPOZT%
Yan Hua Hospital FeAL B P 256,063 278,074

W
om
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

45.Related Party Transactions (continued) 45. B H X 5 @
453 Related party transactions (continued) BIBHHFRXE @
Trade in nature (continued) EGME @)

Purchases of Goods RESH
Subsidiaries controlled by Fh B 2 B P A9
CR Limited oy INE]| 46,857 4,942

BATEEE A B 25

454 Compensation of key management
personnel
FRAFEZEEAB ZFHBE
T

The emoluments of key management during the
year is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31BILEE

Short-term employees benefits HHREEF 12,266 21,155

Equity-settled share-based R EE AR 3R
payment expense XX 315 -
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 12 7 190 230
12,771 21,385
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern,
while to maximise the return to the equity holders
of the Company through optimisation of debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net of
cash and bank balances and equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company, comprising capital and
reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure
on a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
the recommendation of the management, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through issue
of new shares, issue of new debts as well as the
repayment of existing debts.

AREENERNEEEHERRASEE
BREFELE  FARBEEBLERY
& RARREZFEAFIRRAD
o ARENBEREEFRIE—
B o

AEBHEARBERERE RIRITHE
BURA QAR FA ARAER
(F AR K AR ) B EE

EEESFTEEEANE - (ERILA
BEN—H5  EBEGERELRK
AREFEENEBOAR - RIZE
BEMNRZ AKBSEEBTH
I~ BITHESMEERGEBER
BARBHRETE -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174F 20164F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETF T
Financial assets: EREE
Loans and receivables (including B e A
cash and cash equivalents and (BIERe MBS
certificate of deposit) ZEMERTFTHE) 1,628,423
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE -
Financial assets at FVTPL FVIPLE RYE B 66,400
1,694,823
Financial liabilities: TRAE
Amortised cost SRR 672,948

EHREBRZERARAT
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The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, amounts due from related parties, loan to
a sponsored hospital, other receivables, certificate of
deposit, cash and cash equivalents, receivables from
|OT Hospitals, short-term investments, available-for-sale
investments, trade payables, amounts due to related
parties, payables to the Sponsored Hospitals, other
payables and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain financing and operating
transactions in foreign currencies, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group does not
use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages
its currency risk by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates and considering hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should such need
arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
during both years are as follows:

$’$@£%¥<ﬁﬁ'ﬂlﬂ BEENE S
TH - ERREREE IR - [ — IR
PrivttmE R E@JTJ%ZMIE TR
B HRekReFEY  KBIOTE
P FEWRRIE - AR E - ATt E
<& - ENBSHIE - }Eﬁﬁﬂ 73 5K
I8~ ENERHER 2K H Ath FE 1~
HIEREE - E%%/i\rfﬂlﬂﬂ‘]nil i
ZEEMWEEE -  HZzEert TAME
AR EE e EmERE - EERERE &
MBE SRR o TXEH @R A

S

ﬂigxgﬂ N\EIIJEAZE'% ° %E@%EE&%
EZER R - AR &S A REREUE

S

BEmE

REBEAINEEITTE TREREER

5 - B EERIMNE R o NEBRE

ﬁﬁ{‘ﬂ—ﬂﬂim WEREERR - B2

BiEBZIERINEREXEFHWNE
%Hﬁ%f&ﬁﬁpéﬁﬂ\tﬂ B 2R B 32

R -

AEBNMEFEAINEFTHENEE
BEMERBENER@EN TR :

Liabilities Assets
BfE BE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
M12A318 M12A318
2017 2016 2017 2016
20174 20164 20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT ARET
usSh £ = 33,461
HKD BTT = 7633

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations
in the HKD and USD against RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% (2016: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against
HKD and USD. 5% (2016: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents the
management’'s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation to RMB at year end for a 5% (2016: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A positive (negative)
number below indicates an increase (decrease) in
post-tax profit where RMB weakens 5% against the
relevant currency. For a 5% strengthening of RMB
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit or loss.

AEBTIERRBTEETEARE
PE R B 2 B o

TERFANAEBHARBEEB TR
ELERAEKEZES% (20165 :
5% ) FIEURSE > 5% (2016%F : 5%)
REEERNSFRTEEEAESREIN
ERBETANSRELE - WK
EEBYHINEERSEAEEFHHN
FHE o BURE D ITE BIEAINESTHE
RARFEERIER - WHRFERIE%
(20164 : 5%) HYHNEE (& 5 & B) ¥
BMEARBENERETAHAE - TK
EHIMES (BH) REARK LA
e EL%E A& T BN
CRitE) - AR S BB E®AES%
BeHfEBEREESERANY
@,

HKD usb
AT e
2017 2016 2017 2016

20174 20164 20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETTT AREBTIT ARETT ARETT
F sk EE 382 1,673

Profit or loss

EHREBRZERARAT
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Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to receivables from IOT hospitals, cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances (Note 31), which carry prevailing market
interest rates, loan to a sponsored hospital (Note 7(iv)),
short-term investments (Note 30) and borrowings (Note
34). The Group currently does not have a specific policy
to manage their interest rate risk and have not entered
into interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure, but will
closely monitor their interest rate risk exposure in the
future.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for borrowings
and loan to a sponsored hospital at the end of the
reporting period. The management of the Group
considers the fluctuation in interest rates on bank
balances and short-term investments is insignificant.
The analysis is prepared assuming the borrowings
and loan to a sponsored hospital outstanding at
the end of the year were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to
50 basis points higher in interest rates and all other
variables were held constant. For a 50 basis points
lower in interest rates, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit or loss.

FIEE

AEEES EEWIOTERKIAR #
B R 7 BEMN R E R DA K 8% 8 | &
RITHEER (BTSN EETE) (M
i31) - A—HERBRIEHNER
(MaE7(v) ~ EHIR & (KI&E30) &
B8 (MiiE34) HEMREREHN X
[\ o ANE2 [ B A K i E B IR A R
[\ By ELBE KR - IRER] M AR B
RBAEHRRRER - BEREER Y
ERAESREERAF XER

AT BURE AT TR IB R & B R A
EEMNX A —FERERERNE
RERMETE - AEEEEERS -
$R1T 4 84 N R AR B RO N ROR 08 B
Ko ZAMHBRERERREEEE
KA — AR B B SR () & RN B (]
FREAREEMRHE -RNETEEERE
A B R EB & A = 2 B (£ 505
B EF TR - KREEEH N X
BIRAGEE BT LA ©

TREFANEE L R £ FH50E
M EMERER T ENHRE
METEOEMGEHBEELES
BRANFE

Profit or loss

B
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARETT
Borrowings BE -
Loan to a Sponsored Hospital A — R R M E R 180
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Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through
its investments in short-term investments and
available-for-sale investments.

The management of the Group manages the short-term
investments exposure by only investing in investments
operated by banks and financial institution with good
reputation and by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The management considers the
fluctuation in fair value changes on financial products
is insignificant, taking into account the short-term
duration of such financial products.

The available-for-sale investments are listed equity on
the Stock Exchange. The Group currently does not have
a specific policy to manage the price risk or to hedge
the risk exposure, but will closely monitor the price risk
exposure in the future.

Other price risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.

If the price of the equity instrument had been 5%
(2016: nil) higher/lower, the investment revaluation
reserve/post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB®6,870,000 (2016: nil) as a result of the changes in
fair value of available-for-sale investments which have
been impaired;

A E% R
AEBRBRENEIIRE KA
EE M ERRERE -

EEEEBEREHEERIART
hEMEBERFENRE  RERFHaT
FRRZ EAKRNIREAEEEE
HIRERR - st hZETREMRNE
HtE  BEERAARTERMERN
NABEZEHKETIA

A ERE SR AT EH AR
R AREBMTEABRRAEE
ERERSE RO - R E
rREVEEERRRERO -

At ERERHBEETHT
AT ERE DT TRIER d B HIH
BREERERMEE

WA T EB®EFRHT K%
(20164 : #&) - BI#E =2017F12R
BHEFEZREEHHGE ik
MESERERENHLEEREZA
AREBEZEHMEN,BIOHARE
6,870,0007T (20164 : #&) :
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Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the management of the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each material individual debt at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the management of the Group considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks.
However, the credit risk on cash and cash equivalents
and certificate of deposit is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are banks with good
reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on
short-term investments which represent investments in
financial products operated by banks.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.

FEmEE
AEERSEERRBANXERSH
FHTITRENBAEBAEMBE
K BRIBRREE MBI E B
EERMBEENKREE °

AEEREEERR AEEEEE
ERE-—EEKEEEEEERE
SEEMHNREMEEEN - ARERRK
ERBRETE M BB HE RS o HIN -
SEEEEESHREMREERRE
ANEFEHO AT @ SRR - BIRE 5
AN A & BT RS 0 RYRLERE 1] ©
BUME @  AREEEBRSAEE
MEERRDBEERE -

HNEREZRRTHORDES - &
SEEREESETAR - AW &R
REZBRZEF I REEBRIFNIER
17 REMREFEWARTFRED
EERBRBR

AREHERERIRE (FBRERRTT
EFNEMEMR) NEESTRER



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of
amounts due from the IOT Hospitals and the Sponsored
Hospitals, including receivables from the 10T Hospitals,
loan to a sponsored hospital, trade receivables from the
IOT Hospitals, the Sponsored Hospitals and third party
suppliers and amounts due from related parties. Details
of the balances with IOT Hospitals, balances with the
Sponsored Hospitals and amounts due from related
parties are set out in Notes 7 and 45.2 respectively.
The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk on an
ongoing basis and credit evaluation is performed on
each of the IOT Hospitals, the Sponsored Hospitals,
third party suppliers and the related parties. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the Group has reviewed the
recoverability of receivables from the |OT Hospitals,
loan to a sponsored hospital, trade receivables from
the IOT Hospitals, the Sponsored Hospitals and a
third party supplier and the amounts due from related
parties to ensure that follow-up action is taken timely.
Therefore the Group’s management concludes the
exposure to bad debt is not significant. Under such
circumstances, the management considers that the
Group's credit risk is not significant.

Liquidity risk

In managing liquidity risk, the Group’s management
monitors and maintains a reasonable level of cash
and cash equivalents which deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the impacts of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management relies on the cash generated from
operating activities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

EEREE (#)
£ /B IRIOTES Bt 5% T8 [ FE Uit 28 it B8
STIE (BIER BIOTE BT 2 B K
H M HENEREENOER
KEIOTERT « RP BT RE = H#
JE 75 1) E W B 5 SR I8 % e UK B 5
FIE) FH AREEHBREESERR
hoﬁmﬁ%%m gk - BRI
rEer N E W R 7 SRIBE 2 5B 2 7
%XBABHEWSMM m&@w*w
:.,ﬂﬁ 2 B EIOTERT ~ Ry E
Bt - =77 (e R FAH ELﬂzf
FFAd o %?K@Emﬁﬁgﬂ
AEEDEEREIOTER Z UG
I8 m— ﬁﬁ% SPTIRMEME K ~ 2K
BIOTER - BRER K —RE=F
ME%%EWT RIB N FE UK Ba s 5
RIER AW EIREE - R KERIVE
BTE) - Bt - AEEEEERAE
ERERERHODK - FBERT - B
ERRAEENEERBRTK -

B EZ/E
EERDECRERE  AXEBEERE
ERVTKHEe MR EEMHRIEES
BHEBERRAR KT @ UBEX
AEBEEMBWERRERER
PR EREABKEEHESE
IR E o

TRAELMAEECRABENSRT AL
B o PRIBEBEAREE A EK
MRz HRFABReREBE I AREER
BenEme - ZRFARKEENER
AeHEME °

EHREBRZERARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

47. Financial Instruments and Financial 47. €T EARERERERE @
Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk management objectives tREREEEERBE @
and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TREEDREE (&)

As at 31 December 2017 #20175128318
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade payables GRS 153,910 103,024 60 256,994 256,994
Other payables EfERE 29,220 25,824 9,585 64,629 64,629
Amounts due to JERAR 308
related parties 5,545 1,274 44 7,260 7260
Payables to the ERNEHBRE
Sponsored Hospitals 267,834 - - 267,834 267,834
Borrowings BE 171,458 - - 171,458 171,362
Tota g3t 621,967 130,122 10,086 768,175 768,079

As at 31 December 2016 #2016512831R
Financial liabilities tHEE
Trade payables EREATE 145,384 97317 56 242,757 242,757
Other payables At ERFE 24,384 21,550 7999 53,933 53,933
Amounts due to related parties [EER A FE 5,280 1,213 421 6,914 6,914
Payables to the ENERER A
Sponsored Hospitals 369,344 - - 369,344 369,344
Total &t 544,392 120,080 8,476 672,948 672,948

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured AEEH S EREERTMENRRLZ
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The ARBEE - TREYBEBEMMAE
following table gives information about how the fair EREeMEEC A AAEE (K2
values of these financial assets are determined (in HMEFTERAMERGAEB) - KR
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), EAABEMAKANGAEB 2 AIER
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into EE#ARBEFESDRTREAAA
which the fair value measurements are categorised BEER (F—ZEZ=R) 2EH -

(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets (RMB'000) hierarchy and key input(s)
RIATBHRZz 2R EE ~rfBE
TRUEE (AREFT) & HEDERFEBAE
31/12/2017  31/12/2016
Available-for-sale 137406 - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
investments (Note 25) market
AIHEEERE (Mf:325) F—H EEMBWE
Financial products 659,852 66,400 Level 2 Determined in accordance
(Note 30) with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted
cash flow analysis. Future cash
flows are estimated based on
expected return rates.
eRtEm (H3E30) FH HAAREEBEERABRHEERN
ENMEE - ARREREBER
LB R
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts BEERR  EREHREUBHRERPIE
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded BRI RremEERSRIBE
at amortised cost in these consolidated financial ZEREERFEC AAEBEEL -

statements approximate their fair values.

EHREBRZERARAT
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REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

48.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of
the Company

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries

as at 31 December 2017:

48. AN TEEMB A RMNFE

MR2017%128318 - KA BIHEER LA
TEENBRAA :

Beijing Phoenix The PRC RMB500,000,000
IREE hE AR500,000,0007
Jian Gong Hospital* The PRC RMB420,552,600
REER 12 May 2003 AR¥420,552,6007T
hE
2003554128
Beijing Wanrong* The PRC RMB3,000,000
FRERERREARAA 20 March 2000 AE#3,000,0007
hE
2000634208
Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical Devices The PRC RMB4,000,000
Co., Ltd. 9 December 2004 AK%4,000,0007C
IRBREREERHARL R el
2004%12A9A
Beijing Phoenix Easylife Healthcare The PRC RMB1,000,000
Consulting Co., Ltd. 18 January 2008 ARE1,000,00070
TrBERE EERFARRAD hE
2008%1718H

100.00

80.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017

100.00

80.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Investment holding and hospital
management

REREREREE

General healthcare services

HRaBRRH

GPO business
GPO£H

GPO business
GPOZH

QOther hospita-derived services

A ERDTERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z20176F12A31B L F/E

48.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 48. A2 X EKE A TS
the Company (continued) ()

Beijing Phoenix Easylife Technology and The PRC RMB500,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Trade Co,, Ltd. 28 April 2011 AEE500,0007 GPOZHK
TRBEEEHMERRAA" hE
2011547285
Beijing Easylife Xinnuo Laundry Service The PRC RMB500,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co., Ltd. 11 October 2013 AR500,0007 GPOXH
IrEAERARREARAD? hE
2013F10A 1A
Easylife Yongxin (Beijing) Trade Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB500,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
#HKfE (ER) BEARAR" 8 November 2013 ARH500,0007 GPO%7%
i
2013511 A8A
Unison Champ Limited The BVI UsD1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
(“Unison Champ”) 7 January 2013 B RERR
Unison Champ Limited REARHE
(Unison Champ) 1351778
Pinyu The BVI USD1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Pinyu 3 January 2013 %7 RERR
ZBRRRE
201351438

EHREBRZERAR2T 0 9]
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REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

48.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 48. XA T X EKE A TS
the Company (continued) (#&)

Phoenix Healthcare International Hong Kong HKD1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Investment Limited 28 August 2012 157 RARR
2012487288
Star Target Investments Limited Hong Kong HKD1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
ERRERRAT 3 January 2013 187 RARR
Bk
2013%1A3A
Phoenix Baoding Healthcare Hospital The PRC USD5,000,000/ 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Management Co., Ltd. 1 April 2016 USD8,000,000 EhER
BERRERERARLAT R 5,000,000£7 /
2016%4A18 8,000,005
Beijing Phoenix United Innovation The PRC RMB10,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived services
Management Consulting Co.,Ltd 20 April 2016 JRMB20,000,000 BT RE
IRBER RN ERENERAR il ARE10,0007/

2016544208 AB#20,000,0007

Beijing Phoenix Yisheng UCC Clinic The PRC RMB10,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospita-derived services
Management Co.,Ltd 5 August 2016 JRMB120,000,000 A BRITERE
IREERED MERARAT hE AB#10,0007/

2016815 A&%120,000,0001

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z20176F12A31B L F/E

48. AR BREEMBARMNFE

48.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of

the Company (continued) ()

Beijing Phoenix United Innovation The PRC RMB10,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospita-derived services
Information Technology Co., Ltd 20 April 2016 JRMB10,000,000 Hth B 67 TR

FRBERAEERITARAT i ARE10,000T/

2016547208 AR10,000,0007
Beijing Lihetang Healthcare The PRC RMB10,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospita-derived services

Management Co, Ltd 1.June 2016 JRMB1,000,000 e 67 TR

FRBAEREERARLR: i NRE10,0007 /

201656414 AK1,000,0007
Ample Mighty** The BVI USD50,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
13 28 October 2011 50,000%TC RERR

EBERES

20114510728
China Resources Hospital Investment Limited  Hong Kong HKD1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
ZEERRAERARR A 28 October 2011 187 RABR

30

2011%510A28H
Shenzhen Yukangrun** The PRC RMB10,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
AITHEEEREBERAT 21 January 2016 AR10,0007 RERKR

h

2016515218

EHREBEZRERATF
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REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

48.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 48. XA T X EKE A TS
the Company (continued) (#&)

CR Hospital Investment** The PRC USD100,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital consulting services
FEERRATEARAA 23 October 2012 100,000,000%7 Bl ks

]

20125104238
China Resources Hospital Management The PRC USD10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital consulting services

Co., Ltd 9 May 2014 10,000,000%7 Bhibaks

FRERERARAA hE

201445A97
CR Hospital Holding™* The PRC RMB52,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital consulting services
FEERERERAD 20 July 2012 AR52,000,0007C Bhibaks

il

201247A208
999 Clinic** The PRC RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  General healthcare services
SABERZE (RY) BRELAT 25 November 2015 AR¥4,000,0007C N

il

2015511 A 258
Beijing Hezhongsuyu Hospital The PRC RMB990,000/ 60.00 - Other hospital-derived services

Management Co., Lt 10 March 2017 RMB1,000,000 BRI RS

FRARERERERARAR PE AR990,0007 /

2017537108 AR1,000,0007

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z20176F12A31B L F/E

48. AR BREEMBARMNFE

48.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of
the Company (continued)

()

Beijing Mingshihoude Hospital
Management Consulting Co., Ltd*
FRARE e R E R AARAA

Beijing Zhikangjiantong Hospital
Management Consulting Co., Ltd*

IRERRREREEANARAR

Wuhan Jiayi United Medical Devices Co., Ltdf
REEREARESRARAA

Guangzhou Jiayi Medical Equipments Co, Ltd*
BNERBERERRAT

Beijing Phoenix Lianyi Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd*
TRBERBHERERERAR

Beijing Phoenix Cinda Hospital
Management Consulting Co., Ltd*

LRBEEEERERENARAR

The PRC

10 March 2017
e
201738108

The PRC

15 March 2017
HE
201737158

The PRC

8 July 2017
hE

201757 A8H

The PRC

19 June 2017
e
2017667198

The PRC

21 September 2017
hE
2017F9A218

The PRC

23 June 2017
t
201767238

RMB90,000/

RMB1,000,000
AE#990,0007 /
ARH1,000,000%

i
RMB1,000,000
AE®OT/
ARE1,000,0007

i
RMB1,000,000
AE®OT/
AR%1,0000007T

N
RMB1,000,000
AREOT/
AR1,000,0007

i
RMB5,000,000
AREOT/
AR5,000,0007

i
RMB100,000
AEBOT/

AR%100,0007

60.00 - Other hospita-derived services
74 i
60.00 - Other hospital-derived services
el 4 e
100.00 - (PO business
GPOXH
100.00 - GPO business
GPOXH
100.00 - Other hospita-derived services
- Uy
100.00 - Other hospita-derived services

Efb &t R

EHREBEZRERATF
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 831 H L FE

48.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 48. AATEEMEB A TINEE

the Com Pany (continued)

(%)

Guangzhou Boen Doctor Group Co., Ltd* The PRC Nil/ 100.00 - Qther hospita-derived services
ENBERLSEERAR" 11 August 2017 RMB1,000,000 BRI RS

P AREOT/

17%58A 1A AR1,000,0007
Hainan Runfeng Medical Service Co., Ltd* The PRC RMB500,000/ 100.00 - Other hospital-derived services
BHRRBRREARBLAR 26 October 2017 RMB1,000,000 Ett ki RE

E AE500,0007/

20175104268 AR1,000,0007
Beijing Runhuaxinkang Hospital The PRC Nil/ 60.00 - Other hospita-derived services

meammawaCoLm“ 22 December 2017 RMB2,500,000 L ik

IRRELRBREEAAARAA R AREOT/

201781222 AK%2,500,0007C
@ The entities are subsidiaries of Beijing Phoenix. * ZEERBARILIRBERZWBAR -

**  The entities are subsidiaries of Ample Mighty and acquired through
the Acquisition in 2016.

& The entities are established during 2017.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(i) All of the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are registered as
limited liability companies under the PRC law.

(ii) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

(iii)  All the above subsidiaries are operating principally in their place of
incorporation/establishment.

o ZEERDEEZIMEBRR - WEEN2016
iﬁ’]”ﬁlﬁ%lﬁﬁ ©

LEETIN2017FERKIL

nP

EREVNEERATEFELAEEE
BREEMASEBHEBLAR - EFR
B REHMOHBARFBEBERE
BHARIUE

() FAERPEEMAZHE ARG RES A
REL/ERAMEIAR -

(i) RAFER BHEMNBLRETEMERSEE
%o

(i) P LMMBLAREERNRENEMAL,
PRI B2 E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

As more fully described in the Company’s
announcement on 22 March 2018, (1) Yan Hua Hospital
has convened a council meeting and changed its
council members since 25 January 2018; (2) as of 22
March 2018, the Group has no representative holding
the position of council member in Yan Hua Hospital;
(3) the Group was notified by Yan Hua Hospital on
26 February 2018 that Yan Hua Hospital has decided
to terminate the Supply Chain Joint Development
Agreement, the terms of which are as disclosed in
Note 5, and to implement a bidding process for the
procurement of pharmaceutical, medical device and
medical consumables starting 1 March 2018; and (4)
as of 22 March 2018, the Group has not received any
tender notice from Yan Hua Hospital, whereas the
Group keeps providing pharmaceutical and medical
consumables to Yan Hua Hospital as usual.

In 2017, the supply chain management service fees
earned from the third party suppliers according to
the Supply Chain Joint Development Agreement
with Yan Hua Hospital was RMB32,065,000, the
sales revenue of pharmaceutical, medical device and
medical consumables from Yan Hua Hospital was
RMB256,063,000 whereas the related cost of sales
was RMB195,840,000, and the hospital management
and consulting services fee income from Yan Hua
Hospital was RMB36,324,000.

MU~ R B HR201853H22H
MAEE— SR (1)820185F1
258 HILEREAHAESE
TERITEHRTEEENE : QHZE
2018¢3H225 CAEESREBREK
EHREBREESETES: QR
2018F2H26H ' NEEEFR(LEP
B FRICBRTAE B2018F3 A1
Hie - &REEE L E R E (Hﬂ%ﬁ
KIS EE) - WH B R - BER
HEINEREMHNRERERZRER ;
K (4)E £2018%F3H22H © K £ H
ﬂiLléz | Fe b BB R BIZAEAD - &
RNElD#ERIRC B I EE N ERFEN
Tk -

20175 E - KB EIK(L BB 5T LAY
e KE R e F = HEHEE
MEEEEERBERARBARE
32,065,0007T ¢ 2K B #& 1k 2 br 79 %
T BEIENEMEERABAR
#256,063,0007T * AERISHER A A
195,840,0007T ; 2K B #{b By B
ERREARBGERABARE
36,324,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£2017F 128318 EFE

At 31 December

M®12A31H

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
e AREFT ARETT

Non-current assets FERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR E (i) 6,076,813
Amounts due from subsidiaries N EPNGIE =] 137,071
6,213,884

Current assets MEEE
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 18,640
18,640
Current liabilities mEIBE

Amounts due to subsidiaries ANl PNGIE ] 31,788
Bank loans RITER -
Other payables H e RRIR 16,673
48,461
Net current liabilities mEEEFE (29,821)
Total assets less current liabilities B ERAHAE 6,184,063

Capital and reserves AR AR K (et
Share capital A& A 39 267
Share premium and reserves R 1D m (B K H# (ii) 6,183,796
Total equity BRER 6,184,063

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd.



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F12A318 It FE

Notes: P aE -

R2017F12A8318 + KA RN —EH B A A
WIRE S EEHEERUnison ChamprIiE
RAR1ZETT (201645 1% 7x) * BREARAA
R2016F K2014FEHM B EAMBRAHR R
FEMHTE R R EMELRRIERE - URS
RARNRIEEZTANIBRG N RZHELRN

(i) As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s balance of investment in a (i)
subsidiary mainly represents its investment cost in Unison Champ
of 1 USD (2016:1 USD), the deemed investments arising from the
waiver of amounts due from subsidiaries pursuant to the relevant
written statements made by the Company during 2016 and during
2014 and the equity contribution to subsidiaries arising from the

share based payment arrangements involving equity instruments of

the Company.

FffBARRELE o

(i) Movement in the Company’s reserves is as follows: (i) ARRNEEHEZESHOT ¢
Share-
Treasury based
Share Capital share payment  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ERRH  URGAR
By | RAGE f#E & 2iER b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
At 1 January 2016 1,382,736 (2,877) (140,728) 31,315 (61,737) 1,208,709
Issue of shares for acquisition of business 4,982,499 - - - - 4,982,499
Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments ES - - - 20,949 - 20,949
Shares vested under the share award scheme 1R & iz 7 2 Eh= 1 2
BEZRH - 3,745 26,545 (30,290) = -
Loss and total comprehensive expense for FEBBRREE
the year gt - - - - (29,534) (29,534)
Others Hity 711 - 462 - - 1,173
At 31 December 2016 720164124318 6,365,946 868 (113,721) 21,974 (91,271) 6,183,796
Purchase of shares for unvested shares BERG RE)RHE A
under the share award scheme HERINMEE 2RH - - (101,851) - - (101,851)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based R R EE ARG 5
payments - - - 12,148 - 12,148
Shares vested under the share award scheme  RIEIR( ZE:T 5B 2
B’ = 787 20,339 (21,126) = =
Profit and total comprehensive income for FEFIERZAKRALE
the year - - - - 4,455 4,455
Dividends BRE (69,934) = = = - (69,934)
At 31 December 2017 #2017%12A318 6,296,012 1,655 (195,233) 12,996 (86,816) 6,028,614

EHREBRZERARAT
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Financial Summary — in Accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards

MBRE - REBEIRVHEREZER

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31BIEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS #&&E¥%4&

Revenue Wiz 1877724 1,532,831 1,372,267 1,206,265 887354
Profit (loss) before tax BATFE (&i8) 5509507 (1,452,481) 247968 316,759 143,009
Income tax expense FTEHiAY (129,812) (47331)  (75,554) (77230)  (46,865)
Profit (loss) for the year FEFE (B8) 429,695 (1,499,812) 172,414 239,529 96,144
Attributable to: AT AL
Equity holders of the AREESRFAA
Company 421,024 (1,506,964) 167045 230,051 89,992
Non-controlling interests R 8,661 7152 5,369 9,478 6,152

429,695 (1,499,812) 172,414 239,629 96,144

As at 31 December
R12A31H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HBER&E

Total assets REE 6,914,207 6,448,336 2,255,469 2,011,906 2,124,038
Total liabilities Rafs [1,9712,628) (1,090,806)  (392,737)  (276,662)  (408,184)

5,601,568 5357530 1,862,732 1,735,244 1,715,854

Equity attributable to IATATEG#ES :

Equity holders of ARAERFAA
the Company 5481731 5238379 1,747878 1,627112 1,617,200
Non-controlling interests FEIE R i s 119,837 119,151 114,854 108,132 98,654

5,601,568 5357630 1,862,732 1,735,244 1,715,854

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. /nnuzl Beport 2017



"Ample Mighty”

"Articles of Association” or
"Articles”

“"Audit Committee”

“Award Shares”

“Beijing Jiayi"

"Beijing Juxin Wantong”

“Beijing Phoenix”

“Beijing Wanrong”

“Beijing Wantong”

Ample Mighty Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of BVI and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Healthcare Group

the articles of association of our Company adopted on September 30,
2013 and as amended from time to time

the audit committee of the Board

such Shares awarded pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the maximum
number of which shall not exceed 10% of the total issued capital of the
Company as at July 7, 2014 and 1% of the total number issued Shares to
each of the Selected Participant as at July 7, 2014

Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical Devices Co., Ltd. (3t /Bl EE25 & & 224,
BRRA7]), formerly known as Beijing Phoenix Luoke Medical Technology
Co., Ltd. GERBEE R B ER T AR A7) and Phoenix Wanfeng Medical
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (BIELE IEE 217 (IbR) BR AR, a limited
liability company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on December 9,
2004, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

Beijing Juxin Wantong Investment Co., Ltd. Jt REEEREKEBR A

A]), formerly known as Phoenix United Hospital Management (Beijing)
Co., Ltd. (Bl E\B: BB P EIE (L) BRZAF]) and Phoenix Healthcare
Investment Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (BlEIE2EREERE (tR) A
fR 2 &), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC
on June 9, 2003, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Wantong and a
connected person to our Company

Beijing Phoenix United Hospital Management Consulting Co. Ltd. (1t /&l
BBt A BB B IR A AR A A)), formerly known as Beijing Phoenix United
Hospital Management Co., Ltd. (3t BB & B EE AR A R]) and
Beijing Phoenix United Hospital Management Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (1t /8|
BBt A B EIRAR D AR A ), a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC on November 6, 2007, and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company

Y

Beijing Wanrong Yikang Medical Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Jt R B L EFEE
#EHR /N F]), a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the
PRC on March 20, 2000, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

Beijing Phoenix Wantong Investment Management Co., Ltd. (At =B E &
R EER AR AT]), formerly known as Phoenix Hospital Management
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (BIE\EB B (IL) AR A A, a limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on April 24, 2002

EHREBRZERARAT
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“Board"” or “Board of

Directors”

“BVI"

“CAGR"

"CG Code”

“Chairman”

"Chief Executive Officer”

“Chief Financial Officer”

“China” or “PRC"

“CITIC Medical”

“CITIC Kingview"

“Company” or “our

Company“or “CR Phoenix"

“"Companies Ordinance”

"

"Controlling Shareholder(s)

“CR Bank”

"CR Healthcare Group”

the board of Directors of our Company

the British Virgin Islands

Compound Annual Growth Rate

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

the chairman of our Board

the chief executive officer of our Company

the chief financial officer of our Company

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

CITIC Medical & Health Group Co., Ltd (T 2ERBEEEXEEERAA), a
company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability

CITIC Kingview Capital Management Co., Ltd. (P28 @EERNEEER
E1E/A7]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, the
shareholders of which are CITIC Trust Co., Ltd., CITIC Capital Holdings
Limited and China CITIC Limited

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited (Z£/E/E]
BB EIERR B R /A A]), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on February 28, 2013

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules, or where the
context requires, refers to China Resources Company Limited (FEZEBEA
R A 7)) (formerly known as China Resources National Corporation (F B %
HBNT])

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd.

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited, a company incorporated under
the laws of Hong Kong

EHREBRZERARAT
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“CR Holdings" China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (228 (&) BREA 7)),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources Co., Limited (T EIZEBEERE A
Al) and the indirect holding company of CR Healthcare Group

“Director(s)” the directors of our Company or any of them

"Eligible Persons” any of the (i) key management personnel including the Directors and
senior management of the Group; (ii) employed experts as nominated by
the Board; and (iii) core employees of the Group

"Executive General the executive general manager of our Company
Manager”
“"FY2016" the financial year ended December 31, 2016
"FY2017" the financial year ended December 31, 2017
"GDP" gross domestic product
"Group” "our Group” our Company and its subsidiaries
“we" or “us”
“Hangzhou Hospitals” Hangzhou Plastic Surgery Hospital Co., Ltd. ({1 FERAR A F), a

company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CITIC Medical, and its branch, Hangzhou Hand Surgery
Hospital (F1NFFMEHEER)

"HK$"” or “"HKD" and Hong Kong dollar and cent(s) respectively, the lawful currency of Hong
“cent(s)” Kong
“Hong Hui” Hong Hui Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (AT EZ£HFPR A R]), a limited liability

company established under the laws of the PRC on March 15, 1994, a
supplier of the Group

“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
“Huizhou Hospital” CITIC Huizhou Hospital Co., Ltd (F{Z=INEFT AR A F]), a company

incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, of which 60% is owned by
CITIC Medical and 40% is owned by CITIC Kingview

"IFRSs" International Financial Reporting Standards
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“10T"

"10T hospitals and clinics”

“Jian Gong Hospital”

|u

“Jing Mei Hospita

"Jing Mei Hospital Group”

“"JV Company”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Mentougou Hospital”

“Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children”

“Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children |OT
Agreement”

“Mentougou IOT Agreement”

the "invest-operate-transfer” model

third-party hospitals and clinics, which we manage and operate under the
IOT model

Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd. (At XM = EFL AR A 7)), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on May 12, 2003
and a subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor, Beijing Construction
Worker Hospital (3t RTTE2E T A 2PFx), before its reform

Jing Mei Hospital (Jt R RSB 4% F7), a not-for-profit hospital
established under the laws of the PRC in 1956 and wholly owned by
Beijing Coal, which we began managing in May 2011 pursuant to the Jing
Mei IOT Agreement

collectively, Jing Mei Hospital and seven Grade | hospitals and 11
community clinics affiliated with Jing Mei Hospital

UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
in the BVI, which is held as to 50% by Pinyu and 50% by UMP China

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange, i.e. November 29, 2013

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Beijing Mentougou Hospital (3t R FIZ8E R EFx), a not-for-profit hospital
established under the laws of the PRC in 1951 and wholly owned by the
Mentougou District government, which we began managing in June 2010
pursuant to the Mentougou IOT Agreement

Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children (F338& [& 17 2h (= f2F3)
incorporated under the laws of the PRC in 1983 and wholly owned by the
Mentougou District government, which we began managing in September
2014 pursuant to the Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children |OT
Agreement

the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District
government on September 23, 2014

collectively, the 10T agreement we entered into with the Mentougou
District government on July 30, 2010, as amended
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“Mentougou TCM Hospital the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District

IOT Agreement” government on June 6, 2012
“Mentougou Traditional Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital (1t 7 P9S8 & & B8F57),
Chinese Medicine a not-for-profit hospital established under the laws of the PRC in 1956 and
Hospital” wholly owned by the Mentougou District government, which we began
managing in June 2012 pursuant to the Mentougou TCM Hospital 10T
Agreement
“"Model Code” The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

“NHFPC” National Health and Family Planning Commission of the PRC
“Nomination Committee” the nomination committee of the Board
“Pinyu” Pinyu Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI on

January 3, 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

“Prospectus” the prospectus of the Company dated November 18, 2013

"PMM" pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables

“Remuneration Committee” the remuneration committee of the Board

“Reporting Period” the period from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017

"RMB" Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

"

"Selected Participant(s) Eligible Persons selected by the Board in accordance with the terms of

the Share Award Scheme

"SFO" the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

“Share(s)” share(s) with par value of HK$0.00025 each in the capital of our Company

“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of the Share(s)

“Share Award Scheme” the share award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board pursuant

to a resolution passed by the Board on July 7 2014, as amended by the
Board on May 25, 2015
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“Share Option Scheme” the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed by our Shareholders on September 30, 2013

“Speed Key Limited” a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI on January 30, 2013, a
Controlling Shareholder and a connected person to our Company

“Stock Exchange” the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“True Point” True Point Holdings Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the
BVI

“"UMP China” UMP Healthcare China Limited, a limited liability company incorporated

in the Cayman lIslands, and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of UMP
Healthcare Holdings

“UMP Healthcare Holdings” UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (& B EBE AR A F), a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 722)

“U.S. dollar” or "US$” United States dollar, the lawful currency of the United States

“United States” or “U.S” the United States of America, its territories and possessions, and all areas
subject to its jurisdiction

“Yan Hua Hospital” Yan Hua Hospital (1t R #{LEP7T), a not-for-profit hospital established under
the laws of the PRC in 1973 and wholly owned by Yan Hua Phoenix, which
we started to manage and operate in February 2008 pursuant to the Yan
Hua IOT Agreement and a connected person of our Company

"Yan Hua Hospital Group” collectively, Yan Hua Hospital and 17 community clinics affiliated with Yan
Hua Hospital
“Yan Hua IOT Agreement” collectively, the 10T agreement we entered into with Yan Hua Hospital

Group and Yan Hua Phoenix on February 1, 2008, as amended

“Yan Hua Phoenix” Beijing Yan Hua Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Co., Ltd. (It
MLEREEEEEIREGR AT, alimited liability company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC on July 18, 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Beijing Juxin Wantong and a connected person of our Company

In this report, the terms “associate’| “connected person’, “connected transaction’, “subsidiary” and

“substantial shareholder” shall have the same meanings ascribed thereto under in the Listing Rules,

unless the context otherwise requires.
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